
PAGE
AGENDA

1 

 

 
 
 
 

 
CITY COMMISSION ‐ CITY OF WILDWOOD 

Mayor/Commissioner – Ed Wolf – Seat 1     
Mayor  Pro‐Tem/Commissioner – Pamala Harrison‐Bivins – Seat 2 

Robby  Strickland – Seat 3 
Don C. Clark – Seat 4 
Julian Green – Seat 5 

Bill Ed Cannon – City Manager 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

November 11, 2013 - 7:00 PM 
City Hall Commission Chamber 

 

Persons with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk’s Department, ADA 
Coordinator, at 352‐330‐1330, Ext. 102, forty‐eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. 

F.S.S. 286.0105A ‐ If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, 
they will need a record of the proceedings, and that for such purpose they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 

made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
  The City of Wildwood DOES NOT provide this verbatim record.   

City Hall Commission Chamber ‐ 100 N. Main Street, Wildwood, FL 34785 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
 INVOCATION 
 FLAG SALUTE 
 PLEASE TURN OFF ALL CELL PHONES AND PAGERS 

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
(A consent agenda may be presented by the Mayor at the beginning of a meeting. Items may be removed from the consent agenda on the request 

of  any  one  Commissioner.  Items  not  removed may be  adopted  by  general  consent without  debate.  Removed  items may  be  taken  up  either 
immediately  after the consent agenda or placed later on the agenda at the discretion of the Commission.) 
 

 a. Minutes for Approval: September 24, 2013 Regular Meeting. 
 
 b. Bills for Approval (Attachment – Staff Recommends Approval) 
  

c. SP 1309-03. Site plan approval for Miryala Office Complex (Two-story office building 
totaling 10,546 SF). (Staff Recommends Approval).  

 
d. SP 1309-06. Site plan approval for Fort Knox Self-Storage Facility (Self-storage facility 

totaling 73,750 SF). (Staff Recommends Approval).  
 
3. PRESENTATIONS AND/OR PROCLAMATIONS - None 
 a.  
 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS – Timed Items 
 Quasi-Judicial  
 

 a. Transmittal of Large Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment to State Reviewing 
 Agencies. ORDINANCE NO. O2013-54. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
 WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE 
 CITY OF WILDWOOD COMPREHENSIVE PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
 COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT OF 2011; CREATING FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT 
 OBJECTIVE 1.7.A AND POLICIES 1.7.A.1 THROUGH 1.7.A.4 CONCERNING 
 REGIONAL ACTIVITY CENTERS; DESIGNATING THE TRAILWINDS VILLAGE 



PAGE
AGENDA

2 

 

 PROJECT AND THE WILDWOOD COMMONS PROJECT AS REGIONAL ACTIVITY 
 CENTERS PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 380.06(2)(E), FLORIDA STATUTES, AND RULE 
 28.24.014(10), FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE. (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval). 

 
5. PUBLIC FORUM – 10 minute time limit 
 
6. ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (NO VOTE) 
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. O2013-50. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
FLORIDA; PROPOSING A SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT 
TO THE ADOPTED LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT OF 2011, AS AMENDED; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance changes the Future Land Use Map 
designation of Parcel D17=007 totaling 0.3 acres from County “Rural Residential” to City 
“Commercial” (Attachments: Staff Recommends Approval). 

 
b. ORDINANCE NO. O2013-51. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

FLORIDA; PROPOSING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 3.2 AND 3.3 OF THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING 
FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance 
changes the Zoning Map designation of Parcel D17=007 totaling 0.3 acres from County 
“RR” to City “C-3: General Commercial - Highway” (Attachments: Staff Recommends 
Approval). 

 
c. ORDINANCE NO. O2013-52. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

FLORIDA; DELETING SECTION 12-96 OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD CODE OF 
ORDINANCES AND CREATING SECTION 3.22 OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD LAND 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS; PERTAINING TO PARKING OF SEMI-TRUCKS 
AND SEMI-TRAILERS ON REAL PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. This 
Ordinance updates the City’s regulations regarding the parking of semi-trucks and semi-
trailers within the City. (Attachments: DISCUSSION NECESSARY).  

 
d. ORDINANCE NO. O2013-53. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

GRANTING A REQUEST FOR A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 8.6 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS. 
REPEALING ORDINANCE O2010-12; FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY 
OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; OWNED BY WILDWOOD SUMTER HOLDINGS, LLC; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance is a PD Amendment for the 
Triumph South Development (Attachments - Staff Recommends Approval).  

 
e. ORDINANCE NO. O2013-55. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 

FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 1.5 ACRES BEING GENERALLY 
LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF C-466 AND WEST OF C-209; IN SECTION 13, 
TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 22 EAST; PROVIDING THAT SECTION 1-14 OF THE 
CITY OF WILDWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES IS AMENDED TO INCLUDE THE 
ANNEXED PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. This property 
is located in the Joint Planning Area with Sumter County and meets all legal 



PAGE
AGENDA

3 

 

requirements for annexation (Staff Recommends Approval). 
 
f. ORDINANCE NO. O2013-56. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

FLORIDA; AMENDING SECTION 6.4 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 
OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; PERTAINING DRAINAGE AND STORM 
WATER MANAGEMENT; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance modifies 
the City’s stormwater management regulations to be consistent with the new FDEP and 
SWFWMD rules that were adopted in early October (Staff recommends Approval). 

 
7. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL 

a. Resolution R2013-32; A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY IS 
SURPLUS; DETERMINING THAT SAID REAL PROPERTY SHOULD BE USED IN A 
MANNER TO FURTHER THE PUBLIC INTEREST; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
Parcels G08=047, G08=039, and a portion of parcel G08=018 (totaling 2.65 acres MOL). 
(Attachment – Staff recommends approval) 

 
8. FINANCIAL & CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 

a. TABLED From October 28:  Request  Purchase of  K9, Vehicle and Equipment to assist with area 
coverage, apprehension of suspects, and tracking of missing persons. Total cost estimate 
$67,900. (Attachment – Board  Option) 

 
 b. Request approval for KHA IPO #23 – Trailwinds Utility Extensions in the amount of 

 $246,000 for the design, permitting, bid administration and construction administration 
 for the offsite water and wastewater infrastructure needed to serve the Trailwinds 
 development. (Attachment – Staff recommends approval) 

 
 c. Request approval for City of Wildwood and Landstone-Wright Utilities Agreement with fiscal impact 

 information and alternative. (Attachments – Staff recommends approval) 
 
 d. Request to renew property lease with City of Wildwood, DM7 Cattle, Dodd McDowell. Property 

 near RIBs. This is a renewal of a continuous lease. (Attachment – Board Option) 
 
9. GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION/DISCUSSION and OTHER BUSINESS 

a. Gwendolyn Lewis-Brown and Lisa Stokes request approval to use Martin Luther King Park 
December 21, 2013 from 9 a.m. until 5 p.m. for the Annual Christmas Extravaganza & Bike give 
away. (Attachment – Board Option) 

 
b. BW City Ministries request approval to use the Gazebo and Parking area by City Hall for Annual 

Holiday Turkey Drive Give Away, Saturday, November 23, 2013 at 8 a.m. (Attachment – Board 
Option) 

 
c. Sam Saleem, Wildwood Community Development  Request approval to host the Dr. Martin Luther 

King, Jr. Parade and festivities January 20, 2014 from 11 a.m. until 7 p.m. with closing of roadways 
for parade. Staff recommends approval contingent upon the County BOCC approving closure of 
involved County roads. (Attachments) 

 
10. APPOINTMENTS - None 
 

11. CITY MANAGER REPORTS 
a. Fountain at rear of City Hall Discussion/Decision: Repair or take out. Water and electric service 

lines have been located.  
 
b. Federal Prison water-wastewater flow reduction with possible revenue reduction. Information only 

at this time. (Attachments) 
 



PAGE
AGENDA

4 

 

12. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 
13. CITY CLERK REPORTS 
 
14. OTHER DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
15. COMMISSION MEMBERS REPORTS 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

 

IMPORTANT DATES (No Attachments) 
a. November 11, 2013 – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 
b. November 11, 2013 – (Monday) – Veterans’ Day – Wildwood offices Open 
c. November 25, 2013 – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 
d. November 28, 2013 – (Thursday) – Thanksgiving Day. City Offices Closed, except Police Department 
e. November 29, 2013 – (Friday) – City Offices Closed, except Police Department 
f. December 9, 2013 – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 
g. December 23, 2013 – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 

 



CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
September 24, 2013 – 7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
 

The City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida met in Regular session September 24, 2013 at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
Present were: Mayor Wolf, Commissioners Clark, Strickland and Green. Also present were: City 
Manager Cannon, City Clerk Jacobs, Assistant City Clerk Roberts, Police Chief Reeser, City Attorney 
Hunt, Development Service Director Peavy, Development Service Coordinator McHugh. 
Commissioner Bivins being out. 
 
The meeting was called to Order followed by an invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
(A consent agenda may be presented by the Mayor at the beginning of a meeting. Items may be removed from the consent 
agenda on the request of any one Commissioner. Items not removed may be adopted by general consent without debate. 
Removed items may be taken up either immediately after the consent agenda or placed later on the agenda at the discretion 
of the Commission.) 
 
1. Minutes - None  
2. Bills for Approval (Attachment – Staff Recommends Approval) 
3. City of Wildwood’s UF BEBR estimated population 7,116 as of April 1, 2013 (Attachment – 

Staff Recommends Approval) 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Clark to approve items of the 

Consent agenda. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – 7:00 PM 
  
4. Setting Ad valorem Millage Rate for FY 2013-2014 – A Resolution of the City of Wildwood, 

Florida adopting the final levying of ad valorem taxes for City of Wildwood, Florida; providing 
for an effective date. Advertised as Public Hearing. With adoption Resolution No. R2013-21. 
(Attachment) (Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
 Resolution R2013-21 was introduced and read by title only. Open for Public Hearing. No 

comments received. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Green to adopt Resolution R2013-

21. A Resolution of the City of Wildwood, Florida adopting the final levying of ad valorem taxes 
for City of Wildwood, Florida; providing for an effective date. Motion carried by unanimous 
vote.  

 
5. Adoption of FY 2013-2014 Budget in the amount of $18,889,340 – With Budget Summary and 

adopting Resolution No. R2013-22. A Resolution of the City of Wildwood, Florida Adopting the 
Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2014; Providing For an Effective Date. Advertised as Public 
Hearing. (Attachment) (Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
 Resolution R2013-22 was introduced and read by title only. Open for Public Hearing. No 

comments received. 
 
 

2.a. 
Page 1 of 10



Minutes 
Page 2 
September 24, 2013 
   
 Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Strickland to adopt Resolution 

R2013-22. A Resolution of the City of Wildwood, Florida Adopting the Final Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2014; Providing For an Effective Date. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
6. Public Hearing for Discussion/Decision to submit application for FRDAP Grant with 

recommendations for improvements to the Martin Luther King Park and Millennium Park, with 
approving Resolutions attached.  

 
Resolution to authorize submission of a FRDAP Grant Application for Millennium Park. 

• R2013-24:  A Resolution Of The City Of Wildwood Florida, Authorizing The 
Submission Of A Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program (FRDAP) Grant 
Application To The Florida Department Of Environmental Protection (FDEP) For The 
2014-2015 Program Year.   

 
Resolution Committing the City to Amend the Local Government Comprehensive Plan Capital 
Improvements Element if grant funds are received. 

• R2013-25:  A Resolution Of The City Commission Of Wildwood, Florida, Committing 
The City To Amend The 5-Year Schedule Of Capital Improvements Of The City Of 
Wildwood Local Government Comprehensive Plan Capital Improvements Element 
Pursuant To The Local Government Comprehensive Planning And Land Development 
Regulation Act (Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes; Providing For Severability; And 
Providing For An Effective Date. 
 

Resolution to authorize submission of a FRDAP Grant Application for Martin Luther King Park. 
• R2013-26:   A Resolution Of The City Of Wildwood Florida, Authorizing The 

Submission Of A Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program (FRDAP) Grant 
Application To The Florida Department Of Environmental Protection (FDEP) For The 
2014-2015 Program Year. 
 

Resolution Committing the City to Amend the Local Government Comprehensive Plan Capital 
Improvements Element if grant funds are received. 

• R2013-27: A Resolution Of The City Commission Of Wildwood, Florida, Committing 
The City To Amend The 5-Year Schedule Of Capital Improvements Of The City Of 
Wildwood Local Government Comprehensive Plan Capital Improvements Element 
Pursuant To The Local Government Comprehensive Planning And Land Development 
Regulation Act (Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes; Providing For Severability; And 
Providing For An Effective Date. 
 

 (Attachments)(Staff Recommends Approval) 
 
 Commissioner Strickland asked how many members were present at the Parks and Rec 

Board meeting when the FRDAP grants were discussed. Asked how many public were 
present. It was noted there was a full board but three attended and two public were present at 
the public meeting. Public Hearing was opened. No comments received. 
 

 Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Strickland to adopt Resolution 
 R2013-24. A Resolution Of The City Of Wildwood Florida, Authorizing The Submission Of A 
 Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program (FRDAP) Grant Application To The  
 

2.a. 
Page 2 of 10



Minutes 
Page 3 
September 24, 2013 

 
Florida Department Of Environmental Protection (FDEP) For The 2014-2015 Program Year.  
Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
Resolution R2013-25 was introduced and read by title only. Public Hearing opened. No 
comments received. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Strickland to adopt R2013-25. A 
Resolution Of The City Commission Of Wildwood, Florida, Committing The City To Amend The 
5-Year Schedule Of Capital Improvements Of The City Of Wildwood Local Government 
Comprehensive Plan Capital Improvements Element Pursuant To The Local Government 
Comprehensive Planning And Land Development Regulation Act (Chapter 163, Part II, Florida 
Statutes; Providing For Severability; And Providing For An Effective Date. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote.  
 
Resolution R2013-26 was introduced and read by title only. Public Hearing opened. No 
comments received.  
 
Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Clark to adopt R2013-26. A 
Resolution Of The City Of Wildwood Florida, Authorizing The Submission Of A Florida 
Recreation Development Assistance Program (FRDAP) Grant Application To The Florida 
Department Of Environmental Protection (FDEP) For The 2014-2015 Program Year. Motion 
carried by unanimous vote. 
 
Resolution R2013-27 was introduced and read by title only.  
 
Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Clark to adopt R2013-27. A 
Resolution Of The City Commission Of Wildwood, Florida, Committing The City To Amend The 
5-Year Schedule Of Capital Improvements Of The City Of Wildwood Local Government 
Comprehensive Plan Capital Improvements Element Pursuant To The Local Government 
Comprehensive Planning And Land Development Regulation Act (Chapter 163, Part II, Florida 
Statutes; Providing For Severability; And Providing For An Effective Date. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 

 
 Quasi-Judicial below: 
 
 DSD Peavy and DSC McHugh were sworn in. 
 
7. Second final reading of Ordinance No. O2013-24; An Ordinance Of The City Of Wildwood 

Granting A Request For A Residential Planned Development Pursuant To Section 8.6 Of The 
Land Development Regulations. For Certain Property Within The City Of Wildwood, Florida; 
Owned By Mid-Florida Properties, LLC; Providing For Severability; Providing For Codification; 
And Providing For An Effective Date.  This is an Ordinance approving the request of Oxford 
Oaks Planned Development (RPD) owned by Mid Florida Properties, LLC.   Case RZ 1305-02 
Staff Recommends Approval with conditions. (Attachments)  

 
 Ordinance O2013-24 was introduced and read by title only on second final reading. Public 

Hearing was opened.  
 
 Commissioner Strickland asked why the Ordinance was changed when the Commission had 

given clear direction at the last meeting.  

2.a. 
Page 3 of 10



 
Minutes 
Page 4 
September 24, 2013 
 
 DSD Peavy noted that staff met with the City Manager with Mayor Wolf present and staff was 

instructed to change the Ordinance. During the meeting it was changed to have sidewalks on 
both sides of the main boulevard and not have sidewalks on the cul de sacs. The proposal 
was put before the developer and what is presented tonight is what the developer approved.  

 
 Mayor Wolf apologized for changing what the Commission had directed, but he did not want to 

lose a development over sidewalks on a cul de sac. Commissioner Strickland indicated he 
wants assurance that something like this is not going to happen again.  

 
 DSD Peavy noted that although the LDR requires sidewalks on both sides of the road, the 

developer decided to develop the property as a PD. In a PD more options can be looked at.  
 
 Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Strickland to adopt O2013-24 on 

second final reading. An Ordinance Of The City Of Wildwood Granting A Request For A 
Residential Planned Development Pursuant To Section 8.6 Of The Land Development 
Regulations. For Certain Property Within The City Of Wildwood, Florida; Owned By Mid-
Florida Properties, LLC; Providing For Severability; Providing For Codification; And Providing 
For An Effective Date.  Motion carried. Yea – Clark, Strickland, Wolf.  Nay – Green. 

 
Taken out of sequence: 
21. Oxford Oaks Developer’s Agreement (relates to O2013-24 Oxford Oaks Planned 
 Development).  (Attachment) (Staff recommends Approval.) 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Strickland to approve the Oxford 

Oaks Developer’s Agreement. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
8. Second final reading of Ordinance No. O2013-40; An Ordinance Of The City Commission Of 

The City Of Wildwood, To Adopt Flood Hazard Maps, To Designate A Floodplain 
Administrator, To Adopt Procedures And Criteria For Development In Flood Hazard Areas, 
And For Other Purposes; To Adopt Local Administrative Amendments To The Florida Building 
Code; Providing For Applicability; Repeal; Severability; And An Effective Date.  This is an 
Ordinance to adopt policies and procedures as required by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency in conjunction with Florida Building Code. (Attachments – Staff 
Recommends Approval) 

 
 Ordinance O2013-40 was introduced and read by title only on second final reading. Public 

Hearing was opened. No comments received. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Strickland to adopt O2013-40 on 

second final reading. An Ordinance Of The City Commission Of The City Of Wildwood, To 
Adopt Flood Hazard Maps, To Designate A Floodplain Administrator, To Adopt Procedures 
And Criteria For Development In Flood Hazard Areas, And For Other Purposes; To Adopt 
Local Administrative Amendments To The Florida Building Code; Providing For Applicability; 
Repeal; Severability; And An Effective Date. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
9. Second final reading of Ordinance No. O2013-41: An Ordinance Of The City Of Wildwood 

Florida; Proposing A Small Scale Land Use Amendment To The Adopted Local 
Comprehensive Plan And Future Land Use Map In Accordance With The Community Planning 

2.a. 
Page 4 of 10



Minutes 
Page 5 
September 24, 2013 
 
 Act Of 2011, As Amended; Providing For Codification; Providing For Conflict; And Providing 

For An Effective Date.  This is an ordinance reclassifying parcel # D17=062 containing 4.75 +/- 
acres (Amsdell Storage Ventures, XV, LLC) from Sumter County “Commercial” to City 
“Commercial” requiring a Small Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment to the adopted 
Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable recommendation by the Planning and Zoning 
Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local Planning Agency, case CP 1308-01 
(Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
 Ordinance O2013-41 was introduced and read by title only on second final reading. Public 

Hearing opened. No comments received. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Strickland to adopt O2013-41 on 

second final reading. An Ordinance Of The City Of Wildwood Florida; Proposing A Small Scale 
Land Use Amendment To The Adopted Local Comprehensive Plan And Future Land Use Map 
In Accordance With The Community Planning Act Of 2011, As Amended; Providing For 
Codification; Providing For Conflict; And Providing For An Effective Date. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 

 
10. Second final reading of Ordinance No. O2013-42; An Ordinance Of The City Of Wildwood 

Florida; Proposing A Zoning Map Amendment To The Official Zoning Map In Accordance With 
Sections 3.2 And 3.3 Of The Land Development Regulations; Providing For Codification; 
Providing For Conflict; And Providing For An Effective Date.  This is an ordinance rezoning 
parcel # D17=062 containing 4.75 +/- acres (Amsdell Storage Ventures, XV, LLC) from Sumter 
County “CL: Light Commercial” to City “C-3: General Commercial – Highway” in conformance 
with the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable 
recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate, case RZ 1308-01 
(Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval – subject to approval of Ordinance O2013-41) 

 
 Ordinance O2013-42 was introduced and read by title only on second final reading. Public 

Hearing opened. No comments received. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Green to adopt O2013-42 on 

second final reading. An Ordinance Of The City Of Wildwood Florida; Proposing A Zoning Map 
Amendment To The Official Zoning Map In Accordance With Sections 3.2 And 3.3 Of The 
Land Development Regulations; Providing For Codification; Providing For Conflict; And 
Providing For An Effective Date. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

  
11. Second final reading of Ordinance No. O2013-43; An Ordinance Of The City Of Wildwood 

Florida; Proposing A Small Scale Land Use Amendment To The Adopted Local 
Comprehensive Plan And Future Land Use Map In Accordance With The Community Planning 
Act Of 2011, As Amended; Providing For Codification; Providing For Conflict; And Providing 
For An Effective Date.  This is an ordinance reclassifying parcel # G05=010 containing 1.88 +/- 
acres (Susan Lee Hooper, Trustee) from “Low Density Residential” to “Commercial” requiring 
a Small Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment to the adopted Comprehensive Plan; based 
on favorable recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate acting as 
the Local Planning Agency, case CP 1308-02 (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
 Ordinance O2013-43 was introduced and read by title only on second final reading. Public 

Hearing opened. No comments received. 
 

2.a. 
Page 5 of 10



Minutes 
Page 6 
September 24, 2013 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Strickland to adopt O2013-43 on 

second final reading. An Ordinance Of The City Of Wildwood Florida; Proposing A Small Scale 
Land Use Amendment To The Adopted Local Comprehensive Plan And Future Land Use Map 
In Accordance With The Community Planning Act Of 2011, As Amended; Providing For 
Codification; Providing For Conflict; And Providing For An Effective Date. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote.   

 
12. Second final reading of Ordinance No. O2013-44; An Ordinance Of The City Of Wildwood 

Florida; Proposing A Zoning Map Amendment To The Official Zoning Map In Accordance With 
Sections 3.2 And 3.3 Of The Land Development Regulations; Providing For Codification; 
Providing For Conflict; And Providing For An Effective Date.  This is an ordinance rezoning 
parcel # G05=010 containing 1.88 +/- acres (Susan Lee Hooper, Trustee) from “R1: Low 
Density Residential” to “C-1: General Commercial – Downtown” in conformance with the 
Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable recommendation by the 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate, case RZ 1308-03 (Attachments – Staff 
Recommends Approval – subject to approval of Ordinance O2013-43) 

 
 Ordinance O2013-44 was introduced and read by title only on second final reading. Public 

Hearing opened. No comments received. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Clark to adopt O2013-44 on 
 second final reading. An Ordinance Of The City Of Wildwood Florida; Proposing A Zoning Map 
 Amendment To The Official Zoning Map In Accordance With Sections 3.2 And 3.3 Of The 
 Land Development Regulations; Providing For Codification; Providing For Conflict; And 
 Providing For An Effective Date. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
PRESENTATIONS AND/OR PROCLAMATIONS – none 
 
PUBLIC FORUM 
 a. Robert Hannah. Expressed appreciation to Jenny Hudson for the what she has done in 
  her time with the City. Reported that a group “Loaves of Love” would like to use the 
  MLK building on Saturday for 3 hours to feed the neighborhood, because the building 
  they have been using has been sold. Commission requested Mr. Hannah to meet with 
  the City Manager and Jenny Hudson. 
 b. Matt O’Donald. Requested use of soccer field on Sunday, October 20, 2013. 100% of 
  the proceeds to go to the Colorado flood victims. 
 
  CM Cannon requested permission to get a lighting design from Musco Lighting, then 
  get the poles from SECO.  
   
  By Common Consent the Commission approved for Mr. O’Donald to get with Jenny 
  Hudson for use of the fields. 
 

• Richard D. Childers – Spoke to during item 14. 
 
ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (NOTE VOTE)  
 
RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
 

2.a. 
Page 6 of 10



Minutes 
Page 7 
September 24, 2013 
 
13. Resolution No. R2013-23 Rescinding and Replacing Resolution R2013-13.   R2013-23 - A 

Resolution Of The City Commission Of The City Of Wildwood, Florida, Providing For Increases 
To The Water And Wastewater User Charge Ordinance And Facility Availability Base Rates; 
Rescinding And Replacing Resolution R2013-13; Providing For An Effective Date.  This  

 
 Resolution corrects the Outside User Rate for Commercial water users. R2013-13, Section 4, 

reflects $1.90 but should have been $1.88.   (Attachment) (Staff Recommends Approval) 
 
 Resolution R2013-23 was introduced and read by title only.  
 
 Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Clark to adopt R2013-23. A 
 Resolution Of The City Commission Of The City Of Wildwood, Florida, Providing For Increases 
 To The Water And Wastewater User Charge Ordinance And Facility Availability Base Rates; 
 Rescinding And Replacing Resolution R2013-13; Providing For An Effective Date. Motion 
 carried by unanimous vote. 
 
FINANCIAL & CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 
  
14. General Insurance – Liability, Casualty, Workers Comp, Auto, etc. Discussion/Decision on 
 renewal for FY 2013-14 comparison. Representatives invited to answer any questions. 
 (Separate Proposal packets delivered to Mayor and Commissioners 9-19-13.) (Attachment) 
 (Board Option) 
 
 Richard Childers expressed concern that General insurance quotes were solicited from 
 specific companies but was not bid out. Noted he is associated with PRM and they would have 
 appreciated being notified through the bid process. Asked what the bid process is for the City. 
 He knows the City used to bid or RFQ the insurance. 
 
 Commissioner Strickland noted this was new to him and he was going to ask the same 
 questions.  
 
 Mr. Childers recommended the City do an RFQ with specifications. Ask the current carrier to 
 extend for 90 days during the RFQ process and have a consultant review the responses. 
 
 Dave Lodwick from the FLC. Served as on his local Commission as a Commissioner and the 
 Mayor. Cited an AGO 93-83. Noted that many towns have moved their insurance during the 
 past year between FLC, PGIT and PRM.  
 
 CM Cannon noted he reviewed the AGO and statutes before receiving quotes.  
 
 Commissioner Strickland- when Jerri Blair stepped down the need to RFQ was not necessary 
 but he felt it was the fair way and the insurance should be the same. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Strickland that an extension be 
 requested from the current insurance carrier, advertise RFQ for Insurance services, but if the 
 extension is refused, approve low quote from the FLC. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
15. August 2013 Budget Comparison Report. Information only. 
  
 

2.a. 
Page 7 of 10



Minutes 
Page 8 
September 24, 2013 
 
16. Kimley-Horn Associates (KHA) Agreement renewal. One year extension proposed. 
 (Attachment) (Staff Recommends Approval) 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Strickland to approve KHA 
 Agreement one year extension. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
17. Request from Parks & Rec Coordinator Hudson to purchase Floor Machine for Community 

Centers to replace current broken machine. Staff recommends purchase of Viper Fang 20 in 
the amount of $3,696. (Attachment) 

 
 Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Strickland to approve purchase of 
 Viper Fang 20 Floor Machine for Community Centers in the amount of $3,696. Motion carried 
 by unanimous vote. 
 
18.  Request from Police Chief Reeser to purchase five (5) FALCON Rapid ID Scanners for the 
 purpose of subject identification. Purchase amount of $10,445 to come from Impact Fees. 
 (Attachment) (Staff recommends approval) 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Clark to approve request from 
 Police Chief Reeser to purchase five (5) FALCON Rapid ID Scanners for the purpose of 
 subject identification in the amount of $10,445 to come from Impact Fees. Motion carried by 
 unanimous vote. 
 
19. Request from Police Chief Reeser to purchase six (6) 2014 Ford Explorer Interceptors. 

FY2013-14 budget impact of $56,000 to General Fund. Purchase price of $43,200 each, 
financed over five years. Fleet Services Coordinator participated in recommendation.  
(Attachment) (Board Option) 

 
 Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Strickland to approve request from 

Police Chief Reeser to purchase six (6) 2014 Ford Explorer Interceptors. FY2013-14 budget 
impact of $56,000 to General Fund. Purchase price of $43,200 each, financed over five years. 
Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
20. Utility Department request to purchase 2013 Ford Explorer for use by the Director. Estimated 

cost $26,000 with Enterprise unrestricted funds. (Attachment) (Board Option) 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Green to approve Utility 
 Department request to purchase 2013 Ford Explorer for use by the Director. Estimated cost 
 $26,000 with Enterprise unrestricted funds. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
22. Baker House Leveling Price Quotes. Three quotes received. (Attachment) (Board 
 Option)  Gidget Gibson, WHA  
 

Gidget Gibson expressed appreciation to the Commission for the Food Truck and Movie night 
at the Baker House. Have been asked when another is planned. 

 
Mayor Wolf noted that he wants to contribute to the Baker House restoration but wants to 
make sure it goes to the Baker House restoration. Was under the impression that when the 
house was accepted from the Baker’s it was put under Parks & Recreation and that utilities 
and other expenses would be paid for by the City. 

2.a. 
Page 8 of 10



 
Minutes 
Page 9 
September 24, 2013 

 
Ms. Gibson reported on bills she has paid from the WHA funds. CC Jacobs noted that all 
payments regarding the Baker House are charged to the Baker House for an accurate City 
record. Need to determine what funds the monthly bills should be paid from. 

 
 Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Strickland to approve the quote from 
 Certified Foundations Inc. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION and OTHER BUSINESS  
  
23. Special Event TEMP 1309-01 Discovery Church Youth Rally Event at 204 Pine Street on 
 9/27 and 9/28 (Friday and Saturday) from 4 pm to 10 pm each day; requesting road closure 
 of Pine Street from First Ave. to Second Ave. and road barriers.  
 
 Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Strickland to approve road closure 
 of Pine Street for Special Event TEMP 1309-01 Discovery Church Youth Rally Event at 204 
 Pine Street on 9/27 and 9/28 (Friday and Saturday) from 4 pm to 10 pm each day. Motion 
 carried by unanimous vote. 
  
APPOINTMENTS – none 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
24. Update on RFP and bank commitments for funding Enterprise updates and improvements. 

RFP’s due in October 8. Jim Gollahon to make full presentation at October 14 Commission 
Meeting. (Handout) 

 
 Noted the closing is planned for October 22.  
 
25. Letter from Air Methods requesting termination of their lease with the City. (Attachment) 
 Information only. 
 
Noted the figures have been inserted in his contract and needs to be executed based on decision at 
September 4 meeting. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

• Met with Jerri on several items. The Highway 44 mediation will be coming up soon and will 
need a shade meeting before the mediation.    
 

CITY CLERK’S REPORT  
• None 

 
OTHER DEPARTMENT REPORTS  
26. Police Department – Chief Reeser – Regarding Convenience Store “security” Ordinance. 
 (No Attachment) 
 
 PC Reeser noted that neither the Statutes nor the City ordinances cover the lighting issue of 
 Convenience Store. Noted the Statutes does not allow local ordinances to be more restrictive 
 than the Statutes unless the City had an ordinance in place before 1988. 
 

2.a. 
Page 9 of 10



Minutes 
Page 10 
September 24, 2013 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS REPORTS 

• Commissioner Green – why are street lights so dim. Asked that City Manager do a study of the 
lights and provide information to Commission. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 Upon a motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Strickland the meeting was 
adjourned. 
 
        CITY COMMISSION 
        CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 S E A L 
 
              
ATTEST:       Ed Wolf, Mayor 
  Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 
 

2.a. 
Page 10 of 10



CITY COMMISSION-LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT
1 Payroll November 3, 2013 Pay Period - 5 Employees 3,651.96$      

2 Bank of America Big Lots iPad Keyboards 280.00$         

3 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 16.43$           

CITY MANAGER-EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT
4 Payroll November 3, 2013 Pay Period - 2 Employees 6,191.81$      

5 Bank of America FCCMA, Friday's, Hyatt Regency, Big Lots, FDLE 324.55$         

6 Bright House Internet Service 45.82$           

7 Bill Ed Cannon Car Allowance 500.00$         

8 Department of Management Services Telephone Service 1.54$             

9 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 23.11$           

10 Office Depot Office Supplies 196.80$         

11 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 19.75$           

CITY CLERK-FINANCIAL & ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT
12 Payroll November 3, 2013 Pay Period - 4 Employees 11,010.03$    

13 Bank of America Start Logic, FSU Foundation, Network Solutions, VSN DOT 772.32$         

14 Alice Borrack Personal Vehicle Use 23.53$           

15 Bright House Internet Service 91.52$           

16 C.E.S. City Electric Supply Company Ballast Kits 322.83$         

17 Department of Management Services Telephone Service 1.54$             

18 Duke Energy Electric Service 2,000.25$      

19 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 316.29$         

20 IMS Software Maintenance 432.00$         

21 Joseph Jacobs Personal Vehicle Use 13.00$           

22 Leesburg Rent-All Trailer Mounted Bucket Lift 80.50$           

23 MMD Computer Center, Inc Cisco RV042 Dual Wan Router 220.00$         

24 Office Depot Office Supplies 9.61$             

25 Oracle Elevator Company Regular Service 218.99$         

26 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 31.60$           

27 Unifirst Rugs 36.93$           

28 Waste Management 2 Yard Dumpster 185.11$         

29 Wildwood Ace Hardware Glue, Tape, Sandpaper, Primer, Paint, Graffiti Remvr 91.88$           

30 Wildwood Community Cemetery Budgeted Maintenance Support - Arthur Rivers 340.93$         

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
31 Payroll November 3, 2013 Pay Period - 3.5 Employees 8,324.69$      

32 Bright House Internet Service 91.52$           

33 Department of Management Services Telephone Service 1.54$             

34 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 189.92$         

35 Office Depot Office Supplies 62.74$           

36 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 27.44$           

37 Sumter County Clerk Record Pioneer Agreement First Amendment 95.00$           

HUMAN RESOURCES
38 Payroll November 3, 2013 Pay Period - 1 Employees 3,312.57$      

39 Bright House Internet Service 22.88$           

40 Department of Management Services Telephone Service 1.54$             

41 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 9.14$             

42 Federal Express Postage 81.43$           

43 Office Depot Office Supplies 18.84$           

44 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 5.27$             

BILLS FOR APPROVAL
City of Wildwood, Florida

November 11, 2013

2.b. 
Page 1 of 4



November 11, 2013

Page 3

45 Payroll November 3, 2013 Pay Period - 32 Employees 72,021.39$    

46 Bank of America Dell, Tessco, Medrep, Office Depot, Biddle Consulting 1,591.72$      

47 Barron Psychological Services Psychological Screening Evaluations 500.00$         

48 Central Sumter Utility LLC Brownwood Water 37.88$           

49 Chief Supply / Law Enforcement Raincoats, Sam Brown Duty, Flashlight, Holster Drop, Etc 804.93$         

50 Dana Safety Supply, Inc Dual Weapon Mounts, Installation 394.25$         

51 Department of Management Services DMS, Telephone Service 106.63$         

52 Duke Energy October Service 285.93$         

53 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 211.11$         

54 Ford Press Business Cards 100.00$         

55 Kevin Mathews Medical Services First Aid and Safety Products 131.00$         

56 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Paper Products 75.17$           

57 Merritt Department Store Navy Blouses, Shirts w/Zipper, Trousers, Windbreaker 745.87$         

58 Nordic Sports Inc 8 Boxes 40 S & W 50 Rounds Each 180.00$         

59 Office Depot Office Supplies 26.88$           

60 Petty Cash Reimbursement 97.53$           

61 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 2,738.95$      

62 Shell Gasoline - Sex Crime School - Smith 98.01$           

63 Sumter Electric Electric Service 88.93$           

64 Tri-Point Products, Inc 2014 Remarkable Products 163.20$         

65 Villages Operating Company A/C Reimbursement 19.26$           

66 Wildwood Ace Hardware Drill Bit, Plywood, Roof Metal, Keys, Fasteners, Etc. 161.94$         

STREET DEPARTMENT
67 Payroll November 3, 2013 Pay Period - 9 Employees 16,410.69$    

68 Bank of America FDLE 24.00$           

69 Bright House Internet Service 106.01$         

70 Culligan Cooler Rental and Bottled Water 18.37$           

71 Department of Management Services Telephone Service 0.23$             

72 Duke Energy October Service 410.37$         

73 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 0.01$             

74 Hi-Way Sign Company Galvanized Channel Post 340.40$         

75 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Paper Products 81.75$           

76 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 1,400.29$      

77 Salescorp of Florida Gatorade 68.00$           

78 Sumter County Tax Collector Abandoned Property Transfer to Street Dept 51.85$           

79 Tri-Point Products, Inc 2014 Remarkable Products 20.40$           

80 Unifirst Uniforms 498.80$         

81 Wildwood Ace Hardware Pressure Treated, Battery, Chainsaw Files, Duster, Etc 364.21$         

FLEET SERVICES
82 Payroll November 3, 2013 Pay Period - 2 Employees 5,352.02$      

83 Big Truck Parts Filters 59.25$           

84 Bright House Internet Service 106.00$         

85 Culligan Cooler Rental and Bottled Water 18.37$           

86 Department of Management Services Telephone Service 0.23$             

87 Don Marlow Boot Allowance 53.48$           

88 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Paper Products 24.18$           

89 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 387.72$         

90 Unifirst Uniforms 167.81$         

91 Wildwood Ace Hardware Toggle Switch, Fasteners 30.21$           

COMMUNITY RE-DEVELOPMENT
92 Payroll November 3, 2013 Pay Period - .5 Employees 1,786.45$      

93 Bright House Internet Service 22.88$           

94 Department of Management Services Telephone Service 1.53$             

95 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 5.27$             

POLICE DEPARTMENT

2.b. 
Page 2 of 4



November 11, 2013

Page 3

PARKS AND RECREATION
96 Payroll November 3, 2013 Pay Period - 5 Employees 7,235.10$      

97 Bank of America Walmart, Northern Tool 254.19$         

98 Bright House Internet Service 22.88$           

99 Central Irrigation Pump & Supply, Inc Hunter Gear Drive, Gear Rotor, Couplings, Etc 335.88$         

100 Department of Management Services Telephone Service 1.54$             

101 Duke Energy October Service 755.11$         

102 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 0.48$             

103 Hi-Way Sign Company White "No Pets Allowed" 27.18$           

104 Jesus Leonor Boot Allowance 75.00$           

105 Nature Calls Port O Let Rental 255.00$         

106 Office Depot Office Supplies 3.37$             

107 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 263.36$         

108 Salescorp of Florida Safety Glasses 18.00$           

109 Sumter Electric Electric Service 20.34$           

110 TurfMasters and Associates, Inc Lawn Fertilization and Pest Control 3,065.00$      

111 Unifirst Uniforms 239.61$         

112 Wildwood Ace Hardware Caulk, Safety Glass, Signs, Chlorine, Ant Killer, Etc. 558.78$         

COMMUNITY CENTER & OXFORD COMMUNITY CENTER
113 Bright House Internet Service 351.52$         

114 Duke Energy October Service 341.98$         

115 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 0.12$             

116 George Naha Chevrolet, Inc Lock 95.45$           

117 Lawton Bros., Inc Nylon Scrub Brushes 400.00$         

118 Maria Malagon Deposit Refund - Wildwood Community Center 180.00$         

119 Unifirst Rugs 98.49$           

120 Wildwood Ace Hardware Filter, Cleaning Products, Mop, Deck Brush, Etc. 58.27$           

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT
121 Payroll November 3, 2013 Pay Period - 3 Employees 5,502.57$      

122 Bank of America Network Solutions, VSN DOT Gov Registration 162.48$         

123 Bright House Internet Service 68.64$           

124 Business Basic Etc Water Bills 870.00$         

125 C.E.S. City Electric Supply Company Ballast Kits 322.83$         

126 Department of Management Services Telephone Service 1.54$             

127 Duke Energy Electric Service 666.75$         

128 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 74.21$           

129 IMS Software Maintenance 120.50$         

130 Leesburg Rent-All Trailer Mounted Bucket Lift 80.50$           

131 Office Depot Office Supplies 126.85$         

132 Oracle Elevator Company Regular Service 218.97$         

133 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 15.80$           

134 Unifirst Rugs 36.93$           

135 Waste Management Refuse Services Billed Less 10% October 2013 65,917.73$    

136 Wildwood Ace Hardware Glue, Tape, Sandpaper, Primer, Paint, Graffiti Remvr 85.85$           

137 Deniese Woods Personal Vehicle Use - Leesburg Post Office 14.13$           

UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
138 Payroll November 3, 2013 Pay Period - 23 Employees 46,132.96$    

139 Almac Unlimited, Inc Gloves Latex Power Free XL 249.80$         

140 Alice Scheidler Personal Vehicle Use

141 A.W.K. Industries, Inc. Canopy Kit 237.90$         

142 Bank of America Days Inn, TechStreet 59.16$           

143 Besco Electric Supply Company Thin Wire - Brn, Orn, Yel, Grn 262.20$         

144 Bright House Internet Service 110.70$         

145 Capital Office Products Office Supplies 267.07$         

146 Culligan Bottled Water 76.22$           

2.b. 
Page 3 of 4



November 11, 2013

Page 4

UTILITY DEPARTMENT, continued
147 Data Flow Systems, Inc Tac Pak TCU 10,080.00$    

148 Department of Management Services DMS, Telephone Service 56.25$           

149 Duke Energy Electric Service 21,008.80$    

150 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 19.31$           

151 FL Dept of Environmental Protection PWS Extension Permit Application 100.00$         

152 HACH COD Standard, BOD STD, Dilution, Chlorine Test Strip 278.22$         

153 HD Supply WaterWorks PVC 57.44$           

154 Jared Fort Boot Allowance 75.00$           

155 Jiffy Exhaust Systems, Inc. Catalytic Converter 250.49$         

156 Massey Services Monthly Pest Control 46.50$           

157 MMD Computer Center, Inc Cisco RV042 Dual Wan Router 440.00$         

158 Office Depot Office Supplies 13.44$           

159 Parkson Chain Tightner, Browning Sprocket, Master Link 380.01$         

160 Pat's Pump & Blower Blower Ont Parts Filter Elements Couplers 1,479.07$      

161 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 2,106.88$      

162 Bruce Phillips Personal Vehicle Use 174.02$         

163 Salescorp of Florida Safety Glasses 12.00$           

164 Sumter Electric Electric Service 4,080.57$      

165 Sunstate Meter & Supply, Inc T10 Pro Read Upgrade, Ball Valve, Brass Nipple, Couplings 22,388.67$    

166 TAW Orlando AC-Motor 0.75 HP, Repair Motor 2,260.34$      

167 Test America Environmental Testing 4,133.85$      

168 Tri-Point Products, Inc 2014 Remarkable Products 40.80$           

169 Unifirst Uniforms 1,097.35$      

170 USA BlueBook Glass Fiber Filter, Buffer Blue, Yellow 326.51$         

171 VWR White Tape, Standard Condt, Reagent Alcohol, Etc. 643.45$         

172 Wildwood Ace Hardware PVC, Galv Pipe, Level, Pipe Straps, Sprayer, Etc. 516.04$         

173 Xylem Water Solutions U.S.A. Inc Repair 3 Flags of Outer Seal Failure 6,606.50$      

GREENWOOD CEMETERY
174 Central Irrigation Pump & Supply, Inc Hunter Station Battery Controller 139.50$         

175 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 0.05$             

ATTORNEYS/CONSULTANTS/SURVEYORS
176 Bryant Miller Oliver Bank Counsel 3,500.00$      

177 Gollahan Financial Services, Inc Financial Advisor 18,000.00$    

FUEL INVENTORY
178 Stone Petroleum Products, Inc Unleaded Gasoline 9,070.04$      

TOTAL  393,806.55$  

CITY COMMISSION

CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

S E A L 

                                                                                                                       

ATTEST:_______________________ Ed Wolf, Mayor

Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk

2.b. 
Page 4 of 4



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: SP 1309-03  Miryala Office Complex Site Plan 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Site Plan approval (SP 1309-03) to construct a two-story office 
building (10,546 sq. ft. total) with related improvements. 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 11/11/2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant seeks Site Plan approval from the City Commission to construct a two-story office 
building (10,546 sq. ft. total) with related improvements (Parcel D17=054).  Staff recommends 
approval of the Site Plan. 
 
Case SP 1309-03 was considered by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate on Tuesday, 
November 5th, 2013.  The Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable 
recommendation of the Site Plan to the City Commission. 
 

 
Jason McHugh 
Development Services Coordinator 
 

2.c. 
Page 1 of 5



City of Wildwood 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

 
The case below was heard on Tuesday, November 5th, 2013 by the Special Magistrate.  
The applicant seeks Site Plan approval and favorable recommendation from the City of 
Wildwood Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate for a two-story 10,546 sq. ft. 
office building (5,273 sq. ft. each floor) with related improvements.  The site is generally 
located on the southwest corner of C-466 and C-106.  The Engineer of Record is Keith 
E. Riddle, P.E. with Riddle-Newman Engineering, Inc. of Leesburg, Florida. 
 
Case:   SP 1309-03 
 
Parcel: D17=054 
 
Owner: Anirudha Miryala 
 
Applicant: SAME 
 
Under subsections 1.7(B)(1) of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), the 
Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate has a duty to make a recommendation 
to the City Commission on all proposed site plans in accordance with the procedure 
outlined in subsection 1.14 (B)(5) and the criteria for the approval of site plans as 
defined in subsection 4.4 of the LDRs. 
 
Based upon the testimony and information presented, the Special Magistrate 
recommends approval and favorable recommendation of the Site Plan to the City 
Commission. 
 
 
Dated:  November ____, 2013 
 
 
 
/Proposed/ 
____________________________ 
Archie O. Lowry, Jr. 
Special Magistrate City of Wildwood 

 

2.c. 
Page 2 of 5



MKK Investments
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

May 2013 Annexation

Location Map
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 300 600

Feet

I:\T
err

i\M
KK

An
ne

xa
tio

n.m
xd

 - 5
/30

/20
13

 9:
50

:44
 AM

 - t
on

ea
l

CL

Legend
MKK Investments

City of Wildwood

2.c. 
Page 3 of 5



2.c. 
Page 4 of 5



25
.0

0
'

25
.0

0
' 50.00'

Bench Mark No. 1.
Set PK nail with disk marked LS 
3522 in west face of 24" Water 
Oak.
Elevation 96.65'.

No monument 
found.

Driveway and 
parking area

Typical
concrete

Asp
ha

lt 
Pav

em
en

t

22
1.

37
'

West 50.00 feet 
of the East 
324.80 feet of 
Block E, Town of 
Oxford.

N
O

R
T

H
   

2
6

9
.4

5
' (

d
)

S
ou

th
 r

ig
ht

-o
f-

w
ay

 o
f C

-4
6

6
, 

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

"S
ta

te
 o

f F
lo

rid
a,

 S
ta

te
 R

o
a

d
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

R
IG

H
T

 O
F

 W
A

Y
 M

A
P,

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

8
5

1
-1

5
1

, 
R

o
a

d
 N

o.
 S

-4
6

6
 &

 4
7

5
, 

S
u

m
te

r 
C

o
u

n
ty

."

WEST  161.22' (d)

(asphalt surface)

Catch Basin

Point of Beginning
for Parcel Description

Fence line is 0.9' east of 
concrete monument

2
5

.0
0'

25
.0

0'

Concrete 
Flume

Standard concrete curb and gutter

34.1'

20
.9

'42.4'

overhead utilit
y li

ne

Patio Stone

48.6' 5.
3

'

8.
2

'14.1'15.3'

One (1) story masonry 
residence

Concrete block utility 
building10

.0
'

12
.3

'12.3'

Wood utility 
building

clothesline

8.6'

10.6'

16
.0

'

43.51'

32.92'

39.36'

S
O

U
T

H
   

26
9

.4
7

' (
d

)

Fence corner is 1.1' 
east of property 
line.

22
0.

68
'

20
.0

'

Shed roof over 
concrete

5
6

.3
9'

Set 5 8" rebar with cap 
marked Owens, PSM 
3522.

75.89'

B L
 O

 C
 K

  "
E"

89
.9

7
'

Found three (3) inch square 
concrete monument with no 
surveyor's identification. 

49
.9

6'

50.00'

Monumented west boundary of the 
East 274.80 feet of Blocks E and F, 
in the Town of Oxford, as recorded in 
Plat Book 1, Pages 32 and 33, Public 
Records of Sumter County, Florida.

Found three (3) inch square concrete 
monument with no surveyor's 
identification.

Prepared by:
Billy Earl Owens, PSM
Surveyor and Mapper
Mailing Address: 494 CR 416N
Physical Address: 39 CR 494
Lake Panasoffkee, FL  33538
PH: 352-793-2854
e-mail: beopsm3522@gmail.com

EAST  161.22' (d)

296.95'

4
9

.9
6 '

BLO
CK  "

F"

Bench Mark No. 2.
Set PK nail with disk marked LS 
3522 in edge of pavement.
Elevation 94.64'.

Set 5 8" rebar with cap 
marked Owens, PSM 3522, 
in edge of pavement.

1
0

0
.4

2'

6
9

. 7
4 '

South right-of-Way for C-466, according to 
Deed recorded in Official Record Book 498, 
Page 367, Public Records of Sumter County, 
Florida.

North boundary of the South 12 of the Northwest 14 of 
Section 17, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, and the 
north boundary of Town of Oxford, as recorded in Plat 
Book 1, Page 32, Public Records of Sumter County, 
Florida.

179.39'

179.39'

E
as

t b
ou

n
d

a
ry

 o
f 

B
lo

ck
 "

A
" 

To
w

n
 o

f 
O

xf
o

rd

W
es

t b
o

u
n

d
a

ry
 o

f 
B

lo
ck

 "
E

" 
To

w
n

 o
f 

O
xf

o
rd

LEGEND
Road Sign

Utility Pole

X 100.00'       Spot Elevation

Chain Link Fence

Wood Privacy Fence

Wood Fence

Cable TV Box

Telephone Junction Box

Electric Vault

Air Conditioner

Light Pole
2

5
.0

0'

Northwest corner of the Southeast 14 of the Northwest 14 
and the northeast corner of the Southwest 14 of the 
Northwest 14 of Section 17, Township 18 South, Range 
23 East.

W
e

st
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 o
f 

th
e 

S
ou

th
ea

st
 1

4
 o

f 
th

e 
N

or
th

w
es

t 1
4

E
a

st
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

of
 t

he
 S

ou
th

w
es

t 1
4
 o

f 
th

e 
N

or
th

w
es

t 1
4

Found 5 8" rebar with cap 
marked LB 6819

0' 40' 80' 120'

B L
 O

 C
 K

  "
A"

4
9

.9
6'

W
e

st
 b

o
un

da
ry

 o
f B

lo
ck

 "
F

" 
To

w
n

 o
f 

O
xf

o
rd

E
a

st
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

of
 B

lo
ck

 "
C

" 
To

w
n

 o
f 

O
xf

o
rd

BLOCK  "C"

BLOCK  "B"

Found 5 8" rebar with cap 
marked LB 6819

5.00' (deed)

5.00' (measured)

Found four (4) inch square concrete 
monument, with no surveyor's identification, 
on the west right-of-way of the CSX Railroad

Map of Boundary Survey:
This survey map and report is not valid without the signature and original seal of the Florida licensed surveyor 
and mapper which can be found at the end of this report.
 
Description as furnished: 
Begin 86.00 feet East of the Northwest corner of Block E, OXFORD, as recorded in Plat Book 1, Pages 32, 
Public Records of Sumter County, Florida, and run South 269.47 feet, East 161.22 feet, North 269.45 feet, West 
161.22 feet, to the Point of Beginning.

Data Sources:
1) Description contained in Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company, Commitment No. 12-9218, 

furnished by the Law Office of Randall N. Thornton, Attorney at Law.
2) Map of the Town of OXFORD, in the South ½ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 17, Township 18 South, 

Range 23 East, Sumter County, Florida, as recorded in Plat Book 1, Pages 32, Public Records of Sumter 
County, Florida.

3) Section information for Section 17, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, Sumter County, Florida.
4) Map of "Sketch of Survey" prepared by C. H. Willard (deceased) Registered Surveyor No. 192; Date of � ���

Survey, September 1951.
5) Map of "Boundary Survey" of Parcel lying west of subject parcel, prepared by Farner/Barley and 

Associates, Inc., dated September 21, 2005.
6) "Map of Survey" in Block A, OXFORD, prepared by Hunt Surveyors (this was a portion of the map and no 

date was on the copies).
7) "State of Florida, State Road Department Right of Way Map, Section No. 1851-151, Road No. S-466 and � ���

475, Sumter County, Florida, Revised Date 10-17-52."
8) Right  of Way description for C-466, recorded in Official Records Book 498, Page 367, Public Records of 

Sumter County, Florida.
9) Fifty (50) foot wide right of way for CR 106, is according to description contained in Official Record Book 

91, Page 60, Public Records of Sumter County, Florida.
10) Various other descriptions recorded in the Public Records of Sumter County, Florida.
11) Corner monuments as found in place.

Map and Report of Topographic Survey
In

OXFORD
Section 17, Township 18 South, Range 23 East,

Sumter County, Florida
Project No. 7356 - January 31, 2013

Prepared for: Miryala

FF          Finish Floor with elevation

Found four (4) inch square concrete 
monument, with no surveyor's identification, 
on the west right-of-way of the CSX Railroad

Typical contour with 
elevation.

Found 12 inch rebar with 
no surveyor's 
identification.

Found 12 inch rebar with 
no surveyor's 
identification.

Point of Commencement
Northeast corner of Block "A" and the northwest 
corner of Block "E" Town of Oxford.

86.00'

86.00'

86.00'

EAST 86.00' (d)

Found three (3) inch square concrete 
monument with no surveyor's 
identification.

Found four (4) inch square concrete 
monument with no surveyor's 
identification.

Limitations:
1) No research was made in the Public Records of Sumter County, 
Florida by the office of Billy Earl Owens, PSM, for easements, 
restrictions, rights-of-way, or reservations.
2) Subsurface and environmental conditions were not examined or 
considered as a part of this survey.
3) The word "certify" or "certificate" as shown and used hereon means an 
expression of professional opinion regarding the facts of the survey and 
does not constitute a warranty or guarantee, expressed or implied.
4) Underground utilities were not located.
5) Underground foundations, if any, were not located.
6) Shrubbery and irrigation was not located or shown.
7) The boundary information of the subject parcel, as shown on this Map 
of Survey, was acquired for a previous boundary, by Billy Earl Owens, 
PSM, dated August 15, 2012. This Map of Topographic Survey does not 
update the previous boundary information. 
8) Survey and description are subject to easements, restrictions, 
rights-of-way and reservations, if any, other than those shown.

Easements:
No easements were furnished.

Notes:
1) Bearings are based on an assumed meridian, the map noted in Data 
Source 6, and the north boundary of the South ½ of the Northwest ¼ of 
Section 17, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, as being S 89°41'26" E.
2) All bearings and distances shown as (d) are according to descriptions; 
all other bearings and distances were field measured.

Monumented south right-of-way of 
Main Street

Elevation Notes:
1) Elevations were based on a National Geodetic Survey Data 
Sheet for Bench Mark Designation U 753, PID DN9193, Sumter 
County Florida. The Bench Mark is located in Oxford, Florida, in 
the Southwest Quadrant of the intersection of County Road 466, 
and County Road 107. The Bench Mark is a concrete monument 
with disk stamped U 753 2011, FLDEP; it has a published 
elevation of 102.52 feet. The elevation datum is NAVD 88.
2) The Topographic Survey contours are based on a 25 foot grid.

Survey is for the benefit of:
Ani Miryala

Surveyor's certification:
I hereby certify this Map and Report of Topographic Survey meets 
the MINIMUM TECHNICAL STANDARDS for surveying as set 
forth by the Florida Board of Professional Surveyors and Mappers 
in Chapter 5J-17, Florida Administrative Code pursuant to Section 
472.027, Florida Statutes.
Date of Survey: January 31, 2013

Billy Earl Owens, PSM
Florida Certificate No. 3522
VOID UNLESS SIGNED AND EMBOSSED
 WITH SURVEYOR'S SEAL 
doc\ boundary 7311; topo 7356
bk 18-23 (8) pgs 47-48 and dc

Revision Note:
Revised October 17, 2013, to adjust elevations 
from assumed datum to NAVD 88 datum. 
Subsequent to issuing the topographic survey, 
dated January 31, 2013, it was discovered there 
was a mathematical error made in the level run 
from the Primary Bench Mark to the project site 
resulting in the original elevations not being on 
NAVD 88 datum. The correction factor of -10.62' 
was required to establish the elevations on 
NAVD 88 datum, which have been adjusted and 
shown on this revision.

2.c. 
Page 5 of 5

BEO
Information Only



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: SP 1309-06  Fort Knox Self-Storage Facility Site Plan 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Site Plan approval (SP 1309-06) to construct a self-storage 
facility (73,750 sq. ft. total) with related improvements. 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 11/11/2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant seeks Site Plan approval from the City Commission to construct a self-storage facility 
(73,750 sq. ft. total) with related improvements (Parcel D32=031).  Staff recommends approval of 
the Site Plan. 
 
Case SP 1309-06 was considered by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate on Tuesday, 
November 5th, 2013.  The Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable 
recommendation of the Site Plan to the City Commission. 
 

 
Jason McHugh 
Development Services Coordinator 
 

2.d. 
Page 1 of 5



City of Wildwood 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

 
The case below was heard on Tuesday, November 5th, 2013 by the Special Magistrate.  
The applicant seeks Site Plan approval and favorable recommendation from the City of 
Wildwood Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate for a 73,750 sq. ft. self-
storage facility with related improvements.  The site is generally located to the southeast 
of the intersection of E. C-462 and US Hwy 301.  The Engineer of Record is Christopher 
Andrew Potts, P.E. with Farner, Barley, and Associates, Inc. of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
Case:   SP 1309-06 
 
Parcel: D32=031 
 
Owner: Fort Knox Wildwood, LLC 
 
Applicant: Richard P. Moran, Jr., Managing Member for Fort Knox Wildwood, LLC 
 
Under subsections 1.7(B)(1) of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), the 
Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate has a duty to make a recommendation 
to the City Commission on all proposed site plans in accordance with the procedure 
outlined in subsection 1.14 (B)(5) and the criteria for the approval of site plans as 
defined in subsection 4.4 of the LDRs. 
 
Based upon the testimony and information presented, the Special Magistrate 
recommends approval and favorable recommendation of the Site Plan to the City 
Commission. 
 
 
Dated:  November ____, 2013 
 
 
 
/Proposed/ 
____________________________ 
Archie O. Lowry, Jr. 
Special Magistrate City of Wildwood 

2.d. 
Page 2 of 5



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
OCTOBER 2013 LOCATION MAP

FORT KNOX
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\L
oc

ati
on

\Lo
ca

tio
n -

 Fo
rt K

no
x.m

xd
 - 1

0/2
4/2

01
3 1

1:5
4:3

9 A
M 

- to
ne

al

C
R

 1
31

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

C-462 E

N
E

 4
4t

h 
D

R

N
E

 4
3r

d
 W

A
Y

C
R

 2
32

N
 M

A
IN

 S
T

/N
 U

S
 30

1

NE 83rd RD

Legend
D32=031

City of Wildwood

2.d. 
Page 3 of 5



2.d. 
Page 4 of 5



2.d. 
Page 5 of 5



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Ordinance O2013-54: Comprehensive Plan Amendments: Regional 
Activity Centers 

 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Transmittal of Ordinance O2013-54 to the Reviewing Agencies 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: November 11, 2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
 
The City has received two separate Comprehensive Plan Amendment applications seeking 
designation of the Trailwinds Village (Word property) and Wildwood Commons (Beamount, Paxton, 
and Stokes properties) projects as “Regional Activity Centers” (RAC) pursuant to Chapter 
380.06(2)(e), Florida Statutes and Rule 28.24.014(10)(a), Florida Administrative Code.   
 
 
Ordinance O2013-54 amends the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan creating 
Objective 1.7.A and its Policies 1.7.A.1 through 1.7.A.4.  
 
Policy 1.7.A.3 designates the Trailwinds Village project as a RAC, and Policy 1.7.A.4 designates the 
Wildwood Commons project as a RAC.  
 
 
Designation as a RAC increases the amount of development that may be approved locally without 
triggering the Development of Regional Impact (DRI) review process. Designation as a RAC does not 
increase the amount of development that is allowed under the property’s Future Land Use Map 
designation. As such, each project will be required to meet the density, intensity, and mix of use 
requirements under the Central Mixed Use designation. Each project is also required to proceed as a 
Planned Development.   
 
 
The Trailwinds Village project is an approved Planned Development. The applicant has submitted an 
application for an amendment to the Planned Development to increase the amount of development 
utilizing the RAC thresholds. The amendment to the Planned Development will be heard by the 
Planning and Zoning Board and the City Commission should the RAC be approved. An application for 
a Planned Development has not been submitted at this time for the Wildwood Commons project.  
 

4.a. 
Page 1 of 27



 
 
At the N
approval 
Activity C
 
Staff rec
F.S. 163
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

 

November 5t

of the desig
Centers” and

commends 
.3184.  

cHugh 
ment Service

h meeting o
gnations of 
d of Ordinanc

the transm

 

es Coordina

of the Local 
the Trailwin
ce O2013-54

mittal of Ord

ator 

Planning A
ds Village a
4. 

dinance O2

Agency, the 
and Wildwoo

013-54 to th

Special Ma
od Commons

he state rev

agistrate rec
s projects a

viewing agen

commended 
s “Regional 

ncies under 

4.a. 
Page 2 of 27



City of Wildwood, Florida 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

as Local Planning Agency 
 
The case below was heard on Tuesday, November 5, 2013 by the Special Magistrate. 
The applicant seeks a comprehensive plan text amendment establishing “Regional 
Activity Center” standards and designating the “Wildwood Commons” project as a 
“Regional Activity Center.”  The site is generally located to the northeast of the 
intersection of C-466A (Cleveland Ave) and C-462. 
 
Case:   CP 1310-01 
 
Parcels: G04=006, G04=007, G04=040, and G04=051 
 
Owners: Pine Cone Investments LLLP, Raymond Penrose Beaumont, June B. 
Beaumont, Mike and Kathy L. Stokes, Georgia Paxton, Stephen L. Paxton, Patricia P. 
Collins, Roger L. Paxton, and Charles E. Paxton. 
 
Applicant: Pine Cone Investments LLLP, Raymond Penrose Beaumont, June B. 
Beaumont, Mike and Kathy L. Stokes, Georgia Paxton, Stephen L. Paxton, Patricia P. 
Collins, Roger L. Paxton, and Charles E. Paxton. 
 
Under subsection 1.7(C) of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), the Planning 
and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate as Local Planning Agency has a duty to make a 
recommendation to the City Commission on all proposed comprehensive plan 
amendments in accordance with the procedure outlined in subsection 1.14(B)(2) and 
the criteria for the approval of comprehensive plan amendments as defined in 
subsection 1.7(D) of the LDRs. 
 
Based upon the testimony and information presented, the Special Magistrate 
recommends approval of the comprehensive plan text amendment and favorable 
recommendation of Ordinance O2013-54 to the City Commission and submittal to the 
State of Florida. 
 
 
Dated:  November ___, 2013 
 
 
 
/Proposed/ 
____________________________ 
Archie O. Lowry, Jr. 
Special Magistrate City of Wildwood 

 

4.a. 
Page 3 of 27



 
City of Wildwood, Florida 

Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 
as Local Planning Agency 

 
The case below was heard on Tuesday, November 5, 2013 by the Special Magistrate. 
The applicant seeks a comprehensive plan text amendment establishing “Regional 
Activity Center” standards and designating the “Trailwinds Village” project as a 
“Regional Activity Center.”  The site is generally located to the northeast of the 
intersection of C-466A (Cleveland Ave) and C-462. 
 
Case:   CP 1310-02 
 
Parcels: G03=004, G04=004, and G04=021 
 
Owners: Word Family, LLC 
 
Applicant: Word Family, LLC 
 
Under subsection 1.7(C) of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), the Planning 
and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate as Local Planning Agency has a duty to make a 
recommendation to the City Commission on all proposed comprehensive plan 
amendments in accordance with the procedure outlined in subsection 1.14(B)(2) and 
the criteria for the approval of comprehensive plan amendments as defined in 
subsection 1.7(D) of the LDRs. 
 
Based upon the testimony and information presented, the Special Magistrate 
recommends approval of the comprehensive plan text amendment and favorable 
recommendation of Ordinance O2013-54 to the City Commission and submittal to the 
State of Florida. 
 
 
Dated:  November ___, 2013 
 
 
 
/Proposed/ 
____________________________ 
Archie O. Lowry, Jr. 
Special Magistrate City of Wildwood 
 

4.a. 
Page 4 of 27



 
Ordinance No. O2013-54 

Establishing Regional Activity Centers  
1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-54 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE 
ELEMENT OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT OF 2011; CREATING 
FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OBJECTIVE 1.7.A AND 
POLICIES 1.7.A.1 THROUGH 1.7.A.4 CONCERNING 
REGIONAL ACTIVITY CENTERS; DESIGNATING THE 
TRAILWINDS VILLAGE PROJECT AND THE WILDWOOD 
COMMONS PROJECT AS REGIONAL ACTIVITY 
CENTERS PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 380.06(2)(E), 
FLORIDA STATUTES, AND RULE 28.24.014(10), FLORIDA 
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 

WHEREAS,  the City may designate specific areas as “Regional Activity 
Centers” pursuant to Chapter 380.06(2)(e), Florida Statutes and Rule 28.24.014(10)(a). 
Florida Administrative Code; 

 
WHEREAS,  the City wishes to amend the Future Land Use Element of the local 

Comprehensive Plan to provide development standards for “Regional Activity Centers;” 
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to designate the Trailwinds Village project as a 

“Regional Activity Center” in the Future Land Use Element; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to designate the Wildwood Commons project as a 

“Regional Activity Center” in the Future Land Use Map Element; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 
 
 

SECTION 1. The text amendments to the Future Land Use Element of the City 
of Wildwood Comprehensive Plan creating Objective 1.7.A and Policies 1.7.A.1 and 
1.7.A.2 are shown in attached “Exhibit A.”  
 

SECTION 2. The text amendment to the Future Land Use Element of the City of 
Wildwood Comprehensive Plan creating Policy 1.7.A.3 designating the Trailwinds 
Village project as a “Regional Activity Center” are shown in the attached “Exhibit B.” 

4.a. 
Page 5 of 27



 
Ordinance No. O2013-54 

Establishing Regional Activity Centers  
2 of 3 

SECTION 3. The text amendment to the Future Land Use Element of the City of 
Wildwood Comprehensive Plan creating Policy 1.7.A.4 designating the Wildwood 
Commons project as a “Regional Activity Center” are shown in the attached “Exhibit C.” 

 
 
SECTION 4. With the recommendations of the Local Planning Agency and the 

City Commission, the proposed amendments are hereby transmitted by the City 
Commission to the state land planning agency. 
 
  

SECTION 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.  
 
  

SECTION 6. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.  
 
  

SECTION 7. This Ordinance, if the amendment is not timely challenged, shall be 
effective 31 days after the state land planning agency notifies the local government that 
the plan amendment package is complete. If timely challenged, this Ordinance shall 
become effective on the date the state land planning agency or the Administration 
Commission enters a final order determining this Ordinance to be in compliance. No 
development orders, development permits, or land uses dependent upon this Ordinance 
may be issued or commenced before it has become effective. If a final order of 
noncompliance is issued by the Administration Commission, this Ordinance may 
nevertheless be made effective by adoption of a resolution affirming its effective status, 
a copy of which resolution shall be sent to the state land planning agency. 
 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2013, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
  
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  
 
 
             
 Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:_______________________ 
     Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   
 

4.a. 
Page 6 of 27



 
Ordinance No. O2013-54 

Establishing Regional Activity Centers  
3 of 3 

First Reading:      
 
 
Second Reading:      
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
      
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 
 

4.a. 
Page 7 of 27



 
 

 
Ordinance O2013-54 

“Exhibit A” 
 Future Land Use Element Objective 1.7.A and Policies 1.7.A.1 and 1.7.A.2 

Designation of Regional Activity Centers 
 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.7.A. Designating Regional Activity Centers. To facilitate an economic 
development strategy that focuses on business creation and expansion, aligns public investments 
and incentives to encourage economic development opportunities that leverage existing City 
assets, and to encourage functional mixed-use development, the City may designate specific 
areas of the City appropriate for intensive growth for compact, high intensity, high density 
developments which may include a mix of the follow uses: retail, office, medical, housing, 
cultural, recreational and entertainment facilities, and hospitality facilities (hotels and motels). 
The City may designate such specific area as a “Regional Activity Center” (RAC) pursuant to 
Chapter 380.06(2)(e), of the Florida Statutes, and Rule 28.24.014(10)(a) of the Florida 
Administrative Code. The designated area shall be consistent with City’s Comprehensive Plan 
and Future Land Use Map intensities, and shall routinely provide service to, or regularly be used 
by, a significant number of citizens of more than one county, contain adequate existing public 
facilities or public committed facilities, and be proximate and accessible to major roadways. 
Regional Activity Centers shall be approved and implemented to provide for intensive and 
coordinated mixed-use development to provide services, including job centers, to service 
proximate areas of high residential densities, and to allow development of the specified land at 
greater density and intensity without obligating the developer to proceed through the 
Development of Regional Impact (DRI) process.  

 
Policy 1.7.A.1  Regional Activity Centers (RAC) shall be designated on the Future Land Use 
Map series as an overlay zone by Comprehensive Plan Amendment which is also consistent with 
Rule 28.24.014(10), F.A.C, and Section 380.06(2)(e) F.S. Regional Activity Centers shall be 
approved and designated based on efficient provision of urban services, creation of development 
nodes utilizing efficient land use patterns, and transition of uses at the outer boundaries of the 
Regional Activity Center, and require mixed-use projects.  
 
Regional Activity Center Development Standards 
 
Policy 1.7.A.2 Regional Activity Center Development Standards. All Regional Activity 
Centers shall be required to obtain a Planned Development zoning. The conceptual development 
plan and development standards shall be incorporated into the Planned Development. 

 

4.a. 
Page 8 of 27



The adoption of a Comprehensive Plan Amendment designating a Regional Activity Center shall 
include a Conceptual Master Plan that promotes physical and functional integration of a mixture 
of land uses and that address, at a minimum, the following: 
 

a. Development of the RAC as a Planned Development (PD); 

b. Provide for a diverse mix of land uses as provided for in Rule 28-24.014(10) F.A.C. 
housing types, densities and intensities; 

c. Locate only in those areas of the City where major employment centers exist or are 
encouraged; 

d. Provide for a transition of land use intensities near the periphery of the RAC to allow for 
and provide compatibility with adjacent land uses; 

e. Locate at or in reasonable proximity to arterial roadways and committed public facilities. 

  

4.a. 
Page 9 of 27



 

 
Ordinance O2013-54 

“Exhibit B” 
Future Land Use Element Policy 1.7.A.3 
Designating the Trailwinds Village RAC 

 

Policy 1.7.A.3 Designation of Trailwinds Village Regional Activity Center. The City hereby 
designates the Trailwinds Village project as a Regional Activity Center. Trailwinds Village 
satisfies the parameters for a Regional Activity Center as defined in Section 380.06(2)(a), 
Florida Statutes, and Rule 28-24.014(10)(c)(2) Florida Administrative Code. Land uses for the 
Regional Activity Center can be accommodated by the currently designated the current Central 
Mixed Use future land use category on the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan, 
and development shall occur consistent with the land use policies within the Comprehensive 
Plan, and shall occur under a Planned Development (PD) zoning.  
 
  

4.a. 
Page 10 of 27



Ordinance O2013-54 
“Exhibit C” 

Future Land Use Element Policy 1.7.A.4 
Designating the Wildwood Commons RAC 

 
Policy 1.7.A.4 Designation of Wildwood Commons Regional Activity Center. The City 
hereby designates the Wildwood Commons project as a Regional Activity Center. Wildwood 
Commons satisfies the parameters for a Regional Activity Center as defined in Section 
380.06(2)(a), Florida Statutes, and Rule 28-24.014(10)(c)(2) Florida Administrative Code. Land 
uses for the Regional Activity Center can be accommodated by the currently designated the 
current Central Mixed Use future land use category on the Future Land Use Map of the 
Comprehensive Plan, and development shall occur consistent with the land use policies within 
the Comprehensive Plan, and shall occur under a Planned Development (PD) zoning.  
 

4.a. 
Page 11 of 27



Legend
Trailwinds

Wildwood Commons

City of Wildwood

JPA/Future Land Use
Conservation

AG-5

AG-10

Recreation

Rural Residential

LDR

LMDR

MDR

MHDR

HDR

RIO

RMU

MHP

PF

Commercial

Industrial

466-301 Mixed Use

ONMU

ORMU

ONC

CMU

CCMU

ECNMU

EBPMU

SWNMU

Wildwood Springs DRI

Landstone DRI

Villages of Wildwood DRI

Lake Miona

Lake Deaton

Lake Okahumpka

Lake Panasoffkee

®
1 inch = 6,205 feet

City of Wildwood
Regional Activity Centers

Map 1-13

Wildwood 
Commons

Trailwinds

4.a. 
Page 12 of 27



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Trailwinds Village 

 

Regional Activity Center Designation 

 

Case Number: CP 1310-02 

 

Supporting Documentation 

4.a. 
Page 13 of 27



 
CITY OF WILDWOOD 

Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 
Acting as the Local Planning Agency 

 
Case No:    CP 1310-02 
 
Parcel Number(s):  G04=021; G04=004; G03=004  
 
Property Location: CR 466A – West of CR 462 and Powell Road  
 
Owner:   Word Family LLC 
 
Applicant:   Word Family LLC (Tommy Word) 
 
The applicant seeks approval and a favorable recommendation from the Planning and Zoning 
Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local Planning Agency for a text amendment to the 
Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan designating the property associated with 
the Trailwinds Village development as a Regional Activity Center (RAC) pursuant to F.S. 
380.06(2)(e) and Rule 28.24.014(10), F.A.C.  
 
Designating the Trailwinds Village project as a RAC increases the amount of development that 
may be approved within the project without having to undergo the Development of Regional 
Impact (DRI) review process. Designating the property as a RAC does not increase the amount 
of development potential that is currently permissible under the property’s Future Land Use Map 
designation. Any development that may occur must meet the requirements of the Central Mixed 
Use land use designation. 
 
The applicant has submitted a subsequent application for an amendment to the approved 
Trailwinds Village Planned Development which increases the development entitlements pursuant 
to the RAC thresholds for a mixed use development.  The amendment to the Planned 
Development will be brought to the Planning and Zoning Board for consideration at a later time. 
 
Staff believes the proposed amendment should be granted based on the following criteria found 
in Section 1.7(D) of the Land Development Regulations:  
 

(1) Justification of the proposed amendment has been adequately presented; 
The text amendment designating the property as a RAC is necessary to accommodate 
the proposed increase in development entitlements. The applicant has provided 
additional justification and documentation in support of this amendment.  

(2) The proposed amendment is not inconsistent with the goals, objectives and policies of 
the comprehensive plan; 

The proposed amendment is consistent with goals, objectives and policies of the 
Comprehensive Plan. The property is required to meet the density, intensity, and 
mixture of land use standards within the Central Mixed Use land use designation. 
Further, the proposed amendment is consistent with the intent of the Comprehensive 
Plan in encouraging the economic development through the expansion of business 
development within Downtown.  

4.a. 
Page 14 of 27



(3) T
energ

T
in
re
la

(4) T
syste

T
sy
p

(5) T
schoo

T
se
p
d
a
m
p

 
Section 2
the Trailw
a favora
Regiona
forwarde
 
The Plan
duty to m
pursuant
 
This offic
NOTICES
property 
Board at
property.
Commerc
 
DATED:  

  
 

The propose
gy inefficient

The amendm
nefficient lan
esult in a de
and use desi
The proposed
ems;  
The proposed
ystems. The
roperty subj

The proposed
ols or other 

The propose
ervices.  Th
roject. The 
eveloper wil
n increase in

mitigation w
roject is not

2 of Ordinan
winds Village
able recom
al Activity 
ed to the City

nning and Zo
make recomm
t to the Sect

ce has duly 
S in the City

owners adj
t City Hall, 
.  A notice o
cial) on Octo

 Octob

 

ed amendm
t land use pa

ment is not c
nd use patte
enser, more 
gnation.    
d amendme

d amendmen
e subject pro
ject to the a
d amendmen
public facilit
d amendme
he City has
applicant ha
ll be extend
n traffic in t
ill be requi
t expected to

nce O2013-5
e project as 
mendation
Center an

y Commissio

oning Board
mendations 
ion 1.7(D) o

noticed this
y of Wildwo
joining the 
on the bull
of this meet
ober 25, 201

ber 31, 2013 

  

ent should 
attern; 
considered u
ern. The des
efficient lan

nt will not h

nt will not h
operty conta
mendment i
nt will not ad
ies without p
ent will not
s adequate 
as entered i
ing utility se
he area. Ho
red during 
o have an im

54 adopts F
a Regional A

n of the des
nd approv
on for furthe

d/Special Ma
to the City C

of the Land D

s meeting a
ood. Notice 
property in

letin board 
ting was pub
13. 

______
Jason M
Develop

not be con

urban spraw
signation of 
d use patter

have an adv

have an adv
ains an isola
s located in 
dversely affe
providing re
t adversely 
capacity w
into a Utility
ervices to th
owever, adve

the Planne
mpact on the

Future Land 
Activity Cent
signation o
val of Ord
r action. 

gistrate acti
Commission 
Development

s prescribed
of Hearing 
 question. 
at the Wild
blished in a 

 

___________
McHugh 
pment Servi

nsidered urb

wl, and it do
the RAC on

rn consisten

verse effect 

verse effect 
ated wetland

an area suit
ect transport
medies to co
affect the 
ithin its sys
y Agreemen
he property. 
erse traffic im
ed Developm
e school syst

Use Elemen
ter. Staff re

of the Trailw
inance O2

ing as the L
on all comp

t Regulation

d by City of 
has been s
Notice has 

dwood Post 
newspaper 

__________

ces Coordina

ban sprawl 

oes not exem
n the subjec
t with the C

on environm

on environm
d that will be
table for dev
tation, potab
orrect the sy
City’s wate
stems to ac

nt with the C
The amend

mpacts will 
ment review
tem. 

nt Policy 1.7
ecommend
winds Villa
2013-54 (a

Local Plannin
prehensive p
ns. 

f Wildwood C
sent via Cer
been poste
Office, and
of general 

 

________ 

ator/ City Pl

or exemplif

mplify an en
ct property w
Central Mixed

mentally sen

mentally sen
e preserved
velopment. 
ble water, se
ystem or fac
r or wastew
ccommodate
City in which
dment may c
be identified

w. The prop

7.A.3 design
ds approval
age project
attached), t

ng Agency h
plan amendm

Code for PU
rtified Mail t
ed on the N
d on the su
circulation (

anner 

fy an 

nergy 
would 
d Use 

nsitive 

nsitive 
. The 

ewer, 
cility. 
water 
e the 
h the 
cause 
d and 
posed 

nating 
l and 
t as a 
to be 

has a 
ments 

UBLIC 
to all 

Notice 
ubject 
(Daily 

4.a. 
Page 15 of 27



Trailwinds Village Page 1 of 5 
RAC & PD Amendment Narrative (9/27/2013) 
AVID Group Project No. 0007-077 

PROJECT NARRATIVE AND 

JUSTIFICATION FOR 

TRAILWINDS VILLAGE RAC & PD AMENDMENT 

 

 

Project Description: 

 

The project site comprises 157.02 acres located on the north side of CR-466A, between CR-

462A/Powell Road and S Buena Vista Boulevard. The property has CMU (Central Mixed Use) 

future land use designation. In February 2012, the property was rezoned from CMU to PD 

(Planned Development) by City of Wildwood Ordinance No. 2012-07. The City's 

comprehensive plan and code requires CMU properties to be rezoned/master planned to PD in 

order to develop them. 

 

The applicant is requesting a comprehensive plan amendment to designate the property as a 

RAC (Regional Activity Center) pursuant to Chapter 380.06(2)(e) of the Florida Statutes and 

Rule 28.24.014(10) of the Florida Administrative Code, along with a corresponding 

amendment to the PD zoning approval in order to develop the property with approximately 450 

residential dwelling units (assisted living/skilled nursing and independent living), 500,000 sq.ft 

of commercial sales, and 200,000 sq.ft of commercial office uses. Additional density/intensity 

is allowed pursuant to the RAC thresholds for a mixed use development, however it is not 

anticipated that the maximum intensity will be achieved based on the proposed uses. The 

attached RAC map exhibit provides the conceptual mixture of uses. 

 

The land area and residential unit/nonresidential square footage breakdowns are listed in detail 

on the Sheet 1 (cover sheet) of the PD Concept Plan. The cover sheet also contains a land use 

equivalency matrix (based on net new 2-way trip generation) to allow some adjustment of land 

uses at time of development in order to address market conditions, site design, and/or 

regulatory agency permitting requirements. Any such adjustment shall be made pursuant to the 

land use equivalency matrix and demonstration that the proposed mix of uses will be in 

compliance with the range of required CMU mixed use land area requirements (the 

minimum/maximum land area requirements are listed on the plan) and the RAC/DRI thresholds 

for a mixed use development. 

 

In order to demonstrate that the entire property can be developed in compliance with the CMU 

mix of use acreage requirements (Comprehensive Plan FLUE Policy 1.3.3), the entire property 

is included in this application as one phase of development for the purpose of allocating land 

use areas and coordinating the location of anticipated master infrastructure needs (roads, 

stormwater, and utilities). Once the master infrastructure has been permitted and constructed, 

each parcel/outparcel may then be permitted to accommodate its specific occupant(s). 

 

Sheet 2 of the PD Concept Plan depicts the general project layout and an acreage table for each 

land use. The project will have a 25' wide landscape buffer along the CR-466A property 

frontage and along project perimeters that abut residential lots within the Villages DRI. A 20' 

wide landscape buffer will be provided along the other project perimeters. Internal to the 

project, there will be 10' wide landscape buffers along each side of the internal roads, as well as 

4.a. 
Page 16 of 27



Trailwinds Village Page 2 of 5 
RAC & PD Amendment Narrative (9/27/2013) 
AVID Group Project No. 0007-077 

between changes in residential, commercial sales, and commercial office use if not separated 

by a stormwater pond and/or park tract. The private roads, master stormwater ponds and parks 

will be platted as common area tracts to be owned and maintained by one or more property 

owners' associations. 

 

The private roads within the development provide interconnectivity between the land use areas, 

including public access for the six existing single-family homes/lots located along NE 57
th
 

Drive which is a landlocked public right-of-way. The project's points of ingress/egress from 

CR-466A are depicted on the PD concept plan and the individual uses shall only take vehicular 

access from the internal roadways. Within each internal road right-of-way, there will be a 12' 

wide asphalt multi-use trail on one side of the road, as depicted on the typical internal roadway 

section. 

 

The internal public road rights-of-way will also contain the proposed public utility lines 

(potable water, sanitary sewer, and reclaimed water) and the central sanitary sewer lift station, 

which will be sized to serve the entire development and the six abutting residential lots, if they 

desire to connect as well. The developer will enter into a utility agreement with the City of 

Wildwood to extend the City's potable water, reclaimed water, and sanitary sewer service from 

their existing locations near the CR-466A and CR-462A/Powell Road intersection to the 

locations shown on the plan. The City has adequate capacity within its plants and transmission 

systems to accommodate the proposed development. 

 

There will be several parks and linear park areas distributed throughout the development to 

serve the residential, commercial sales and office uses. The linear parks will contain a 

pedestrian loop trail and may have amenity features such as benches, picnic shelters, and/or 

exercise stations along them in order to take advantage of the aesthetics of the large open space 

areas provided by constructing wet ponds as the development's master stormwater management 

system. The existing wetland/depressional area located on the eastern side of the property will 

be preserved during development as a passive park/amenity feature. 

 

Sheet 3 of the PD Concept Plan depicts the anticipated building and parking layout within each 

land use area. The residential land use area is anticipated to be developed with a mixture of 

multi-story building types containing two types of residential uses: assisted living/skilled 

nursing facilities (3 beds equals 1 dwelling unit for density purposes) and senior independent 

living units (most likely a mix of 1 and 2 bedroom apartments and/or condominiums). The 

commercial office land use areas are anticipated to be developed with medical and/or 

general/professional office in a mixture of single and/or multi-story buildings. The concept plan 

depicts an office complex setting which would provide space for the greatest variety of 

medical, general, and professional office users but the developer could consolidate square 

footage to develop these areas with fewer, larger multi-story buildings in order to accommodate 

larger medical or corporate office users. The commercial sales land use area is anticipated to be 

developed with an anchored retail shopping center and outparcels that provide a variety of 

products and services to the public. It is anticipated that portions of the commercial sales land 

use area may be developed with other compatible uses such as offices, hotels/motels, and/or 

additional assisted living/skilled nursing facilities. 

 

4.a. 
Page 17 of 27



Trailwinds Village Page 3 of 5 
RAC & PD Amendment Narrative (9/27/2013) 
AVID Group Project No. 0007-077 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment (RAC Overlay) Review Criteria: 

 

Pursuant to City of Wildwood Land Development Regulations Section 1.7(D), the Local 

Planning Agency shall consider the following review criteria and make recommendation to the 

City Commission. In furtherance of this code requirement, the applicant’s professional 

planning and engineering consultants find the following in support of this application. 

 

(1) Justification of the proposed amendment has been adequately presented;  

 

Applicant’s finding: The plans and other support documents submitted by the applicant for 

the applications for RAC designation and companion PD zoning concept plan amendment 

provide sufficient justification to support the proposed comprehensive plan amendment to 

create a RAC designation on the property. 

 

(2) The proposed amendment is not inconsistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the 

comprehensive plan;  

 

Applicant’s finding: The requested RAC designation is consistent with the mixed use 

development pattern and range of minimum/maximum density and intensity standards that 

are required to develop within the CMU future land use category, as enumerated in FLUE 

Table 1-1 and Policies 1.3.3 and 1.3.4. 

 

(3) The proposed amendment should not be considered urban sprawl or exemplify an energy 

inefficient land use pattern; 

 

Applicant’s finding: The RAC and companion PD amendment provide for a denser, more 

efficient land use pattern consistent with the CMU future land use category. 

 

(4) The proposed amendment will not have an adverse effect on environmentally sensitive 

systems; and  

 

Applicant’s finding: The only environmentally sensitive feature, an existing wetland/ 

depressional area located on the eastern side of the property, will be preserved during 

development as a passive park/amenity feature. 

 

(5) The proposed amendment will not adversely affect transportation, potable water, sewer, 

schools or other public facilities without providing remedies to correct the system or 

facility.  

 

Applicant’s finding: As discussed in the zoning review criteria below, the RAC and PD 

amendment will not create excessive traffic congestion or other detriment to public safety 

and the City has adequate plant and transmission capacity to provide water, sewer, and 

reclaimed service to the property. The applicant will be entering into a utility agreement for 

the proportionate share of the cost to extend these services from CR-139/Powell Road to 

the property and the developer will construct the on-site improvements. 

 

4.a. 
Page 18 of 27



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
OCTOBER 2013 EXISTING FUTURE LAND USE

TRAILWINDS
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\E
xis

tin
g &

 P
rop

os
ed

 FL
U\

Ex
ist

ing
 FL

U 
- T

rai
lw

ind
s.m

xd
 - 1

1/4
/20

13
 9:

18
:20

 AM
 - t

on
ea

l

C-44A

E SR 44

C-466A

C
-4

6
2 

E
P

O
W

E
LL

 R
D

C
R

 1
27

CR 134

S
 B

U
E

N
A

 V
IS

TA
 B

LV
D

HUEY ST

CR 156

S
T

 C
H

A
R

LE
S

 P
L

CR 144

CR 132

N
E

 4
4t

h 
D

R

CR 142

C
R

 1
33

C
R

 1
77

G
R

A
Y

 A
V

E

NE 53rd BLVD

P
H

IL
LI

P
S

 L
N

C
R

 1
54

A

C
R

 1
54

B

DORST LN

CR 134B

N
E

 5
7t

h 
D

R

S
 S

T
 C

LA
IR

 S
T

BROKEN OAK DR

C
R

 1
79

NE 81st BLVD

CLEVELAND AVE/C-466A

B
A

C
H

M
A

N
 P

A
T

H

W
IL

LI
A

M
S

B
U

R
G

 L
N

LOW
ELL TER

ANSLEY PATH

MONACO WAY

BARWICK ST

C
R

 1
29

N
E 

54
th

 B
LV

D

ODESSA CIR

C
R

 1
73

CR 154

BALDWIN RUN

MAGNOLIA ST

S
IG

N
A

T
U

R
E

 D
R

E
D

G
E

M
O

O
R

 T
E

R

C
R

 1
73

 E

N
E

 5
6t

h 
D

R

N
E

 4
8t

h 
D

R

ELTON PL

RIDGE AVE

CR 134C
KANE PL

FAIRVIEW LN

PINNACLE PL

QUINN LN

VASSAR LN

H
A

M
E

S
 L

N

BURNSED BLVD

A
D

E
LP

H
I A

V
E

Y
A

LA
H

A
 A

V
E

S
 P

A
L

M
E

R
 D

R

PEACEFUL PL

S
H

A
N

E
W

O
O

D
 C

T

N
E

 4
2n

d 
T

E
R

MEADOW ST

CHESAPEAKE PL

LEXINGTON CIR

N
 S

T
 C

L
A

IR
 S

T

WAYLAND ST

LA
N

S
IN

G
 D

R

G
L

A
D

IO
LA

S
 C

T

H
A

N
C

O
C

K
 D

R

NE 82nd AVE

E SR 44

C-44A

S
 B

U
E

N
A

 V
IS

TA
 B

LV
D

B
A

L
D

W
IN

 R
U

N

Legend
Trailwinds

City of Wildwood

V-WW

V-WW

REC

CMU

CMU

COM

4.a. 
Page 19 of 27



CR 466 A

R / I

R / C / O / I

THE VILLAGES
(NOT INCLUDED)

THE VILLAGES
(NOT INCLUDED)

THE VILLAGES
(NOT INCLUDED)

T
H

E
 V

IL
L
A

G
E

S
(N

O
T

 I
N

C
L
U

D
E

D
)

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS
OS

OS

OS

R / I
C / O

C / O C / O C / O C / O C / O C / O

R / C / O / IR / C / O / I

R / I

OS

GROUP R

CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND PLANNING

TRAFFIC/TRANSPORTATION
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES

SURVEYING
GIS

2300 CURLEW ROAD STE 201
PALM HARBOR, FLORIDA
34683

PHONE (727) 789-9500
FAX (727) 784-6662
AVIDGROUP.COM

K:\PROJECTS\000\007077\DWG\CURRENT\PLANNING\20130927_0007077 PD RAC EXHIBITS.DWG, 10/26/2010 8:15:09 AM, Peter Pensa

REGIONAL ACTIVITY CENTER

TRAILWINDS
VILLAGE

LEGEND
INTERNAL ROAD NETWORK

R RESIDENTIAL
C RETAIL / COMMERCIAL
O OFFICE
I MEDICAL / INSTITUTIONAL
OS OPEN SPACE (STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT & PARKS)

NOTE: DEVELOPMENT AREAS AND USES SHOWN ARE
APPROXIMATE AND SUBJCET TO CHANGE DURING
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) ZONING REVIEW. USES
SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE CENTRAL MIXED USE
(CMU) FUTURE LAND USE CATEGORY.

4.a. 
Page 20 of 27



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wildwood Commons 

 

Regional Activity Center Designation 

 

Case Number: CP 1310-01 

 

Supporting Documentation 

4.a. 
Page 21 of 27



 
CITY OF WILDWOOD 

Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 
Acting as the Local Planning Agency 

 
Case No:    CP 1310-01 
 
Parcel Number(s):  G04=021; G04=004; G03=004  
 
Property Location: NE corner of the CR 462/CR 466A Intersection  
 
Owner:   Beaumont, Paxton, Stokes 
 
Applicant:   Beaumont, Paxton, Stokes 
 
The applicant seeks approval and a favorable recommendation from the Planning and Zoning 
Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local Planning Agency for a text amendment to the 
Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan designating the property associated with 
the Wildwood Commons development as a Regional Activity Center (RAC) pursuant to F.S. 
380.06(2)(e) and Rule 28.24.014(10), F.A.C.  
 
Designating the Wildwood Commons project as a RAC increases the amount of development 
that could be approved within the project without having to undergo the Development of 
Regional Impact (DRI) review process. Designating the property as a RAC does not increase the 
amount of development potential that is currently permissible under the property’s Future Land 
Use Map designation. Any development that may occur must meet the requirements of the 
Central Mixed Use land use designation. 
 
An application for a Planned Development with an associated master plan consistent with the 
Central Mixed Use land use designation is required prior to the property moving forward with 
development. The application for a Planned Development requires review by the Planning and 
Zoning Board.  
 
Staff believes the proposed amendment should be granted based on the following criteria found 
in Section 1.7(D) of the Land Development Regulations:  

(1) Justification of the proposed amendment has been adequately presented; 
The applicant has provided sufficient justification for the proposed text amendment. The 
text amendment designating the property as a RAC will increase the amount of 
development that may occur on the site without having to go through the extensive and 
expensive Development of Regional Impact (DRI) review process.   

(2) The proposed amendment is not inconsistent with the goals, objectives and policies of 
the comprehensive plan; 

The proposed amendment is consistent with goals, objectives and policies of the 
Comprehensive Plan. The property is required to meet the density, intensity, and 
mixture of land use standards within the Central Mixed Use land use designation.  

(3) The proposed amendment should not be considered urban sprawl or exemplify an 
energy inefficient land use pattern; 

4.a. 
Page 22 of 27



T
in
re
la

(4) T
syste

T
sy
fl
p
b
p
ac

(5) T
schoo

T
se
p
a
a
in
re

 
Section 3
the Wildw
and a f
project 
to be forw
 
The Plan
duty to m
pursuant
 
This offic
NOTICES
property 
Board at
property.
Commerc
 
DATED:  

  
 

The amendm
nefficient lan
esult in a de
and use desi
The proposed
ems;  
The proposed
ystems. Pre
oodplain. Th
reserved or 
e studied an
rojects locat
cres in size. 

The proposed
ols or other 

The propose
ervices.  Th
roject. The 
rea to the T
ppropriately
n the area. 
equired durin

3 of Ordinan
wood Comm
favorable r
as a Regio
warded to th

nning and Zo
make recomm
t to the Sect

ce has duly 
S in the City

owners adj
t City Hall, 
.  A notice o
cial) on Octo

 Octob

 

ment is not c
nd use patte
enser, more 
gnation.    
d amendme

d amendmen
eliminary an
he applicant 
utilized for s

nd addressed
ted in the C
   

d amendmen
public facilit
d amendme
he City has
City’s utility

Trailwinds Vil
 to handle b
However, ad
ng the Plann

nce O2013-5
mons project
recommend

onal Activity
he City Com

oning Board
mendations 
ion 1.7(D) o

noticed this
y of Wildwo
joining the 
on the bull
of this meet
ober 25, 201

ber 31, 2013 

  

considered u
ern. The des
efficient lan

nt will not h

nt will not h
nalysis ident

has stated 
stormwater 
d during the

Central Mixed

nt will not ad
ies without p
ent will not
s adequate 
y lines will b
lage project

both projects
dverse traff
ned Develop

54 adopts F
t as a Regio
dation of
y Center an
mission for f

d/Special Ma
to the City C

of the Land D

s meeting a
ood. Notice 
property in

letin board 
ting was pub
13. 

______
Jason M
Develop

urban spraw
signation of 
d use patter

have an adv

have an adv
tifies an are
during the d
managemen

e Planned De
d Use land 

dversely affe
providing re
t adversely 
capacity w

be brought f
t (adjacent t
s.   The ame
ic impacts w
ment review

Future Land 
onal Activity 
the design
nd approva
further actio

gistrate acti
Commission 
Development

s prescribed
of Hearing 
 question. 
at the Wild
blished in a 

 

___________
McHugh 
pment Servi

wl, and it do
the RAC on

rn consisten

verse effect 

verse effect 
ea of the p
developmen
nt. All poten
evelopment 
use designa

ect transport
medies to co
affect the 
ithin its sys
from the CR
to the east). 
endment ma
will be ident
w.  

Use Elemen
Center. Sta

nation of t
al of Ordina
on. 

ing as the L
on all comp

t Regulation

d by City of 
has been s
Notice has 

dwood Post 
newspaper 

 

__________

ces Coordina

oes not exem
n the subjec
t with the C

on environm

on environm
property loc
t of the site
tial environm
review whic

ation that ar

tation, potab
orrect the sy
City’s wate
stems to ac
R 462/CR 46
The utility l
y cause an i
tified and m

nt Policy 1.7
aff recomm
the Wildw
ance O201

Local Plannin
prehensive p
ns. 

f Wildwood C
sent via Cer
been poste
Office, and
of general 

________ 

ator/ City Pl

mplify an en
ct property w
Central Mixed

mentally sen

mentally sen
cated within
e this area w
mental issue
ch is require
re larger tha

ble water, se
ystem or fac
r or wastew
ccommodate
66A/Powell 
lines will be 
increase in t

mitigation ma

7.A.4 design
mends appr
wood Comm

3-54 (attac

ng Agency h
plan amendm

Code for PU
rtified Mail t
ed on the N
d on the su
circulation (

anner 

nergy 
would 
d Use 

nsitive 

nsitive 
n the 
will be 
es will 
ed for 
an 10 

ewer, 
cility. 
water 
e the 
Road 
sized 

traffic 
ay be 

nating 
roval 
mons 
ched), 

has a 
ments 

UBLIC 
to all 

Notice 
ubject 
(Daily 

4.a. 
Page 23 of 27



Wildwood Commons Page 1 of 2 
RAC Narrative (9/27/2013) 
AVID Group Project No. 0007-077 

PROJECT NARRATIVE AND 

JUSTIFICATION FOR AMENDMENT OF 

WILDWOOD COMMONS RAC 

 

 

Project Description: 

 

The project site comprises four parcel totaling 146.47 acres located at the northeast corner of 

CR-466A and CR-462A/Powell Road. The property has CMU (Central Mixed Use) future land 

use and CMU zoning designations.  

 

The applicants are requesting a comprehensive plan amendment to designate the property as a 

RAC (Regional Activity Center) pursuant to Chapter 380.06(2)(e) of the Florida Statutes and 

Rule 28.24.014(10) of the Florida Administrative Code in order to eventually develop the 

properties as a mixed use development. The adjoining property to the east (different ownership) 

has an application pending for RAC designation as well, and the properties to the north and 

south are part of the Villages DRI. 

 

The City's comprehensive plan and code requires CMU properties to be rezoned/master 

planned to PD (Planned Development) in order to develop them. However, the owners intend to 

continue the current residential and agricultural uses of their respective properties until such 

time that there are plans to develop the properties. The attached RAC map exhibit provides the 

conceptual mixture of future uses. When developed, the project will need to be in compliance 

with the range of required CMU mixed use land area requirements (minimum/maximum land 

area requirements) and the RAC thresholds (minimum/maximum densities and intensities) for a 

mixed use development. 

 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment (RAC Overlay) Review Criteria: 

 

Pursuant to City of Wildwood Land Development Regulations Section 1.7(D), the Local 

Planning Agency shall consider the following review criteria and make recommendation to the 

City Commission. In furtherance of this code requirement, the applicant’s professional 

planning and engineering consultants find the following in support of this application. 

 

(1) Justification of the proposed amendment has been adequately presented;  
 

Applicant’s finding: The RAC plan and other support documents submitted by the applicant 

provides sufficient justification to support the proposed comprehensive plan amendment to 

create a RAC designation on the property. 

 

4.a. 
Page 24 of 27



Wildwood Commons Page 2 of 2 
RAC Narrative (9/27/2013) 
AVID Group Project No. 0007-077 

(2) The proposed amendment is not inconsistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the 
comprehensive plan;  

 

Applicant’s finding: The requested RAC designation is consistent with the mixed use 

development pattern and range of minimum/maximum density and intensity standards that 

are required to develop within the CMU future land use category, as enumerated in FLUE 

Table 1-1 and Policies 1.3.3 and 1.3.4. 

 

(3) The proposed amendment should not be considered urban sprawl or exemplify an energy 
inefficient land use pattern; 

 

Applicant’s finding: The RAC designation provides for the ability to create a denser, more 

efficient land use pattern consistent with the CMU future land use category. 

 

(4) The proposed amendment will not have an adverse effect on environmentally sensitive 
systems; and  

 

Applicant’s finding: The only environmentally sensitive feature, an existing wetland/ 

depressional area located near the middle of the property will be preserved during 

development as part of the stormwater management system and/or as a passive park/ 

amenity feature. 

 

(5) The proposed amendment will not adversely affect transportation, potable water, sewer, 
schools or other public facilities without providing remedies to correct the system or 

facility.  

 

Applicant’s finding: The RAC designation will not create excessive traffic congestion or 

other detriment to public safety and the City has adequate plant and transmission capacity 

to provide water, sewer, and reclaimed service to the property. The impacts of development 

will be evaluated at time of PD rezoning. There are already plans to extend public utilities 

past/through the property in order to serve the abutting property to the east.  

 

 

4.a. 
Page 25 of 27



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
OCTOBER 2013 EXISTING FUTURE LAND USE

WILDWOOD COMMONS
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\E
xis

tin
g &

 P
rop

os
ed

 FL
U\

Ex
ist

ing
 FL

U 
-W

ild
wo

od
 C

om
mo

ns
.m

xd
 - 1

0/3
1/2

01
3 3

:53
:43

 P
M 

- to
ne

al

C-44A

E SR 44

C-466A

C
-4

6
2 

E
P

O
W

E
LL

 R
D

C
R

 1
27

CR 134

S
 B

U
E

N
A

 V
IS

TA
 B

LV
D

HUEY ST

ST CHARLES PL

CR 156

CR 144

CR 132

N
E

 4
4t

h 
D

R

CR 142

C
R

 1
33

C
R

 1
77

G
R

A
Y

 A
V

E

NE 53rd BLVD

P
H

IL
LI

P
S

 L
N

C
R

 1
54

A

C
R

 1
54

B

DORST LN

CR 134B

N
E

 5
7t

h 
D

R

B
A

IL
E

Y
 T

R
L

S
 S

T
 C

LA
IR

 S
T

BROKEN OAK DR

C
R

 1
79

NE 81st BLVD

B
A

C
H

M
A

N
 P

A
T

H

W
IL

LI
A

M
S

B
U

R
G

 L
N

LOW
ELL TER

ANSLEY PATH

CLEVELAND AVE/C-466A

C
R

 1
29

N
E 

54
th

 B
LV

D

ODESSA CIR

C
R

 1
73

CR 154

BARWICK ST

BALDWIN RUN

S
IG

N
A

T
U

R
E

 D
R

E
D

G
E

M
O

O
R

 T
E

R

JUDY AVE

C
R

 1
73

 E

N
E

 5
6t

h 
D

R

N
E

 4
8t

h 
D

R

ELTON PL

RIDGE AVE

CR 134C

ARROBES PL

KANE PL

FAIRVIEW LN

PINNACLE PL

QUINN LN

VASSAR LN

BURNSED BLVD

ANTIGUA PL

PEACEFUL PL

S
H

A
N

E
W

O
O

D
 C

T

MEADOW ST

CHESAPEAKE PL

N
 S

T
 C

L
A

IR
 S

T

WAYLAND ST

LA
N

S
IN

G
 D

R

H
A

N
C

O
C

K
 D

R

NE 82nd AVE

E SR 44

S
 B

U
E

N
A

 V
IS

TA
 B

LV
D

C-44A

Legend
Wildwood Commons

City of Wildwood

CMU

COM

V-WW

REC

V-WW

R-3

PF

4.a. 
Page 26 of 27



P
IN

E
L

L
A

S
 P

L
A

C
E

P
O

W
E

L
L

 R
D

.
C

-4
6
2

S
A

R
A

S
O

T
A

 S
T

CR 466 A

THE VILLAGES
(NOT INCLUDED)

THE VILLAGES
(NOT INCLUDED)

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 W

IL
D

W
O

O
D

R / O / I

R / I

C / O

OS

OS

OS

R / C / O / I

C / O

C / O

C / OC / O

C / O

R / O / I

R / O / I

GROUP R

CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND PLANNING

TRAFFIC/TRANSPORTATION
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES

SURVEYING
GIS

2300 CURLEW ROAD STE 201
PALM HARBOR, FLORIDA
34683

PHONE (727) 789-9500
FAX (727) 784-6662
AVIDGROUP.COM

K:\PROJECTS\000\007077\DWG\CURRENT\PLANNING\20130927_0007077 PD RAC EXHIBITS.DWG, 10/26/2010 8:15:09 AM, Peter Pensa

REGIONAL ACTIVITY CENTER

WILDWOOD
COMMONS

LEGEND
INTERNAL ROAD NETWORK

R RESIDENTIAL
C RETAIL / COMMERCIAL
O OFFICE
I MEDICAL / INSTITUTIONAL
OS OPEN SPACE (STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT & PARKS)

NOTE: DEVELOPMENT AREAS AND USES SHOWN ARE
APPROXIMATE AND SUBJCET TO CHANGE DURING
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) ZONING REVIEW. USES
SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE CENTRAL MIXED USE
(CMU) FUTURE LAND USE CATEGORY.

4.a. 
Page 27 of 27



 

 

CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Piedmont Companies, Inc. Comp. Plan Amendment, CP 1309-01 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Approval of Ordinance O2013-50. 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 11/11/13 First Reading 

11/25/13 Adoption 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant, Piedmont Companies, Inc., seeks approval for a Small Scale Future Land Use Map 
Amendment to the adopted Comprehensive Plan.  On November 5, 2013 the case was heard before 
the Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local Planning Agency in which the 
Special Magistrate recommended approval of Ordinance O2013-50.  Staff also recommends 
approval of Ordinance 02013-50 (attached). 
 
The 0.25 +/- acre subject parcel is intended to be utilized in conjunction with surrounding parcels that 
already have a “Commercial” future land use for a retail development.  The amendment reassigns the 
property from Sumter County “Rural Residential” to City “Commercial.” Subject to approval of this 
small-scale land use change approval, the applicant has submitted a rezoning application for 
consideration. 
 
Staff believes a Future Land Use Map designation of “Commercial” is appropriate based on the 
intended use of the property and should be approved for the following reasons: 

 Justification of the proposed amendment has been adequately presented; 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the 

comprehensive plan;  
 The subject amendment does not meet the criteria of urban sprawl or exemplify an energy 

inefficient land use pattern; 
 The proposed amendment will not have an adverse effect on environmentally sensitive 

systems; 
 The proposed amendment will not adversely affect transportation, potable water, sewer, 

schools, or other public facilities without providing remedies to correct the system or facility. 

6.a. 
Page 1 of 10



Page 2 of 2 
Piedmont Companies, Inc., SSCPA CP 1309-01 

Executive Summary 

 

 
 
 
 
 
The attached maps illustrate the subject parcel’s relation to the surrounding area as well as the 
existing and proposed Future Land Use Map designations within the vicinity. 
 

 
Jason McHugh 
Development Services Coordinator 
 
 

6.a. 
Page 2 of 10



 
 

City of Wildwood, Florida 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

as Local Planning Agency 
 
The case below was heard on Tuesday, November 5th, 2013 by the Special Magistrate. 
The applicant seeks a small scale comprehensive plan amendment from County Rural 
Residential to City Commercial on 0.25 +/- acres.  The site is generally located to the 
northwest of the intersection of C-466 and C-105. 
 
Case:   CP 1309-01 
 
Parcel: D17=007 
 
Owner: Toni and Ted F. Lovett 
 
Applicant: Piedmont Companies, Inc. 
 
Under subsection 1.7(C) of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), the Planning 
and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate as Local Planning Agency has a duty to make a 
recommendation to the City Commission on all proposed comprehensive plan 
amendments in accordance with the procedure outlined in subsection 1.14(B)(2) and 
the criteria for the approval of comprehensive plan amendments as defined in 
subsection 1.7(D) of the LDRs. 
 
Based upon the testimony and information presented, the Special Magistrate 
recommends approval of the small scale land use map amendment and favorable 
recommendation of Ordinance O2013-50 to the City Commission. 
 
 
Dated:  November ____, 2013 
 
 
 
/Proposed/ 
____________________________ 
Archie O. Lowry, Jr. 
Special Magistrate City of Wildwood 

6.a. 
Page 3 of 10



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
OCTOBER 2013 LOCATION MAP

D17=007
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 360 720

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - D

17
=0

07
.m

xd
 - 1

0/3
0/2

01
3 1

2:1
7:3

6 P
M 

- to
ne

al

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

C-466 E

C
R

 1
05

CR 204

C
R

 2
03

CR 106

N
E

 4
2n

d B
LV

D

C
R

 2
01

C
R

 1
08C

R
 1

07

N
E

 3
7t

h 
D

R

WOODRIDGE DR

WEDGEWOOD LN

N
E

 3
6t

h 
S

T

NE 120th RD

NE 120th CROSSING

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

Legend
D17=007

City of Wildwood

6.a. 
Page 4 of 10



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
OCTOBER 2013 EXISTING FUTURE LAND USE

D17=007
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 80 160

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\E
xis

tin
g &

 P
rop

os
ed

 FL
U\

Ex
ist

ing
 FL

U 
- D

17
=0

07
.m

xd
 - 1

0/3
0/2

01
3 3

:28
:15

 P
M 

- to
ne

al

C
R

 1
05

WOODRIDGE DR

WEDGEWOOD LN

COM

COM

LDR

MU-V

NMU-7

RUR

Legend
City of Wildwood

D17=007

RR

6.a. 
Page 5 of 10



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
OCTOBER 2013 JPA/FUTURE LAND USE

D17=007
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\J
PA

 FL
U\

JP
A F

LU
 - D

17
=0

07
.m

xd
 - 1

0/2
4/2

01
3 1

1:1
7:5

0 A
M 

- to
ne

al

C
R

 1
05

WOODRIDGE DR

WEDGEWOOD LN

COM

466/301 MU

LDR

LDR

MU-V

NMU-7

RUR

Legend
City of Wildwood

JPA Boundary

D17=007

6.a. 
Page 6 of 10



 
Ordinance No. O2013-50 

D17=007  Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Piedmont Properties) 
1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-50 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
PROPOSING A SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
AMENDMENT TO THE ADOPTED LOCAL 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMMUNITY PLANNING 
ACT OF 2011, AS AMENDED; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood, Florida, is proposing to amend the local 
Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map of said City, to include a land use 
amendment described as follows, to-wit: 
 
 

Parcel D17=007 
Piedmont Properties 

.3acres +/- 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
Begin 103 yards South of Northeast corner of Northwest ¼ of Northwest ¼ of 
Section 17, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, thence run West 105 feet, 
thence run North 105 feet, thence run East 105 feet, thence run South 105 feet 
to point of beginning, less the North 9 feet thereof, Sumter County, Florida. 
 
AND 
 
Begin 103 yards South of the Northeast corner of the Northwest ¼ of the 
Northwest ¼ of Section 17, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, thence run 
West 105 feet for a point of beginning. Thence run West 20 feet; thence North 
105 feet; thence East 20 feet; thence South 105 feet, to the point of beginning 
and close, Sumter County, Florida. 

 
This property is to be reclassified from Sumter County comprehensive plan 

designation “Rural Residential” to City comprehensive plan designation “Commercial.” 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 

Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 
 

6.a. 
Page 7 of 10



 
Ordinance No. O2013-50 

D17=007  Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Piedmont Properties) 
2 of 2 

SECTION 1. The adopted local Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 
for the City of Wildwood, Florida, are hereby amended to include the above-referenced 
property and proposed land use amendment as indicated above. The amendment to the 
Future Land Use Map of the local comprehensive plan is attached hereto as “Exhibit A” 
and incorporated herein by reference.  

 
SECTION 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 

the same are hereby repealed.  
 

SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.  
   

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its final reading by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood. 
 
 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2013, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
  
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  
 
 

      
Ed Wolf, Mayor 

 
 
 
ATTEST:  ________________   
       Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   
 
First Reading:      
 
Second Reading:      
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
      
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 
 

6.a. 
Page 8 of 10



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ordinance O2013-50 

“Exhibit A” 

D17=007 (Piedmont Properties) 

Proposed Future Land Use Map Designation 

 

6.a. 
Page 9 of 10



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
OCTOBER 2013 PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE

D17=007
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 80 160

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\E
xis

tin
g &

 P
rop

os
ed

 FL
U\

Pr
op

os
ed

 FL
U 

- D
17

=0
07

.m
xd

 - 1
0/3

0/2
01

3 1
2:1

5:0
1 P

M 
- to

ne
al

C
R

 1
05

WOODRIDGE DR

WEDGEWOOD LN

COM

COM

LDR

MU-V

NMU-7

RUR

Legend
City of Wildwood

D17=007

6.a. 
Page 10 of 10



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 

 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

 

 
 

HISTORY
  
The app
from Su
Highway
 
The 0.25
The prop
Future L
Commer
Map des
 
Staff rec
which es
 
Case RZ
Novembe
recomme
 

Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

CITY

CT: Pie

STED ACTIO

 W

 
 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

Y/FACTS/IS

licant, Piedm
mter Count
.”   

5 +/- acre su
perty is subj
Land Use M
cial – Highw
ignation.  

commends 
stablishes a

Z 1309-01 w
er 5th, 201
endation of t

 
cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

edmont Co

ON: 

Work Sessio

Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 

SSUES: 

mont Compa
ty “RR: Rur

ubject proper
ect to a con

Map designa
way” would b

approval of
a future lan

was consider
13.  The 
the rezoning

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

ompanies In
 
Approval o

on (Report O

eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

anies, Inc., 
ral Residen

rty is located
ncurrent Sm
ation to City
bring the pro

f Ordinance
d use appro

red by the P
Planning &

g to the City C

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

nc. Rezoni

of Ordinanc

Only) DAT

 S
 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

seeks appro
tial” to City

d to the nort
all Scale Co

y “Commerc
operty into co

e O2013-51 
opriate to th

Planning & Z
& Zoning B
Commission

ITY OF W

MARY 

ing – RZ 13

ce O2013-5

TE OF MEET

Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

oval from th
y of Wildwo

thwest of the
omprehensiv
cial”. The re
ompliance w

subject to a
he propose

Zoning Boa
Board/Specia
n pending th

WILDWOO

309-01 

1. 

TING: 1
1

ting  
 

 
e:   

he City Com
ood “C-3: G

e intersectio
ve Plan ame
equested zo
with the prop

approval of
d zoning. 

rd/Special M
al Magistra
e approval o

OD 

1/11/13 Firs
1/25/13 Ado

mmission for 
General Com

on of C-466 
endment to
oning of “C-
posed Future

f Ordinance

Magistrate o
ate gave a
of the annex

st Reading
option 

a rezoning 
mmercial –

and C-105. 
change the 
-3: General 
e Land Use 

e O2013-50, 

on Tuesday, 
a favorable 
xation. 

 

6.b. 
Page 1 of 8



City of Wildwood 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

 
The case below was heard on Tuesday, November 5th, 2013 by the Special Magistrate.  
The applicant seeks approval and favorable recommendation from the City of Wildwood 
Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate for a Zoning Map Amendment from 
County “RR: Rural Residential” to City “C-3: General Commercial - Highway.”  The 
property is generally located to the northwest of the intersection of C-466 and C-105. 
 
Case:   RZ 1309-01 
 
Parcels: D17=007 
 
Owner: Toni and Ted F. Lovett 
 
Applicants: Piedmont Properties, Inc. 
 
Under subsections 1.7(B)(2) and 3.3(B)(3) of the Land Development Regulations 
(LDRs), the Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate has a duty to make a 
recommendation to the City Commission on all proposed zoning amendments in 
accordance with the procedure outlined in subsection 1.14 (B)(3) and the criteria for the 
approval of zoning amendments as defined in subsection 3.3(B)(4) of the LDRs. 
 
Based upon the testimony and information presented, the Special Magistrate 
recommends approval of the Zoning Map Amendment and favorable recommendation 
of Ordinance O2013-51 to the City Commission. 
 
 
Dated:  November ____, 2013 
 
 
 
/Proposed/ 
____________________________ 
Archie O. Lowry, Jr. 
Special Magistrate City of Wildwood 

 

6.b. 
Page 2 of 8



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
OCTOBER 2013 LOCATION MAP

D17=007
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 360 720

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - D

17
=0

07
.m

xd
 - 1

0/3
0/2

01
3 1

2:1
7:3

6 P
M 

- to
ne

al

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

C-466 E

C
R

 1
05

CR 204

C
R

 2
03

CR 106

N
E

 4
2n

d B
LV

D

C
R

 2
01

C
R

 1
08C

R
 1

07

N
E

 3
7t

h 
D

R

WOODRIDGE DR

WEDGEWOOD LN

N
E

 3
6t

h 
S

T

NE 120th RD

NE 120th CROSSING

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

Legend
D17=007

City of Wildwood

6.b. 
Page 3 of 8



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

OCTOBER 2013 EXISTING ZONING

D17=007
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 80 160

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\E
xis

tin
g &

 P
rop

os
ed

 Zo
nin

g\E
xis

tin
g Z

on
ing

 - D
17

=0
07

.m
xd

 - 1
0/3

0/2
01

3 1
2:1

6:1
8 P

M 
- to

ne
al

C
R

 1
05

C-466 E

WOODRIDGE DR

WEDGEWOOD LN

C-466 E

Legend
City of Wildwood

D17=007

RPUD

C-3

RR

RR

CH

C3

NMU-7

6.b. 
Page 4 of 8



 
Ordinance No. O2013-51 

D17=007 (Piedmont Properties) Rezoning 
1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-51 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
PROPOSING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO THE 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTIONS 3.2 AND 3.3 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood, Florida, is proposing to amend the Official 
Zoning Map of said City, to include a rezoning of real property described as follows, to-
wit: 
 

Parcel D17=007 
Piedmont Properties 

.3 acres +/- 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
Begin 103 yards South of Northeast corner of Northwest ¼ of Northwest ¼ of 
Section 17, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, thence run West 105 feet, 
thence run North 105 feet, thence run East 105 feet, thence run South 105 feet 
to point of beginning, less the North 9 feet thereof, Sumter County, Florida. 
 
AND 
 
Begin 103 yards South of the Northeast corner of the Northwest ¼ of the 
Northwest ¼ of Section 17, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, thence run 
West 105 feet for a point of beginning. Thence run West 20 feet; thence North 
105 feet; thence East 20 feet; thence South 105 feet, to the point of beginning 
and close, Sumter County, Florida. 
  

This property is to be reclassified from Sumter County “RR: Rural Residential” to 
City of Wildwood “C-3: General Commercial-Highway.” 
 
 AND WHEREAS, the rezoning is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan 
and Land Development Regulations. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 
 

6.b. 
Page 5 of 8



 
Ordinance No. O2013-51 

D17=007 (Piedmont Properties) Rezoning 
2 of 2 

SECTION 1. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Wildwood, Florida is hereby 
amended to include the above-referenced property as indicated above. The amendment 
to the Official Zoning Map is attached hereto as “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by 
reference.  
 
 SECTION 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.  
 
 SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.  
 
 SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its final reading by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood. 
 
  

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2013, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
  
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  
 
 

      
Ed Wolf, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:  ________________   
       Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   
 
First Reading:      
 
Second Reading:      
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
      
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 
 

6.b. 
Page 6 of 8



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ordinance O2013-51 

“Exhibit A” 

D17=007 (Piedmont Properties) 

Proposed Zoning Map Designation 

 

6.b. 
Page 7 of 8



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

OCTOBER 2013 PROPOSED ZONING

D17=007
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\E
xis

tin
g &

 P
rop

os
ed

 Zo
nin

g\P
rop

os
ed

 Zo
nin

g -
 D

17
=0

07
.m

xd
 - 1

0/3
0/2

01
3 1

:01
:01

 P
M 

- to
ne

al

C
R

 1
05

WOODRIDGE DR

WEDGEWOOD LN

Legend
City of Wildwood

D17=007

RPUD

C-3

RR

CH

C3

NMU-7

6.b. 
Page 8 of 8



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Ordinance O2013-52: Parking of Semi-Trucks and Trailers Including 
Donation Trailers 

 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Approval of Ordinance O2013-52 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: First Reading: 11/11/13 

Adoption: 11/25/13 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 
                                                                                                   
 
HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
 
As directed by the Commission, Staff has updated Section 12-96 of the City of Wildwood Code of 
Ordinances pertaining the parking of semi-trucks and semi-trailers. The ordinance repeals Section 12-
96 of the Wildwood Code and creates Section 3.22 of the Zoning Chapter of the Land Development 
Regulations. 
 
Highlights of the Ordinance are the following: 

 Defines “donation trailer” as a semi-trailer owned and operated by a registered non-profit 
organization that are intended for the collection of donated goods;  

 Allowance of semi-truck and semi-trailer parking within the Industrial (M-1 and M-2) and Public, 
Educational, Utilities (PEU) zoning districts;  

 Allowance of semi-truck parking within Agricultural (AG-5 and AG-10) and General Commercial 
– Highway (C-3) zoning district if a Special Exception has been granted; 

o Must be a donation trailer; 
o Property cannot abut a residential or institutional property; 
o Minimum parking requirements maintained 
o Area must be paved;  
o Trailer must be buffered and screened; and 
o Applicant must demonstrate the parking will not create a nuisance. 

 Requires a permit be sought for the parking of donation trailers; and 
 Maintains many of the existing prohibitions and enforcement standards that currently exist. 

 
 
 
 
 

6.c. 
Page 1 of 7



 
Staff has
regulatio
 
Staff rec
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 
 

s consulted 
ns. Goodwil

commends a

cHugh 
ment Service

with the rep
l is in agreem

approval of

 

es Coordina

presentative
ment with th

f Ordinance

ator 

 from Good
he proposed 

e O2013-52.

dwill Industri
Ordinance.

es-Suncoas
 

st, Inc on the proposed 

6.c. 
Page 2 of 7



 
Ordinance No. O2013-52 

Parking of Semi-Trucks and Semi-Trailers 
1 of 5 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-52 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
DELETING SECTION 12-96 OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
CODE OF ORDINANCES AND CREATING SECTION 3.22 
OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS; PERTAINING TO PARKING OF SEMI-
TRUCKS AND SEMI-TRAILERS ON REAL PROPERTY; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Section 12-96 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinance pertains to 

the parking of semi-trucks and semi-trailers;  
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to update the regulations and to include provisions 

for the placement of donation trailers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to place these regulations in the Zoning Chapter of 

the Land Development Regulations through the creation of Section 3.22 “Parking of 
Semi-Trucks and Semi-Trailers;” 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 
 
   

SECTION 1.  Section 12-96 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances is 
hereby stricken in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 2. Section 3.22 of the Zoning Chapter of the City of Wildwood Land 

Development Regulations is hereby created to include the following: 
 
3.22 - Parking of semi-trucks and semi-trailers. 

 
(A) Purpose. The purpose of this Section is to regulate the parking of semi-trucks and 
semi-trailers anywhere within the City limits, including any parking upon streets, rights-
of-way, public property, and private property.  
(B) Definitions. The following terms shall be defined for purposes of this Section as 
follows:  

(1) Donation trailers shall mean semi-trailers that are owned and operated by 
registered non-profit organizations and are intended for the collection of donated 
goods. 
(2) Property owner shall mean the owner of real property.  

6.c. 
Page 3 of 7



 
Ordinance No. O2013-52 

Parking of Semi-Trucks and Semi-Trailers 
2 of 5 

(3) Semi-trailer shall mean a trailer without motor power with a set or sets of wheels 
and/or axles at the rear only, designed to be supported by a truck, tractor, or towing 
vehicle.  
(4) Semi-truck shall mean any heavy automotive vehicle with a manufacturer's 
gross vehicle weight rating of 10,000 pounds or more, used for transporting loads of 
any kind, including, but not limited to, gravel trucks, dump trucks, log trucks, all 
trucks, tractors, or automotive towing vehicles that tow semi-trailers.  
(5) Semi-truck owner shall mean the person who is the owner of a semi-truck 
and/or semi-trailer.  

(C) Parking of semi-trucks and semi-trailers on private property. Parking of semi-trucks 
and semi-trailers on private property is prohibited in the City unless the property is 
located within the PEU, M-1, or M-2 zoning district, or a Special Exception has been 
granted allowing such parking in accordance with this Section. 
(D) Parking of semi-trucks and semi-trailers upon public streets, rights-of-way, and other 
public property.  

(1) Semi trucks shall not be parked upon public streets, rights-of-way, or any other 
publicly owned property in the City, except for purposes of pick-up or delivery, 
unless the property is located within the PEU, M-1, or M-2 zoning district.  
(2) Semi-trucks or semi-trailers may be parked for up to 30 minutes for pick-up or 
delivery in all circumstances except where the pick-up or delivery involves complete 
relocation of the contents of a building such as when a person, family, or entity is 
relocating to a new home or office.  
(3) When a person is relocating the contents of a building, pick-up or delivery by a 
semi-truck may continue for up to twenty four (24) hours. 
(4) Semi-trailers not connected to semi-trucks shall not be parked on public streets, 
rights-of-way, or other publicly-owned property for any purpose within the City 
unless the property is zoned PEU, M-1, or M-2 or a Special Exception has been 
granted. 
(5) The parking or placement of donation trailers is prohibited on public streets or 
any other public property. 
(6) Enforcement against semi-truck drivers and semi-truck owners shall be in 
accordance with subsection (H) of this Section. 

(E) Requirements for Special Exception Approval for Parking of Semi-Trailers.  
(1) The parking of semi-trailers may be allowed on properties zoned AG-10, AG-5, 
or C-3 if the Planning and Zoning Board grants a Special Exception.  
(2) The Development Service Department shall require that the application for a 
Special Exception to allow the parking of semi-trailers provide information 
concerning the number of trailers expected, the length of time the trailers will be 
expected to remain on the property, the hours at which the trailer may be taken to 
and from the property, and such other information deemed appropriate by the 
Development Services Department.  
(3) Review for determination of whether or not a Special Exception should be 
granted shall include review by the Development Services Department. In order to 

6.c. 
Page 4 of 7



 
Ordinance No. O2013-52 

Parking of Semi-Trucks and Semi-Trailers 
3 of 5 

be qualified to be granted a Special Exception, the following requirements must be 
met:  

(a) The semi-trailer must be a donation trailer; 
(b) The property shall not be adjacent to a residential or institutional 
property; 
(c) Minimum parking standards shall be maintained; 
(d) The area where semi-trailer parking is to occur must be paved; 
(e) The area where the semi parking is to occur must be buffered through 
a combination of the use of landscaping, screening, and fencing as 
required by the City; and  
(f) The applicant can demonstrate that the semi-trailer parking will not 
create a nuisance or otherwise be a threat the public’s health, safety, and 
welfare.  

(F) Permit Required for Donation Trailers. 
(1) Any person or entity wishing to place a donation trailer on private property must 
obtain a permit from the Development Services Department.  
(2) Only entities or organizations that have a tax-exempt status under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended, may apply for and obtain a 
permit. Proof of such tax status must accompany an application for a permit. 
(3) A donation trailer that is subject to the provisions of this Section must have 
clearly identified, in writing, on its face the entity or organization that is maintaining 
the donation trailer. A phone number and address for such entity must also be 
written on the donation trailer. 
(4) The donation trailer shall be located in an area on the property that will not 
impede traffic circulation, loading areas, or occupy parking spaces necessary to 
meet the minimum parking standards on the subject property. 
(5) The donation trailer must be ancillary to the principal use of the property. The 
application for the permit must be signed by the property owner.  

(G) Enforcement procedures against property owners.  
(1) Violation of this Section by property owners shall be as in any Code 
Enforcement action. All provisions in the City's ordinances and statutes related to 
Code Enforcement shall apply. Fines shall be determined in the same manner as in 
any Code Enforcement action.  
(2) In any Code Enforcement action brought against a property owner who has had 
in place and in use in a semi-truck trailer on property owned prior to November 25, 
2013, and used as part of a business, a period of six (6) months from the date of 
the notice of violation shall be provided for the removal of such semi-truck trailer.  
(3) One extension of no more than 90 days shall be allowed upon a written request 
being submitted to the Development Services Department.  

(H) Enforcement procedures against semi-truck and semi-trailer owners and drivers.  
(1) Failure to park semi-trucks or semi-trailers in compliance with this Section may 
result in enforcement against either or both the semi-truck or semi-trailer owner and 
driver. 

6.c. 
Page 5 of 7



 
Ordinance No. O2013-52 

Parking of Semi-Trucks and Semi-Trailers 
4 of 5 

(2) Enforcement shall be by any City Code Enforcement Officer or City Police 
Officer. 
(3) A police officer may take up, or cause to be taken up or removed to a place 
designated, any semi-truck or semi-trailer parked in violation of any of the 
provisions of the parking ordinances of the City, including this section, and is 
authorized and empowered to keep same in such place so designated until all fines 
and charges assessed for moving and storage against the owner and the semi-
truck or semi-trailer have been paid or satisfactory bond arranged. If a police officer 
is required, in order to enforce the ordinances of the City to impound an illegally 
parked semi-truck or semi-trailer, all costs of impoundment shall be paid by the 
semi-truck owner and/or semi-truck driver before the vehicle is released to any 
person.  
(4) Any person, firm, or corporation violating any provision of this Section shall be 
fined according to a schedule set by separate resolution. 

 
 
SECTION 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 

the same are hereby repealed.  
 

 
SECTION 4. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 

to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.  
 
  
SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption during the second and 
final reading by the City of Wildwood City Commission.  
 
 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2013, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
  
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  
 
 
             

Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: __________________ 
     Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   
 

6.c. 
Page 6 of 7



 
Ordinance No. O2013-52 

Parking of Semi-Trucks and Semi-Trailers 
5 of 5 

 
First Reading:      
 
Second Reading:      
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
      
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 
 

6.c. 
Page 7 of 7



SUBJEC

 
 
REQUES
 
 

 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

 
 
HISTORY
  
The applic
acre Wild
O2010-12
 
The proje
The applic
family hou
also reduc
 
Pursuant 
12 and ad
and conce
outlines s
 
At the No
of the Ord
 
Staff reco
 

Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

CITY

CT: Wil
01 

STED ACTIO

 W

 
 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

Y/FACTS/ISS

cant seeks ap
dwood Holdin
2 on August 9

ect is entitled 
cant is modify
using. The pro
ced the sidew

to Section 8.
dopts the Wild
eptual develo
pecific criteria

vember 5th m
dinance. 

ommends ap

 
cHugh 
ment Services

Y COMMIS

ldwood Su

ON: 

Work Sessio

Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 

UES: 

pproval for a 
gs/Triumph S

9, 2010.   

to build 113 
ying the proje
oject is intend

walks to one s

6 of the Land
dwood Sumte
opment plan 
a and standar

meeting of the

pproval of Or

 Coordinator 

SSION OF

EXECUT

umter Hold

 
Approval o

on (Report O

eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

Planned Dev
South develo

residential d
ect to eliminat
ded to be sole
side of the stre

d Developmen
er Holdings P
have been in
rds for the Pro

e Planning an

rdinance #02

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

dings Plann

of Ordinanc

Only) DAT

 S
 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

velopment am
pment on CR

dwelling units
e the requirem
ely traditional
eet only.  

nt Regulation
lanned Deve

ncorporated in
oject. 

d Zoning Boa

2013-53. 

ITY OF W

MARY 

ned Develo

ce O2013-5

TE OF MEET

Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

mendment to 
R 462. The C

s, and no add
ment of const
l single-family

ns, Ordinance
lopment Agre
nto the Ordin

ard, the Spec

WILDWOO

opment Am

3. 

TING: 1
1

ting  
 

 
e:   

Ordinance O
City Commiss

ditional entitle
tructing single
y detached ho

e O2013-53 re
eement. The 
nance as exh

cial Magistrate

OD 

mendment

1/11/13 Firs
1/25/13 Ado

2010-12 rega
sion approve

ements are b
e-family attac
ousing. The a

epeals Ordina
Project’s lega

hibits. The PD

e recommend

, RZ 1310-

st Reading
option 

arding the 27 
ed Ordinance 

being sought. 
ched or multi-
applicant has 

ance O2010-
al description 
D Agreement 

ded approval 

6.d. 
Page 1 of 16



City of Wildwood 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

 
The case below was heard on Tuesday, November 5th, 2013 by the Special Magistrate.  
The applicant seeks approval and favorable recommendation from the City of Wildwood 
Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate for a Planned Development modification 
revising certain Development Standards.  The property is generally located to the 
southwest of the C-462 curve.  The Engineer of Record is W. Lee Clymer, P.E. with 
Farner, Barley, and Associates, Inc. of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
Case:   RZ 1310-01 
 
Parcels: D32=040, D32=136, and D32=140 
 
Owner: Wildwood Sumter Holdings, Inc. 
 
Applicants: SAME 
 
Under subsections 1.7(B)(2) and 3.3(B)(3) of the Land Development Regulations 
(LDRs), the Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate has a duty to make a 
recommendation to the City Commission on all proposed zoning amendments in 
accordance with the procedure outlined in subsection 1.14 (B)(3) and the criteria for the 
approval of zoning amendments as defined in subsection 3.3(B)(4) of the LDRs. 
 
Based upon the testimony and information presented, the Special Magistrate 
recommends approval of the Planned Development modification and favorable 
recommendation of Ordinance O2013-53 to the City Commission. 
 
 
Dated:  November ____, 2013 
 
 
 
/Proposed/ 
____________________________ 
Archie O. Lowry, Jr. 
Special Magistrate City of Wildwood 

 

6.d. 
Page 2 of 16



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
OCTOBER 2013 LOCATION MAP

Triumph South
PD ModificationCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 325 650

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\L
oc

ati
on

\Lo
ca

tio
n -

 Tr
ium

ph
 S

ou
th.

mx
d -

 10
/30

/20
13

 3:
34

:42
 P

M 
- to

ne
al

C-462 E

C
R

 1
27

CR 134

C
R

 1
31

N
E

 4
4t

h 
D

R

C
R

 1
28

N
E

 4
3r

d
 W

A
Y

CR 134B

C
R

 1
29

CLYDE ST

NE 78th PL

ID
A

 S
T

RIDGE AVES
TA

N
L

E
Y

 A
V

E

CR 136

CR 138

N
 W

A
R

F
IE

LD
 A

V
E

CR 134C

JARRELL AVE

MISSOURI AVE/CR 140

NE 83rd RD

N
E

 4
2n

d 
T

E
R

C
E

C
IL

 A
V

E

CR 130

W
A

L
D

E
N

 S
T

CRESTVIEW CIR N

NE 82nd AVE

NE 82nd AVE

Legend
Triumph South

City of Wildwood

6.d. 
Page 3 of 16



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
OCTOBER 2013 EXISTING ZONING

Triumph South
PD ModificationCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 325 650

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\E
xis

tin
g &

 P
rop

os
ed

 Zo
nin

g\E
xis

tin
g Z

on
ing

 - T
riu

mp
h S

ou
th.

mx
d -

 10
/30

/20
13

 3:
33

:29
 P

M 
- to

ne
al

C-462 E

C
R

 1
27

CR 134

C
R

 1
31

N
E

 4
4t

h 
D

R

N
E

 4
3r

d
 W

A
Y

P
O

W
E

LL
 S

T

C
R

 1
28

C
R

 1
29

CR 134B

CLYDE ST

S
TA

N
L

E
Y

 A
V

E

NE 78th PL

ID
A

 S
T

RIDGE AVE

CR 136

N
 W

A
R

F
IE

LD
 A

V
E

CR 130

CR 138

JARRELL AVE

MISSOURI AVE MISSOURI AVE/CR 140

NE 83rd RD

N
E

 4
2n

d 
T

E
R

C
E

C
IL

 A
V

E

W
A

L
D

E
N

 S
T

CRESTVIEW CIR N

E CLARKE ST

CR 134C

NE 82nd AVE

NE 82nd AVE

Legend
City of Wildwood

Triumph South

INS

PUD

R-2

R-1

PUD

CMU

R-3

M-1

c-3

R-5

PEU

6.d. 
Page 4 of 16



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
OCTOBER 2013 OVERLAY ZONING

Triumph South
PD ModificationCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\E
xis

tin
g &

 P
rop

os
ed

 Zo
nin

g\O
ve

rla
y Z

on
ing

 - T
riu

mp
h S

ou
th.

mx
d -

 10
/30

/20
13

 11
:54

:20
 AM

 - t
on

ea
l

C
-4

6
2 

E

C
R

 1
27

CR 134

N
E

 4
4t

h 
D

R

C
R

 1
21

C
R

 1
31

C
R

 1
28

CR 134B

C
R

 1
29

S
TA

N
L

E
Y

 A
V

E

NE 78th PL

RIDGE AVE

CR 134C

N
E

 4
3r

d
 W

A
Y

CR 136

N
 W

A
R

F
IE

LD
 A

V
E

CR 138CLYDE ST

MISSOURI AVE/CR 140

NE 83rd RD

N
E

 4
2n

d 
T

E
R

C
E

C
IL

 A
V

E

W
A

L
D

E
N

 S
T

CRESTVIEW CIR N

JARRELL AVE

NE 82nd AVE

NE 82nd AVE

Legend
City of Wildwood

Triumph South

Overlay

INS

R-2

R-1

PUD

CMU

R-3

M-1
c-3

R-5

PEU

Ordinance O2013-53
Triumph South

6.d. 
Page 5 of 16



Page 1 of 6 
Ordinance No. O2013-53 

Triumph South Planned Development Agreement 

 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-53 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD GRANTING A REQUEST FOR 
A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 8.6 OF 
THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS. REPEALING ORDINANCE 
O2010-12; FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; OWNED BY WILDWOOD SUMTER HOLDINGS, LLC; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida, as 
follows: 
 
The application filed by Wildwood Sumter Holdings, LLC, (hereinafter referred as 
the, “Developer”) for a Residential Planned Development was heard by and 
before the City Commission, Wildwood, Florida on this ______ day of 
__________ 2013.  Based upon the verified application and supporting 
documents, analyses, maps, charts, other evidence and instruments, the advice, 
report and recommendations of the Project Review Committee and the testimony 
adduced and evidence received at the Public Hearing by the Planning and 
Zoning Board on November 5, 2013 and otherwise being fully advised, the City 
Commission does hereby find and determine as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: GENERAL FINDINGS 
 
A. That the Triumph South Planned Development Application (hereinafter 

referred to as the “Project”) was duly and properly filed by the Developer 
herein on September 26, 2013. 

 
B. That all fees required to be borne and paid by the Developer have been 

paid in accordance with the City of Wildwood Fee Schedule. 
 
C. That the Project was reviewed by the Project Review Committee and 

found to meet or exceed the minimum standards of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Regulations, Code of 
Ordinances, and all other applicable ordinances and regulations.  

 
D. That the Developer proposes to develop a Project consisting of 27 acres, 

more or less, which is situated in Wildwood, Florida.  This land is legally 
described in “Exhibit A” attached hereto.  

 
E. That the Developer has complied with the conceptual development plan 

provision as required by Section 8.4 of the Land Development 
Regulations. 

 

6.d. 
Page 6 of 16



Page 2 of 6 
Ordinance No. O2013-53 

Triumph South Planned Development Agreement 

 

F. That the City has complied with the due notice requirements of subsection 
3.3(B)(3) of the Land Development Regulations. 

 
 

SECTION 2: FINDINGS REGARDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY 
 
A. That the Project is an approved Planned Unit Development granted by the 

City Commission through the adoption of Ordinance O2010-12 on August 
9, 2010. 

 
B. That the Applicant has applied for a Residential Planned Development 

(RPD) of the lands described in “Exhibit A”. 
 

C. That the zoning districts of the subject land described in “Exhibit A” are 
classified as PUD (Ordinance O2010-12) on the City of Wildwood Zoning 
Map.  

 
D. That this Ordinance does not increase the amount of permitted 

development within the Project that was already granted by the City 
Commission. 

 
E. That the Project is consistent with both the City of Wildwood 

Comprehensive Plan, the intent and purpose of the City of Wildwood Land 
Development Regulations, and does promote the public health, safety, 
morals, welfare, and orderly growth of the City of Wildwood. 

 
F. That the City of Wildwood Land Development Regulations are consistent 

with the provisions of the “Planned Development Agreement” as 
hereinafter set forth in Section 3 of this Ordinance. With respect to any 
conflict between the Land Development Regulations and the “Planned 
Development Agreement”, the provisions of the “Planned Development 
Agreement” shall govern.  Unless specific conditions are included in the 
“Planned Development Agreement” waiving or replacing the terms and 
conditions of the Land Development Regulations, the terms and conditions 
of the most current Land Development Regulations shall prevail.   

 
G. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 

adoption by the City Commission. 
  
 
SECTION 3: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT: GENERAL 
PROVISIONS 
 
A. Development Concept.  The Project shall be developed as a Planned 

Development substantially in accordance with this Ordinance.  This 

6.d. 
Page 7 of 16



Page 3 of 6 
Ordinance No. O2013-53 

Triumph South Planned Development Agreement 

 

Planned Development Agreement shall govern the development of the 
Project.  

 
B. Conceptual Development Plan. The Project includes a Conceptual 

Development Plan pursuant to Section 8.4 of the Land Development 
Regulations.  The Conceptual Development Plan prepared by Farner 
Barley and Associates dated October 24, 2013 (revision date) is 
incorporated into this Ordinance as “Exhibit B” attached hereto. The 
Conceptual Development Plan is substantially consistent with City of 
Wildwood Comprehensive Plan.  
 
The Conceptual Development Plan is conceptual in nature and may be 
affected or modified by final zoning approval and conditions, by 
compensating storage capacity in flood prone areas, final wetland or 
protected species locations and jurisdictional boundaries, final 
engineering, permitting, surveys, or conservation easements. 
 

 
C. Development Program. The Project is a residential development. The 

Project may contain single family detached or single family attached 
dwellings. The Project shall not exceed 113 dwelling units. 

 
D. Amendments.  The Development Services Director, or designee, shall 

have the authority to approve non-substantial changes to the conceptual 
development plan without a public hearing.  The determination of what 
constitutes a non-substantial change shall be at the Development 
Services Director’s discretion.  All modifications requiring an amendment 
to the Planned Development Agreement shall require review and 
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board and action by the City 
Commission in the same manner as an Application for Planned 
Development.    

 
E. R-2 Zoning District.   Unless otherwise stated, the Project shall adhere to 

the zoning regulations within the R-2 zoning district. The Project shall 
have the following minimum setbacks:  

1) Front: 25 feet 
2) Side: 5 feet 
3) Rear: 10 feet  

 
F. Design District Standards. Unless otherwise stated, the Project is required 

to meet applicable sections of the Design District Standards (Residential). 
 
G. Recreation and Open Space.   

1) Parks and Recreation.  The Project shall contain at least one park 
area. The park area shall contain a minimum of two (2) recreational 
amenities as required in the City’s Design District Standards. The 

6.d. 
Page 8 of 16



Page 4 of 6 
Ordinance No. O2013-53 

Triumph South Planned Development Agreement 

 

amenities shall be determined during the Improvement Plans stage 
of the subdivision process. 

2) Buffers. The Project shall contain a 15’ wide landscape buffer along 
the perimeter of the Project. The plant material within the landscape 
buffer shall be in accordance with the City’s Design District 
Standards.  The landscape buffers may be constructed as each 
home site develops and the maintenance of the buffer may be the 
responsibility of the homeowner.   

3) Open Space.  The Project shall contain a minimum of 4 acres (15% 
of the gross Project acreage) of open space. Open space shall be 
calculated in accordance with the City’s Design District Standards. 

 
H. Public Facilities. 

 
1) Potable Water, Wastewater, and Reuse Water. The Project shall be 

connected to the City’s potable water and sanitary sewer system 
prior to any certificates of occupancy being issued. The Project will 
connect to the City’s reuse water system upon availability. 
Expansion of these systems and the reservation and payment of 
capacities has been negotiated by a separate Developer’s 
Agreement.  

2)   Solid Waste. Solid waste services shall be provided by the City or 
the City’s contracted refuse service provider. 

3)   Stormwater. The Project shall contain a stormwater management 
system which meets the requirements of the Southwest Florida 
Water Management District. 

4) Underground Utilities. All on site utilities shall be underground. 
Developer is responsible for running utilities underground for the 
Project.   

5)  Lighting. Decorative street lighting shall be provided throughout the 
Project.  

 
I. Access and Transportation. 
 

1) Access.  There shall be one (1) ingress and egress access point at 
CR 462 for the Project as shown on the Conceptual Development 
Plan. A driveway permit from Sumter County is required prior to 
approval of the Project’s Improvement Plans. 

2) Sidewalks. At a minimum, sidewalks shall be constructed along one 
side of all roadways within the Project. 

3) Turn lane. The planned improvements to CR 462 include a 
northbound left turn lane at the Project’s driveway. The CR 462 
improvements are funded for construction in FY 2013-2014 by 
Sumter County. However, should the Project construct 73 homes 
prior the CR 462 project commencing, the Developer will be 

6.d. 
Page 9 of 16



Page 5 of 6 
Ordinance No. O2013-53 

Triumph South Planned Development Agreement 

 

required to construct the northbound left turn lane prior to 
construction of the 74th home. 

 
J. Gopher Tortoise Mitigation. Prior to any construction, the Developer shall 

obtain the necessary permit(s) from the Florida Fish and Wildlife 
Conservation Committee for mitigation of gopher tortoises. If a relocation 
permit is not sought, the Project shall provide mitigation in accordance 
with applicable rules and regulations. 

 
K. Maintenance of Common Areas.  Maintenance and repair of structures, 

lawn mowing, and landscaping maintenance of all common areas within 
the Project shall be the responsibility of the property owner or its designee 
such as a property owners association, at no cost or obligation to the City.  
The Developer shall provide guidelines to the City for approval, not to be 
reasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, for the maintenance of 
common areas.  The City will be granted the right to enforce the common 
areas maintenance obligations against the Association as may be 
applicable, and to be reimbursed for the reasonable attorney’s fees, costs 
and expenses, as may be reasonably incurred by the City. 

 
L. Enforcement of Rules and Regulations. For the maintenance of the 

common areas referenced in Section 3(K) above, the applicable 
provisions in the Guidelines: (i) shall be made applicable to the Project; 
and (ii) shall be reviewed/approved by the City of Wildwood and a 
certificate of occupancy being issued for completed improvements; and 
(iii) will provide that the City of Wildwood shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, to enforce such maintenance obligations against a violating 
party and that the City should be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and 
costs for enforcement regardless of whether or not a suit has been filed. 
 

M.   Impact Fees. The Planned Development shall be subject to all impact fees 
applicable at the time of permitting. All impact fees are to be paid before 
issuance of any building permit. Proof of Sumter County impact fees paid 
shall be provided to the City of Wildwood. Any impact fees adopted by the 
City of Wildwood, Sumter County or the Sumter County School Board 
prior to issuance of building permits shall also be applicable to the 
Planned Development.   

 
N. Expiration of Planned Development Agreement.  Actual construction must 

begin within the Project within 24 months of the final adoption of the 
Planned Development Agreement.  If no construction has started on the 
approved Planned Development within 24 months, the Planned 
Development shall lapse and be of no further effect. The City Commission 
may extend the Planned Development for periods of up to twelve (12) 
months. However, the City Commission shall not allow extensions beyond 
24 months after the effective date of this Ordinance. 

6.d. 
Page 10 of 16



Page 6 of 6 
Ordinance No. O2013-53 

Triumph South Planned Development Agreement 

 

 
 
 
SECTION 4: SEVERABILITY. 
 
If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining 
provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
 
SECTION 5: EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 
adoption by the City Commission. 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ORDAINED in regular session of the City Commission of the City 
of Wildwood, Sumter County, Florida, this   day of   , 2013. 
 
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
             
ATTEST:      ED WOLF, MAYOR  

Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 
First Reading:      
 
Second Reading:    _____ 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
      
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 

6.d. 
Page 11 of 16



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ordinance O2013-53 

“Exhibit A” 

Wildwood Sumter Holdings, LLC 

Legal Description 

 

6.d. 
Page 12 of 16



 
 
PARCEL 1: 
SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF 
SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
PARCEL 2: 
THE WEST 463.40 FEET OF THE SOUTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 
OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, 
RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
TOGETHER WITH AN EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS: 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN THE SOUTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 
1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, 
RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF 
THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 32; THENCE S89°41'51"E 
ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 
32, A DISTANCE OF 463.40 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH LINE N00°31'08"E ALONG A LINE 
PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4  OF SAID SECTION 32, A DISTANCE OF 60.00 
FEET; THENCE S89°41'51"E, A DISTANCE OF 199.18 FEET; THENCE 
N00°31'56"E, A DISTANCE OF 330.00 FEET; THENCE S89°41'51"E, 
A DISTANCE OF 660.00 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 
1/4 OF SAID SECTION 32;  THENCE S00°31'56"W ALONG THE EAST 
LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 32, A DISTANCE OF 
60.00 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE, N89°41'51"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 600.00 FEET; THENCE S00°31'56"W, A DISTANCE OF 
330.00 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4  OF SAID 
SECTION 32; THENCE N89°41'51"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, A 
DISTANCE OF 259.17 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. LESS 
RIGHT OF WAY FOR COUNTY ROAD 462. 
 
PARCEL 3: 
 
THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 
OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, LESS AND EXCEPT: 
 
BEGIN AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 THENCE RUN SOUTH 16.00 

6.d. 
Page 13 of 16



FEET, NORTHEASTERLY TO A POINT 16.00 FEET EAST OF THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING; THENCE RUN WEST 16.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, ALL LYING AND BEING IN SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 18 
SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
TOGETHER WITH A PERPETUAL, NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR 
INGRESS AND EGRESS CREATED BY INSTRUMENT RECORDED NOVEMBER 
15, 2005 IN O.R. BOOK 1476, PAGE 374, PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, SAID EASEMENT BEING OVER, ACROSS 
AND UPON THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCELS: 
 
THE NORTH 16.00 FEET OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 
1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, 
RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; AND THE WEST 50.00 
FEET OF THE NORTH 16.00 FEET OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 
18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 

6.d. 
Page 14 of 16



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ordinance O2013-53 

“Exhibit B” 

Wildwood Sumter Holdings, LLC 

Conceptual Development Plan 

 

6.d. 
Page 15 of 16



TR
IU

M
PH

 S
OU

TH

1 1

WLC

CMW

09-26-13

PUD

131240.0000

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

(6
6'

 R
IG

HT
-O

F-
W

AY
)

C.
R.

 4
62

NOTE:

THE INTERNAL PROJECT BOUNDARY LOT LINES,

PHASE LINES, ROADWAYS, SIDEWALKS, OPEN

SPACE, IMPERVIOUS AREA, AND D.R.A.'S ARE

SUBJECT TO CHANGE.

6.d. 
Page 16 of 16



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 

 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
The app
applicatio
located to
 
Annexati
contained
 
The app
applicatio
future sh
 
Staff rec
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: Ord

STED ACTIO

 W

 
 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/ISS

plicant, Joe 
on for a por
o the southw

on into the 
d within the 

plicant inten
ons for the 
ould the Co

commends a

cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

dinance O2

ON: 

Work Sessio

Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

UES: 

Nisbett for
rtion of parc
west of the in

City is app
City’s Joint 

nds to subm
subject prop
mmission m

approval of

 

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

2013-55: A
 

on (Report O

eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

r Acorn Inv
cel C13=109
ntersection o

propriate be
Planning Are

mit Small S
perty. Those

move to anne

f Ordinance

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Annexation

Appro

Only) DAT

 S
 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

vestments, 
9. The prope
of C-466 and

ecause the 
ea with Sum

Scale Comp
e application

ex the proper

e O2013-55.

ITY OF W

MARY 

n of a portio

oval of Ordin

TE OF MEET

Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

LLC, has s
erty to be a
d C-209. 

property is 
mter County.

prehensive 
ns will be b
rty.  

WILDWOO

on of Parc

nance O20

TING: 1
1

ting  
 

 
e:   

submitted a
nnexed tota

contiguous 

Plan Amen
brought to C

OD 

cel C13=109

013-55 

1/11/13 Firs
1/25/13 Ado

a voluntary 
als 1.5 +/- a

to the City

ndment and
Commission 

9 

st Reading
option 

annexation 
cres and is 

y limits and 

d Rezoning 
in the near 

6.e. 
Page 1 of 6



 

 
Ordinance O2013-55 

Acorn Investments (C13=109) Annexation 
Page 1 of 5 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-55 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 1.5 ACRES BEING 
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF C-466 
AND WEST OF C-209; IN SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 18 
SOUTH, RANGE 22 EAST; PROVIDING THAT SECTION 1-
14 OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD CODE OF 
ORDINANCES IS AMENDED TO INCLUDE THE ANNEXED 
PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
Now, therefore, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of 
Wildwood, Florida: 

 
 SECTION 1.  Based upon the petition of the owner of the following described real 
property, which is generally located on the south side of C-466 and west of C-209, to be 
annexed into the City the property is hereby annexed into the City of Wildwood pursuant 
to Section 171.204, Florida Statutes.  The City Commission finds that the property is 
located within the City’s Joint Planning Area with Sumter County, and meets all legal 
requirements for annexation.  The annexed property lying in Sumter County, Florida 
owned by Acorn Investments, is more particularly described as follows: 
 
 
 

Parcel # C13=109 
1.5 +/- Acres 

  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
A PORTION OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 22 EAST, 
SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 13; THENCE SOUTH 00°00'00" EAST ALONG 
THE EAST LINE OF SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 13, A 
DISTANCE OF 67.05 FEET; THENCE NORTH 90°00'00" WEST 28.70 FEET TO A 
POINT OF THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 209 AND 
THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 466; THENCE SOUTH 
00°10'23" EAST ALONG AFOREMENTIONED RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 1538.00 FEET 

6.e. 
Page 2 of 6



 

 
Ordinance O2013-55 

Acorn Investments (C13=109) Annexation 
Page 2 of 5 

TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 89°52'08" WEST 1306.99 FEET 
TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 
1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE RUN SOUTHERLY 
50 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTH 1/2 OF NORTH 
1/2 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SOUTHEAST 1/4; THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 
RUN EASTERLY 1307 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 
OF SAID COUNTY ROAD NO. 209; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 
RUN NORTHERLY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
 
CONTAINING 1.50 ACRES MORE OR LESS.           

 
 SECTION 2.  All of the above described annexed property shall liable for its 
proportionate share of the future and existing indebtedness of the City of Wildwood. 
 
 
 SECTION 3.  All of the above described annexed property shall be subject to the 
laws and ordinance of the City of Wildwood as if this territory had been a part of the City 
of Wildwood at the time of passage and approval of said laws and ordinances. 
 
  

SECTION 4.  Until such time as the City amends its comprehensive plan, the 
current Sumter County zoning classification and future land use regulations will remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
 

SECTION 5.  Section 1-14 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended to include the legal description of the annexed parcel pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  
 
 
 SECTION 6. If any portion of this Ordinance is declared invalid for any purpose, 
the remaining portion shall remain valid and in full force and effect. 
  

 
SECTION 7.  This Ordinance shall take effect upon final approval by the City 

Commission. 
 
  

6.e. 
Page 3 of 6



 

 
Ordinance O2013-55 

Acorn Investments (C13=109) Annexation 
Page 3 of 5 

 DONE AND ORDAINED this ____  day of _____, 2013, by the City Commission 
of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
SEAL 
 
ATTEST: CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 
___________________________ _____________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
 
First Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Second Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 
  

6.e. 
Page 4 of 6



 

 
Ordinance O2013-55 

Acorn Investments (C13=109) Annexation 
Page 4 of 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Property to be Annexed 
 

A portion of parcel C13=109 
  

6.e. 
Page 5 of 6



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
OCTOBER 2013 LOCATION MAP

ACORN INVESTMENTS, LLC
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - A

co
rn.

mx
d -

 10
/29

/20
13

 10
:38

:16
 AM

 - t
on

ea
l

C
R

 2
09

C-466 E

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

CR 222

CR 214

CR 204

CR 216

C
R

 1
05

N
E

 4
2n

d B
LV

D

C-472

C
R

 2
03

CR 114

CR 110

CR 106

C
R

 2
01

N
E

 2
7t

h 
S

T

CR 108

C
R

 1
07

N
E

 3
7t

h 
D

R

C
R

 2
07

C
R

 1
1

9

N
E

 3
6t

h 
S

T

N
E

 2
6th D

R

N
E

 4
2n

d S
T

C
R

 2
07

 W

NE 103rd AVE

NE 110th RD
N

 U
S

 3
0

1

6.e. 
Page 6 of 6



SUBJEC

 
 
REQUES
 
 

 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

 
    
 
HISTORY
 
The Flor
District u
7, 2013. 
 
Kimley H
departme
regulatio
regulatio
  
Ordinanc
as recom
 
 
Staff rec
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

CITY

CT: Ord
Ma

STED ACTIO

 W

 
 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/ISS

rida Departm
updated their

Horn and A
ents and ha
ns containe
ns.  

ce O2013-56
mmended by

commends a

cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

dinance O
anagement 

ON: 

Work Sessio

Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 

                          

UES: 

ment of Envi
r regulations

Associates 
as recomme
d within the

6 amends Se
 Kimley-Hor

approval of

 

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

O2013-56 A
Requirem
 

on (Report O

eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

ironmental P
s pertaining 

has consult
ended the 

e Land Deve

ection 6.4 of
rn and Assoc

f Ordinance

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Amending 
ments in the

Appro

Only) DAT

 S
 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

Protection a
to water qu

ted with th
City modify

elopment Re

f the Land D
ciates. 

e O2013-56.

ITY OF W

MARY 

the City’
e Land Dev

oval of Ordin

TE OF MEET

Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

nd the Sout
ality and sto

e Developm
y the draina
egulations to

Development

WILDWOO

’s Drainag
velopment

nance O20

TING: F
A

ting  
 

 
e:   

thwest Florid
ormwater ma

ment Servic
age and sto
o be consist

t Regulation

OD 

ge and St
t Regulatio

013-56 

First Reading
Adoption: 11/

da Water M
anagement 

ces and Pu
ormwater m
tent with the

s to reflect t

tormwater 
ons 

g: 11/11/13
/25/13 

Management 
on October 

ublic Works 
management 
e new state 

he changes 

6.f. 
Page 1 of 12



6.f. 
Page 2 of 12



6.f. 
Page 3 of 12



 
Ordinance No. O2013-56 

Update to Stormwater Regulations 
1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-56 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
AMENDING SECTION 6.4 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; 
PERTAINING DRAINAGE AND STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection and the 

Southwest Florida Water Management District updated their regulations pertaining to 
water quality and stormwater management on October 7, 2013; 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Section 6.4 (Drainage and Stormwater 

Management) of the Land Development Regulations to be consistent with the new state 
regulations. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 
 

 
SECTION 1. The amendments to Section 6.4 of the Land Development 

Regulations are shown in the attached “Exhibit A” with strikethrough for deletions and 
underline for additions. 
   

 
SECTION 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 

the same are hereby repealed.  
 

 
SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 

to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.  
 
  

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption during the second 
and final reading by the City of Wildwood City Commission. 
 
 
 

6.f. 
Page 4 of 12



 
Ordinance No. O2013-56 

Update to Stormwater Regulations 
2 of 2 

 
 DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2013, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
  
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  
 
 
             

Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: __________________ 
     Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   
 
 
First Reading:      
 
Second Reading:      
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
      
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 
 

6.f. 
Page 5 of 12



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ordinance O2013-56 

“Exhibit A” 

Amendments to Section 6.4 of the Land Development Regulations 

Drainage and Stormwater Management 

 

6.f. 
Page 6 of 12



 

6.4.  Drainage and stormwater management. 

(A) General. 
(1)  No  person  shall  conduct  a  development  or  redevelopment  activity,  subdivide, make  any 

change  in  the  use  of  land,  construct  any  stormwater management  system  or  structure,  or 

change  the  size of  an existing  structure without obtaining approval  from  the City  as provided 

herein. 

(2)  Approval  of  the  stormwater  management  plansAuthorization  of  construction  shall  be 

contingent on approval of any required permit from the Southwest Florida Water Management 

District Management  District  (SWFWMD),  FDEP,  FDOT,  or  any  other  agency  with  regulatory 

jurisdiction over the project; however, approval by another government agency will not result in 

automatic approval of the stormwater management plans by the City. 

(3) The stormwater management system is required to be designed by a registered professional 

licensed  by  and  in  the  state  of  Florida  and  practicing  under  Chapter  471,  472,  481  or  492 

engineer. 

(4) The system shall provide for drainage of lots, streets, roads, and other public areas as well as 

handling any runoff from adjacent areas that naturally flows into the subject area. 

(5)  The  drainage  system  shall  be  designed  for  long  life,  low maintenance  cost,  and  ease  of 

maintenance. 

(6) Peak rate and volume attenuation.  Peak discharge rate and volume attenuation shall be as 

required in the SWFWMD regulations and in these regulations. 

(7) Development within flood prone areas (100‐year flood).  All development within flood prone 

areas, as delineated on the official national flood insurance program, flood insurance rate maps, 

or  the  latest and best  information available,  shall  comply with  the  requirements of  SWFWMD 

and the criteria in the flood hazard regulations section of this Code. 

(8) Where  a  permit  is  not  required  under  Chapter  62‐330,  F.A.C.,  or where  a  lesser  permit 

threshold  is  applicable  under  FDEP  or  SWFWMD  rules,  the  stormwater management  system 

must  meet,  at  a  minimum,  the  applicable  criteria.    Applicants  are  strongly  encouraged  to 

conduct a pre‐application meeting with City staff in these instances. 

(B) Water quality. 
(1)  All  stormwater  water management  systems  are  required  to  treat  the  required  pollution 

abatement volume prior to discharge to receiving watersprovide stormwater quality treatment in 

compliance with the applicable SWFWMD rules and criteria. 

(2)  The  pollution  abatementrequired  water  quality  volume  and  treatment  method  varies 

depending on the size and location of the site and shall be as required by SWFWMD. 

(3) The design engineer shall demonstrate that  the  treatment requirements of  the SWFWMD 
are met by the proposed stormwater system design  The amount of volume available for water 
quantity storage is subject to the treatment recovery rules of the SWFWMD, dependent on the 
type  of  treatment  system  provided..    If  full  recovery  has  not  occurred  the  water  quantity 
calculations must account  for  the  remaining  volume and  the  conditions within  the pond  (i.e. 
standing water at the beginning of the design storm analysis). 

Formatted: Right:  0.05", Line spacing: 
Exactly 13.35 pt

6.f. 
Page 7 of 12



 

 (4) Water quality pollution abatement volume shall not be required in stormwater management 

systems that have zero discharge up to and including the 100‐year, 24‐hour storm event. 

(C) Retention/detention pond requirements. 

(1) For projects having drainage areas  less than or equal to  five  (5) acres, calculations may be 
based on the rational method (Q=CIA). The design criteria shall be based on the latest available 

Intensity‐Duration Curves published by FDOT for Zone 7. 

(2) For projects having drainage areas greater than five (5) acres, the Soil Conservation Service 

(SCS) methodology shall be used. The rainfall distribution utilized shall be the SCS Type II, Florida 

6.f. 
Page 8 of 12



 

Modified 24‐Hour, Antecedent Moisture Condition II. The design engineer shall submit complete 

copies  of  all  input  parameters,  supporting  calculations,  assumptions,  and  documentation 

pertaining to the design for review by the City. 

(3) All  so i l s  data used  for  soil permeability or  infiltration analysesdesign  shall be  signed  and 
sealed by  a registered professional engineer.        If  infiltration  is considered  in  the design of any 
retention/detention pond, signed and sealed geotechnical field data and laboratory results must 
be  provided  as  part  of  the  design  calculations.    A minimum  of  two  (2)  soil  borings  shall  be 
provided within each retention/detention pond.  The minimum depth of the soil boring shall be 
six feet (6’) below the proposed pond bottom elevation.  If infiltration is considered in the design 
of any retention/detention pond, signed and sealed geotechnical field data and laboratory results 
must be provided as part of the design calculations. 
(4)  For  a  project  or  portion  of  a  project  within  an  open  basins,  the  stormwater 

retention/detention  facility  shall be  sized  to  fully  retain  the  post development  runoff  volume 

l e s sminus  the  pre‐development  runoff  volume  for  the  25‐year,  24‐hour  storm  event.    Post 

developed  discharge  rates  shall  be  maintained  at  or  below  the  25‐year,  24‐  hour  pre 

development discharge rate. 

(5)  For  a  project  or  portion  of  a  project  in  a  closed  basin,  the  required  retention  volume 
shall  be  the  post‐development  runoff  less  the  pre‐development  runoff  for  the  100‐
year,  24‐hour  storm  event.    The  total  post development  volume  leaving  the  site  shall 
be no more  than  the  total pre‐development  volume  leaving  the  site  for  the 100‐year, 
24‐hour storm event.   Post developed discharge  rates  shall be maintained at or below 
the  100‐year,  24‐hour  pre‐development  discharge  rate.  water  retention/detention 
facilityshall  be  sized  to  fully  retain  the  post‐development  runoff  volume  for  the  100‐year, 
24‐hour storm event. 
(6)  In  all  cases  of  stormwater  discharges,  the  post  development  discharge  to  downstream 

properties shall not cause adverse off‐site impacts and the discharges shall be limited to the pre‐ 

development rate, and general flow pattern. 

(7)  A minimum  freeboard  of  six  inches  (6”)  above  the  design  high  water  elevation  shall  be 

provided  for  all  retention/detention ponds.  The  design high water elevation  is  defined  as  the 

expected  peak  stage  elevation  expected  for  the  100‐year,  24‐hour  stormwater management 

facility as a result of the applicable design storm event. 

 (8)  The  project  engineer  shall  submit  drainage  calculations  demonstrating  that  stormwater 

retention basins will  fully  recover  the  total design  storm volume within 14 days  following  the 

design rainfall event.  For ponds not able to recover the design volume within 14 days, the pond 

volume  shall  be   increased  to  retain  the  post‐development minus  pre  development  runoff 

volume and peak discharge rate from a second 25‐year, 24‐hour design storm in an open basin, 

or  the  post‐development minus  pre‐development  runoff  volume  from  a  second  100‐year,  24‐ 

hour design storm if in a closed basin. 

(9) All assumed drainage calculation parameters must be  listed and supported by conventional 

methods.     All  geotechnical parameters must be  supported by  signed and  sealed  geotechnical 

field data and  laboratory results.  Calculations must be presented in a format acceptable to the 

City.  The  final determination on the suitability of assumed parameters  is at the sole discretion 

of the City Engineer. 

(D) Fencing requirements. 

Formatted: Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt

Formatted: Right:  0.05", Line spacing: 
Exactly 13.35 pt

Formatted: Right:  0.05", Line spacing: 
Exactly 13.35 pt

6.f. 
Page 9 of 12



 

(1) Wet ponds. Fencing shall be  required unless  the side slopes have a maximum steepness of 

fivefour‐to‐one (54:1) for to a depth of at  least  four two  feet (4’2’) below the control elevation 

in the pond.  Below this elevation, the side slopes may be increased to two‐to‐one (2:1). 

(2) Dry ponds. Fencing shall be required when the side slopes are steeper than four‐to‐one (4:1). 

Dry ponds  shall be a maximum of  ten  feet  (10’) deep, measured  from pond bottom  to  top of 

bank. 

(3) When provided,  fencing shall be  six  feet  (6’) high with a  twelve  feet  (12’) wide  flat access 

berm adjacent to the inside perimeter of the fence. 

(E) Storm sewer and culvert design. 

(1) Types and requirements. Where drainage pipes are utilized, the following standards apply: 

(a)  Storm  sewers  shall  be  of  reinforced  concrete  or  other  FDOT  approved material, 

subject to additional approval by the City, and have a minimum diameter of 18 inches or 

6.f. 
Page 10 of 12



 

equal.  An inlet or manhole is required at each change of alignment or grade.  Minimum 

pipe diameters may be reduced in grassed areas not subject to vehicular traffic; 

(b) Where any  storm pipe  terminates at an earthen slope a mitered end  section and 

concrete collar, or approved equal, is required; 

(c) The following maximum lengths of pipe shall be used when spacing access structures 

of any type: 

 
TABLE 6‐2 

Pipe Diameter Maximum Pipe Length 

Less than 18 inches 300 feet 

24 to 36 inches 400 feet 

42 inches and larger 500 feet 
 
(F) Conveyance System Design storm (minimum). 

 
TABLE 6‐3 

Facility Frequency and Duration 

Principal arterial bridges and evacuation routes 100‐year 24 hours 

Canals, ditches, swales, storm drains or culverts for drainage 

external to the development 
25‐year 24 hours 

Canals, ditches, swales, storm drains or culverts for drainage 

internal to the development 
10‐year 24 hours 

 
(1) The design frequency for major drainage systems may be  increased if deemed necessary by 

the  City  to  protect  known  flooding  conditions  in  upstream  or  downstream  properties  or  to 

comply with other regulations. 

(2)  Design  tailwater.   All  storm  sewer  systems  and  culverts  shall  be  designed  taking  into 
consideration the tailwater of the receiving facility or water body. The tailwater elevation used 

shall be based on  the  tailwater elevation of  the  receiving water body at  the peak  time of  the 

design storm.  Alternatively, the tailwater may be assumed to be the design high water elevation 

of the receiving water body for the design storm. 

(3)  The  hydraulic  gradient  line  for  the  storm  sewer  system  shall  be  computed  taking  into 
consideration the design tailwater on the system and the energy losses associated with entrance 

into  and  exit  from  the  system,  friction  through  the  system,  and  turbulence  in  the  individual 

manholes, catch basins, and junctions within the system. 

(4) The design criteria to be utilized for the design of pavement drainage shall be as follows: 

6.f. 
Page 11 of 12



 

TABLE 6‐4 
 

Arterial streets 
10‐year, 24‐hour, hydraulic gradient line 1.0 foot 

below the gutter flowline 
 

Collector and local streets 
10‐year, 24‐hour, hydraulic gradient line 0.5 feet 

below the gutter flowline 
 
(G) Erosion protection.   Standard practices  shall be used  to prevent erosion and  the depositing of  soil 

off‐site pursuant to the requirements of the FDEP Generic Permit for Stormwater Discharge from Large 

and Small Construction Activities. 

(H) Maintenance. 
(1)  A  written  operation  and  maintenance  plan   shall   contain   information  per   SWFWMD 

regulations as the minimum criteria that shall be accepted by the City. 

(2)  The  installed  stormwater  system  shall  be maintained  by  the  legal  entity  responsible  for 

maintenance. All permit applications shall contain documentation sufficient to demonstrate that 

the  operation  and  maintenance  entity   is   the   legal  entity  empowered  and  obligated   to 

perpetually maintain the stormwater management facilities. 

(3)  The  stormwater  management  system  to  be  maintained  by  the  legal  entity  shall  have 

adequate  easements,  in  accordance  with  this  Code,  to  permit  the  City  to  inspect  and,  if 

necessary, to take corrective action should the legal entity fail to maintain the system properly. 

 

6.f. 
Page 12 of 12



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
As direct
certain C
of Powel
 
Prior to s
R2013-3
or less) a
 
The cont
Commiss
 
 

 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: Dec

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/ISS

ted by the C
City owned p
l Road and H

selling the p
2 declares P
as surplus pr

tract to the p
sion for cons

cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

claration o

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

UES: 

City Commis
property. The
Huey Street

property, the
Parcels G08
roperty. A m

purchase the
sideration at

 

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

of Surplus 
 

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

ssion, City s
e property is
.    

e City must f
8=047, G08=

map depicting

e property is 
t the Novemb

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Property: 

Co

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

staff is movi
s part of Mill

first declare
=039, and a 
g the parcels

currently be
ber 25, 2013

ITY OF W

MARY 

Millennium

onsideration

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

ing forward 
lennium Par

e the propert
 portion of G
s is incorpor

eing negotia
3 Commissio

WILDWOO

m Park Pro

n of R2013-

TING: 1
ting  

 

 
e:   

with the ne
rk and is loc

ty as surplu
G08=018 (to
rated into the

ated and will 
on meeting. 

OD 

operty 

-32  

1/11/2013 

gotiation of 
cated at the 

s property. 
otaling 2.65 
e resolution.

likely be bro
 

the sale of
intersection 

 Resolution 
acres more 
 

ought to the 

7.a. 
Page 1 of 5



RESOLUTION NO. R2013-32 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA DETERMINING THAT 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY IS SURPLUS; DETERMINING 
THAT SAID REAL PROPERTY SHOULD BE USED IN A 
MANNER TO FURTHER THE PUBLIC INTEREST; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
    
 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood is the owner of 2.65 acres more or less of 
certain real property currently identified by the Sumter County Property Appraiser as 
Parcels G08=047, G08=039, and a portion of G08=018 as shown on the attached 
“Exhibit A”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Wildwood has determined that the  
property as shown in the attached “Exhibit A” is surplus because the property is of no 
use to the City; and, 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, THAT: 
 
 1. The property shown on “Exhibit A” is hereby declared surplus property.   
 
 2. The property identified in “Exhibit A” should be sold in a manner 
determined appropriate by the City Commission. 
  
 3.    This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
 DONE AND RESOLVED, this    day of     , 2013, 
in regular session, by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
SEAL 
             
ATTEST:      Ed Wolf, Mayor 
  Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 
 

7.a. 
Page 2 of 5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution R2013-32 

“Exhibit A” 

Declaration of Surplus Property 

Location Maps 

 

7.a. 
Page 3 of 5



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
NOVEMBER 2013 LOCATION MAP

Millennium Park Surplus
PropertyCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - M

ille
nn

ium
 Pa

rk 
Su

rpl
us

.m
xd

 - 1
1/5

/20
13

 12
:53

:49
 PM

 - t
on

ea
l

P
O

W
E

LL
 R

D

C-44A

HUEY ST

CR 142

S
 S

T
 C

LA
IR

 S
T

BROKEN OAK DR

CR 144

MEADOW ST

N
 S

T
 C

L
A

IR
 S

T

W
IL

D
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
E

 A
V

E

G08=047G08=039Portion of
G08=018

Legend
City of Wildwood

Millennium Park Surplus

Community Center

7.a. 
Page 4 of 5



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
NOVEMBER 2013 LOCATION MAP

Millennium Park Surplus
PropertyCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\A

ER
IAL

 - M
ille

nn
ium

 P
ark

 Su
rpl

us
.m

xd
 - 1

1/5
/20

13
 12

:57
:14

 PM
 - t

on
ea

l

P
O

W
E

LL
 R

D

C-44A

HUEY ST

CR 142

S
 S

T
 C

LA
IR

 S
T

BROKEN OAK DR

CR 144

MEADOW ST

N
 S

T
 C

L
A

IR
 S

T

W
IL

D
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
E

 A
V

E

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA,
USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo,
and the GIS User Community

G08=047G08=039Portion of
G08=018

Legend
City of Wildwood

Millennium Park Surplus

Community Center

7.a. 
Page 5 of 5



Tabled from 

8.a. 
Page 1 of 1



 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 

CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date:  Nov. 11, 2013 
 

Subject: Trailwinds offsite Water & Wastewater Infrastructure 
 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. (KHA) 
 Individual Project Order (IPO) #23  
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 

Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend approval of KHA’s IPO #23 in the 
amount of $246,000 for the design, permitting, bid administration and construction 
administration for the offsite water and wastewater infrastructure needed to serve the 
Trailwinds development. 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 Developer and City entered into a Developer’s Agreement dated January 14, 
2013, which was recorded in O.R. Book 2611 at page 709 ,  

 The First Addendum to Developer’s Agreement (Pioneer Agreement) dated 
March 18, 2013, was recorded in O.R. Book 2623 at page 243. 

 On October 28, 2013, the Developer and the City entered into the First 
Amendment to the Pioneer Agreement. 
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 FINDINGS: 

 The agreements, in total, provide for the developer to pay for the offsite 
infrastructure design, permitting and construction at an estimated cost of 
$1,800,000. 

 The October 28 agreement provides a schedule for payments from the 
developer to the City for thus offsite work. 

 
 CONCLUSIONS: 

 KHA IPO #23 provides for: 
o Surveying of the proposed route  $  25,500 
o Geotechnical (soil borings of route)  $  22,000 
o Design and permitting    $120,000 
o Bid Administration    $  18,500 

8.b. 
Page 1 of 8



o Construction Administration   $  60,000 
o Total      $246,000 

  

LEGAL REVIEW: 

 IPO #23 has been provided to the City Attorney for his review and 
approval. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends approval of KHA IPO #23. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 City will upfront cost required prior to payments as provided in the payment 
schedule. 

 Developer will reimburse City for design, permitting and construction of the 
offsite infrastructure. 

 City, for a ten period, will reimburse Developer water and wastewater TIE fees 
paid to the City by entities utilizing the offsite infrastructure improvements. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 City could fund design, permitting and construction costs and receive water and 
wastewater TIE fees as development progresses. 

 

SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Copy of KHA IPO #23 
 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\Nov 11, 2013\KHA IPO #23 - Trailwinds Agenda.doc 
 

 

 

8.b. 
Page 2 of 8



 

INDIVIDUAL PROJECT ORDER NUMBER 23 
May 16, 2013 

Describing a specific agreement between Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. (Kimley-Horn), and The City 
of Wildwood (the Client or the City) in accordance with the terms of the Master Agreement for 
Continuing Professional Services dated January 7, 2009, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

Identification of Project: 

Project:   Trailwinds Utility Extensions 

Client:   City of Wildwood 

General Category of Services: 

The City intends to construct offsite sanitary force main and lift station improvements, as well as potable 
water main extensions, to serve a proposed development on C466A just east of C462 to be known as 
Trailwinds.  The City has executed an agreement with the developer of the Trailwinds project whereby 
the developer will pay the City to design and construct the needed offsite infrastructure.   

Under this Agreement Kimley-Horn will prepare construction plans and specifications for the design of 
the following components: 

1. Potable water main extension from the intersection of C466A and C462 to the southwest property 
corner of the Trailwinds project. 

2. Potable water main extension from the dead-end waterline on C462 near the St. Vincent Catholic 
Church to the northwest corner of the Trailwinds project. 

3. Sanitary force main extension from the Trailwinds project to the City’s waste water treatment 
plant (WWTP), a distance of approximately 6.25 miles.  The expected general route for this 
extension is shown on the attached Exhibit A. 

4. Up to two re-pump or inline sanitary lift stations along the route. 

5. Kimley-Horn will permit the utility line extensions with Sumter County, the Florida Department 
of Transportation, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) and CSX, as 
applicable. 

6. The City will provide any needed coordination and legal support for acquisition of offsite 
easements, property acquisitions, right of entry agreements, etc. that may be needed for 
construction of the utility extensions. 

Specific Scope of Basic Services: 

Task 1 – Professional Survey Services 

A. Kimley-Horn will establish the project corridor and coordinate with a professional land 
surveyor sub-consultant to prepare a topographic route survey along the project limits. 

B. The City will locate and mark existing water and wastewater utilities within the project limits.  
Other existing utilities will be requested to be located by Sunshine One-Call. 

C. The survey scope will consist of the following elements: 

1. Location of any improvements that will interfere with the design or construction of the 
water main, including all trees 6” or larger. 

2. Locate all surface evidence of utilities along the route, as well as utility marks as 
delineated by requesting through Sunshine State One Call.  Other than obtaining inverts of 

8.b. 
Page 3 of 8



IPO #23 – Trailwinds Utility Extension 
May 16, 2013 Page 2 

accessible manholes, drop inlets, etc. underground location of utilities will be shown as 
delineated by others.  Power poles will be located with overhead wires. 

3. The survey will cover the full right-of-way along East County Road 462, County Road 
213, and Industrial Drive as depicted on attached Figure 1.  And an area 50 foot wide 
along proposed alignment for County Road 462 (alignment to be defined by client prior to 
commencement).   

4. Location of any improvements that will interfere with the design or construction of the 
pipelines, inverts, and including all trees 6” or larger 

5. Locate all surface evidence of utilities along the route, as well as utility marks as 
delineated by requesting through Sunshine State One Call.  Other than obtaining inverts of 
accessible manholes, drop inlets, etc., underground location of utilities will be shown as 
delineated by others.  Power poles will be located with overhead wires. 

6. Horizontal and Vertical control will be established at approximately 1000 foot intervals 
along the route. 

7. Any monumentation evidence of existing rights-of-way along the route will be located. 
The rights –of-way along the route are being claimed by plats recorded, right of way maps 
and/or deeds. 

8. Topographic Survey will include: 

a. All improvements 

b. State Plane Coordinates 

c. All easements depicted on survey as furnished by client or platted  

d. Location of all visible utilities 

e. Trees 6” and larger 

f. Vertical datum will be on NAVD 1988 

g. Full right of way an existing conditions along contiguous roadways 

h. Contours will be collected on a 50’ grid 

i. Contours will be shown on a 1’ for minor, and 5’ for major 

9. Survey will be done in Florida West State Plane Coordinate System (NAD 83). 

Task 2 – Geotechnical Sub-consultant 

A. Kimley-Horn will utilize a geotechnical subconsultant to perform up to 30 soil borings (up to 5 
feet deep each).  The purpose of the borings is to establish soil quality for trenching and back 
fill requirements along with estimating unsuitable soil quantities. 

B. Kimley-Horn will utilize a geotechnical subconsultant to perform a subsurface utility 
exploration at the intersection of CR462 and US301 to better ascertain the location of existing 
utilities at this intersection. 

Task 3 – Construction Plans, Specifications, and Permitting 

A. Kimley-Horn will prepare construction plans, specifications, and an opinion of probable cost 
for the water main extensions, force main extensions and lift station construction described in 
the General Category of Services. 

8.b. 
Page 4 of 8



IPO #23 – Trailwinds Utility Extension 
May 16, 2013 Page 3 

B. Kimley-Horn will coordinate with utility owners identified by Sunshine One-Call to determine 
potential utility conflicts. 

C. Kimley-Horn will submit 30% and 100% plans, specifications, and an opinion of probable cost 
for the City’s review. 

D. Kimley-Horn will prepare a Sumter County Right of Way Use permit for construction of the 
utility extensions within County right of way. 

E. Kimley-Horn will prepare a CSX Utility Crossing permit for construction of the utility 
extension beneath the CSX rail line on C462. 

F. Kimley-Horn will prepare a FDOT Utility Permit for the construction of the utility extension at 
the intersection of C462 and US301. 

G. Kimley-Horn will prepare an “FDEP Notice of Intent to Use the General Permit for 
Construction of Water Main Extensions for PWSs” application as required for all new water 
main construction.  

H. All permit application fees will be paid by the City. 

Task 4 – Bid Administration 

A. Kimley-Horn will prepare bid packages consisting of plans and specifications (in EJCDC 
format) to be included in the City’s bid packages. 

B. The City will prepare and advertise the Bid Notification.  Kimley-Horn will provide the 
technical information required for the notification language. 

C. Kimley-Horn will conduct a pre-bid meeting at the project site with prospective bidders.   

D. Kimley-Horn will administer distribution of the bid packages and maintain a log of the issued 
bid packages.  Kimley-Horn will charge those requesting bid packages a fee for each set of 
issued documents.  The fee is intended to cover the cost of reproduction, shipping and handling 
of the bid packages.  The City will be provided with two (2) bid package sets at no cost. 

E. Kimley-Horn will respond to Request for Information’s (RFIs) and prepare bid addendums as 
necessary during the bid process. 

F. Kimley-Horn will review the bid responses and tabulate the results.  Kimley-Horn will provide 
the City with a written bid tabulation record along with a selection recommendation. 

Task 5 – Construction Administration 

A. Pre-Construction Conference.  The Consultant will conduct a Pre-Construction Conference 
prior to commencement of work at the Site. 

B. Visits to Site and Observation of Construction.  The Consultant will provide on-site 
construction observation services during the construction phase.  This task assumes an active 

construction duration of 120 calendar days. The Consultant will make visits at intervals as 
required to ensure that the work is being performed in accordance with the plans and 
specifications.  Such visits and observations by the Consultant are not intended to be exhaustive 
or to extend to every aspect of Contractor’s work in progress.  Observations are to be limited to 
spot checking, selective measurement, and similar methods of general observation of the Work 
based on the Consultant's exercise of professional judgment.  Based on information obtained 
during such visits and such observations, the Consultant will evaluate whether Contractor’s 
work is generally proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents, and the Consultant 
will keep Client informed of the general progress of the Work. 

8.b. 
Page 5 of 8



IPO #23 – Trailwinds Utility Extension 
May 16, 2013 Page 4 

The purpose of the Consultant site visits will be to enable the Consultant to better carry out the 
duties and responsibilities specifically assigned in this Agreement to the Consultant, and to 
provide Client a greater degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform in general 
to the Contract Documents.  The Consultant shall not, during such visits or as a result of such 
observations of Contractor’s work in progress, supervise, direct, or have control over 
Contractor’s work, nor shall the Consultant have authority over or responsibility for the means, 
methods, techniques, equipment choice and usage, sequences, schedules, or procedures of 
construction selected by Contractor, for safety precautions and programs incident to 
Contractor’s work, nor for any failure of Contractor to comply with laws and regulations 
applicable to Contractor’s furnishing and performing the Work.  Accordingly, the Consultant 
neither guarantees the performance of any Contractor nor assumes responsibility for any 
Contractor’s failure to furnish and perform its work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 

C. Recommendations with Respect to Defective Work.  The Consultant will recommend to Client 
that Contractor’s work be disapproved and rejected while it is in progress if, on the basis of 
such observations, the Consultant believes that such work will not produce a completed Project 
that conforms generally to Contract Documents. 

D. Clarifications and Interpretations.  The Consultant will respond to reasonable and appropriate 
Contractor requests for information and issue necessary clarifications and interpretations of the 
Contract Documents to Client as appropriate to the orderly completion of Contractor’s work.  
Any orders authorizing variations from the Contract Documents will be made by Client. 

E. Change Orders.  Kimley-Horn may recommend Change Orders to Client, and will review and 
make recommendations related to Change Orders submitted or proposed by the Contractor. 

F. Shop Drawings and Samples.  The Consultant will review and approve or take other 
appropriate action in respect to Shop Drawings and Samples and other data which Contractor is 
required to submit, but only for conformance with the information given in the Contract 
Documents.  Such review and approvals or other action will not extend to means, methods, 
techniques, equipment choice and usage, sequences, schedules, or procedures of construction or 
to related safety precautions and programs. 

G. Substitutes and “or-equal.”  Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or “or-
equal” materials and equipment proposed by Contractor in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, but subject to the provisions of applicable standards of state or local government 
entities. 

H. Inspections and Tests.  The Consultant may require special inspections or tests of Contractor’s 
work as Kimley-Horn deems appropriate, and may receive and review certificates of 
inspections within the Consultant’s area of responsibility or of tests and approvals required by 
laws and regulations or the Contract Documents.  The Consultant’s review of such certificates 
will be for the purpose of determining that the results certified indicate compliance with the 
Contract Documents and will not constitute an independent evaluation that the content or 
procedures of such inspections, tests, or approvals comply with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents.  The Consultant shall be entitled to rely on the results of such tests and 
the facts being certified. 

I. Disagreements between Client and Contractor.  The Consultant will, if requested by Client, 
render written decision on all claims of Client and Contractor relating to the acceptability of 
Contractor’s work or the interpretation of the requirements of the Contract Documents 
pertaining to the progress of Contractor’s work.  In rendering such decisions, the Consultant 
shall be fair and not show partiality to Client or Contractor and shall not be liable in connection 
with any decision rendered in good faith in such capacity. 

8.b. 
Page 6 of 8



IPO #23 – Trailwinds Utility Extension 
May 16, 2013 Page 5 

J. Applications for Payment.  Based on its observations and on review of applications for payment 
and accompanying supporting documentation, the Consultant will determine the amounts that 
the Consultant recommends Contractor be paid.  Such recommendations of payment will be in 
writing and will constitute the Consultant’s representation to Client, based on such observations 
and review, that, to the best of the Consultant’s knowledge, information and belief, 
Contractor’s work has progressed to the point indicated and that such work-in-progress is 
generally in accordance with the Contract Documents subject to any qualifications stated in the 
recommendation.  In the case of unit price work, the Consultant’s recommendations of payment 
will include determinations of quantities and classifications of Contractor’s work, based on 
observations and measurements of quantities provided with pay requests. 
By recommending any payment, the Consultant shall not thereby be deemed to have 
represented that its observations to check Contractor’s work have been exhaustive, extended to 
every aspect of Contractor’s work in progress, or involved detailed inspections of the Work 
beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to the Consultant in this Agreement.  It will 
also not impose responsibility on the Consultant to make any examination to ascertain how or 
for what purposes Contractor has used the moneys paid on account of the Contract Price, nor to 
determine that title to any portion of the work in progress, materials, or equipment has passed to 
Client free and clear of any liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, nor that there 
may not be other matters at issue between Client and Contractor that might affect the amount 
that should be paid. 

K. Substantial Completion.  The Consultant will, promptly after notice from Contractor that it 
considers the entire Work ready for its intended use, in company with Client and Contractor, 
conduct a site visit to determine if the Work is substantially complete.  Work will be considered 
substantially complete following satisfactory completion of all items with the exception of 
those identified on a final punch list.  If after considering any objections of Client, the 
Consultant considers the Work substantially complete, the Consultant will notify Client and 
Contractor. 

L. Closeout Coordination.  The Consultant will prepare permit close outs for the affected 
regulatory agencies, and provide written confirmation to the City for their records.  The 
expected close outs are: 
 City of Wildwood testing results, lift station start ups, operation manuals, etc. 
 FDEP turnover documents. 
 FDOT permit close out documents. 
 CSX permit close out documents. 
 Sumter County permit close out documents. 
 Assistance with warranty bond coordination from the general contractor. 

M. Final Notice of Acceptability of the Work.  The Consultant will conduct a final site visit to 
determine if the completed Work of Contractor is generally in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and the final punch list so that the Consultant may recommend, in writing, final 
payment to Contractor.  Accompanying the recommendation for final payment, the Consultant 
shall also provide a notice that the Work is generally in accordance with the Contract 
Documents to the best of the Consultant’s knowledge, information, and belief based on the 
extent of its services and based upon information provided to the Consultant upon which it is 
entitled to rely. 

N. Limitation of Responsibilities.  The Consultant shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions 
of any Contractor, or of any of their subcontractors, suppliers, or of any other individual or 
entity performing or furnishing the Work.  The Consultant shall not have the authority or 

8.b. 
Page 7 of 8



IPO #23 – Trailwinds Utility Extension 
May 16, 2013 Page 6 

responsibility to stop the work of any Contractor. 
O. The site observations included in this scope of work is based on an average of 20 hours of site 

observations each week (5 day work week) over a 120 calendar day construction duration. 

Additional Services if required: 

Services requested that are not specifically included will be provided under a new and separate IPO 
agreement or can be performed on an hourly basis upon written authorization.  The following services 
specifically excluded from the above scope of services can be provided as an “Additional Service”. 

 Additional design and/or permitting services not noted above, 

 Environmental permitting services, 

 FDOT Maintenance of Traffic Plans. 

 Any other professional design service not specifically described in the above Scope of Services. 

Schedule: 

Kimley-Horn will begin services upon receipt of an executed IPO.  The above services will be provided 
as expeditiously as possible to meet a mutually agreed upon schedule. 

Method of Compensation: 

The Engineer will complete the above scope of services for the fees detailed below, inclusive of expenses.  
A breakdown of fee by task is as follows: 

Task  Description  Lump Sum Fee  
Task 1  Survey Sub-consultant  $25,500 
Task 2  Geotechnical Sub-consultant  $22,000 
Task 3 Construction Plans, Specifications, and Permitting $120,000 
Task 4 Bid Administration $18,500 
Task 5 Construction Administration $60,000 

Total: $246,000 

Other Special Terms of Individual Project Order: 

Services provided under this will be invoiced on a monthly basis.  All invoices will include a description 
of services provided. 

ACCEPTED: 

THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA  KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
 
BY:       BY:       
        Richard V. Busche, PE 
 
 
TITLE:       TITLE: Vice President     
 
 
DATE:       DATE: May 16, 2013     

 
G:\New Business\Public Sector\City of Wildwood\2013\RB\IPO #23 Trailwinds Utility Extensions.doc 

8.b. 
Page 8 of 8



 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 

CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date:  Nov. 11, 2013 
 

Subject: Landstone Utility Agreement 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 

Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend approval of the “Utilities 
Agreement” between the City of Wildwood, Florida and Landstone-Wright, LLC. 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 The City Commission annexed the Wright Ranch, approximately 4,050 acres 
located on the south side of CR 470 on January 22, 2007 by Ordinance No. 503. 

 The City approved the Developer’s Annexation Agreement between the City, 
Tony Mendola, LLC and Landstone Communities, LLC on January 8, 2007. This 
agreement became effective on March 22, 2007. 

 Landstone-Wright, LLC are the successors to Tony Mendola, LLC and Landstone 
Communities, LLC. 

 The City entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with Landstone –Wright, 
LLC on April 4, 2008 (effective date). 

 An Amended and Restated Development Order (ARDO), The Landstone 
Communities Development of Regional Impact, City of Wildwood, between the 
City of Wildwood and Landstone-Wright, LLC was entered into on December 13, 
2010. 
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 FINDINGS: 

 The ARDO provided the developer the following: 
o Residential    8,025 Units 
o Commercial/Retail   652,500 SF 
o Office     150,000 SF 
o Warehouse/Industrial   500,000 SF 
o Hotel     250 Rooms 
o Mine     280 Acres 
o Golf Course    18 Holes 
o Parks     80.1 Acres 
o Elementary School   650 Students  

8.c. 
Page 1 of 39



 The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) provided for the following in 
regards to City utilities: 

o 19 acres for a wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) site. 
o 25 acres for a wet weather storage facility. 
o City to provide potable water, wastewater and reuse water services 

to the development 
o Water Connection fees were to be paid for first 2,000 residential 

units with 50% up front, 25% pro rata at issuance of a building 
permit and 25% pro rata at issuance of a CO. 

o Water TIE fees were to be for 2,000 units and 100% paid upon 
approval of the Development Order (DO). 

o Wastewater Connection fees were to be paid 50% at approval of 
the DO, 25% pro rata at issuance of a building permit and 25% pro 
rata at issuance of a CO. 

o The MOU is silent in regards to wastewater TIE fees, the 
assumption is that the on-site plant and the developer built 
infrastructure negated the need for wastewater TIE fees. 
 

 CONCLUSIONS:   

 Due to the economic down turn the development has not progressed as 
originally planned. 
 
Memorandum of Agreement 

 The up-front fees required of the Developer through the MOU equated to 
approximately $3,900,000 and required the City to fund the capacity 
improvements to the CR 501 water plant, fund the construction of the 
water main to the development and fund the construction of the new 
wastewater treatment plant on the development. 
Proposed Utilities Agreement Between The City of Wildwood, Florida 

and Landstone-Wright, LLC 

 Developer may fund and construct the wastewater treatment facility and 
receive wastewater connection fees for the cost of same. Upon completion 
of the WWTP it would be owned, maintained and operated by the City of 
Wildwood. 

 Developer may also opt to fund the construction of the WWTP and the 
City construct it. 

 Water and wastewater infrastructure shall be constructed by developer and 
turned over to the City for operation and maintenance, therefore no water 
or wastewater TIE fees are applicable. 

 Developer shall fund the design, permitting and construction of any 
capacity improvements required at the CR 501 water plant due to the 
needs of the project and shall receive water connection fee credits for 
same. 

  

LEGAL REVIEW: 

 The former City Attorney was a co-author of this agreement.  

8.c. 
Page 2 of 39



 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends approval of the Utilities Agreement Between The City of 
Wildwood and Landstone-Wright, LLC. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 This agreement is written such that the cost of all capacity improvements and all 
infrastructure improvements are to be borne by the developer. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 Have the City bear the burden of funding all the capacity (treatment plant and 
infrastructure) improvements for the development and collect Connection and TIE 
fees for same. 

 

SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Copy of the Utilities Agreement Between The City of Wildwood and Landstone-
Wright, LLC 

 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\Nov 11, 2013\Landstone Utility Agreement Agenda memo.doc 
 

 

 

8.c. 
Page 3 of 39



8.c. 
Page 4 of 39



8.c. 
Page 5 of 39



8.c. 
Page 6 of 39



8.c. 
Page 7 of 39



8.c. 
Page 8 of 39



8.c. 
Page 9 of 39



8.c. 
Page 10 of 39



8.c. 
Page 11 of 39



8.c. 
Page 12 of 39



8.c. 
Page 13 of 39



8.c. 
Page 14 of 39



8.c. 
Page 15 of 39



8.c. 
Page 16 of 39



8.c. 
Page 17 of 39



8.c. 
Page 18 of 39



8.c. 
Page 19 of 39



8.c. 
Page 20 of 39



8.c. 
Page 21 of 39



8.c. 
Page 22 of 39



8.c. 
Page 23 of 39



8.c. 
Page 24 of 39



8.c. 
Page 25 of 39



8.c. 
Page 26 of 39



8.c. 
Page 27 of 39



8.c. 
Page 28 of 39



8.c. 
Page 29 of 39



8.c. 
Page 30 of 39



8.c. 
Page 31 of 39



8.c. 
Page 32 of 39



8.c. 
Page 33 of 39



8.c. 
Page 34 of 39



8.c. 
Page 35 of 39



8.c. 
Page 36 of 39



8.c. 
Page 37 of 39



8.c. 
Page 38 of 39



8.c. 
Page 39 of 39



THIS LEASE 

This lease is entered into this day of   , A.D., 2013, by and 

between the City of Wildwood, herein called the lessor, and Dodd McDowell, DM7 Cattle 

Company, herein called the lessee. The parties agree as follows: 

1. In consideration of the covenants herein contained on the part of the said 

lessee to be kept and performed, the said lessor does hereby lease to the said lessee that 

portion of the property described in the attached Exhibit "A" that is: (a) not currently and has 

not been used by the City in operation or maintenance of its rapid infiltration basins which are 

also located on the front portion of the property described in Exhibit "A"; and, (b) that portion of 

the property that has been leased by the City to AT&T for a cell tower on a portion of the 

property described in Exhibit "A". 

2. The term of this lease shall be twelve (12) months from the  11th  day of    

November  A.D., 2013. 

3. And the said lessee covenants with the said lessor to pay the rent in an 

annual payment of $1248.00 on the  11th  day of November, 2013; to make no unlawful, improper 

or offensive use of the premises; not to assign this lease or to sublet any part of said premises 

without the written consent of the lessor; not to use said premises for any other purpose than 

for grazing cattle; to bring the fencing up to the standard necessary to contain cattle on the 

property, said initial cost to go against the lease payment, and to be responsible for the cost 

of any on-going required fencing maintenance; to cooperate to allow AT&T access to build 

and maintain a cell tower; and to quit and deliver up said premises at the end of said term 

in good condition as they are now (ordinary wear and decay damage by the elements only 

expected). 

4. The said lessee hereby covenants and agrees that if default shall be made in 

8.d. 
Page 1 of 5



the payment of the rent as aforesaid, or if the said lessee shall violate any of the 

covenants of the lease, then said lessee shall become tenant at sufference, hereby waiving all 

right of notice, and the lessor shall be entitled immediately to re-enter and retake 

possession of the demised premises. 

5. Lessee further covenants and agrees that: (a) he/she shall be responsible for all 

maintenance of the fence and that the fence shall be maintained at all times in a manner that 

will assure that any animal placed on the property will be contained; (b) that the number of 

cattle on the property shall not exceed seventy-five (75) at any point in time;  (c) that Lessee 

shall install a new gate to be approved by Lessor on CR121 and shall use only this gate; and 

(d) Lessee shall not use CR122 for egress to the property. 

6. Lessee further covenants to indemnify and hold harmless the City of Wildwood 

for any claims, suits, actions, damages, liability, and expense in connection with loss of life, 

bodily or personal injury or property damage brought against the City of Wildwood arising 

from or out of, or occasioned wholly or in part by lessee's use of the subject property, 

including, but not limited to, any claim by any person for property or personal injury 

damage. 

7. Lessee further covenants that in the event of default, Lessor shall recover all 

additional rent, special damages, costs and attorney's fees incurred by it as a result of the 

default by Lessee. 

8. Lessee further agrees and covenants that either party may terminate this 

agreement without cause within thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. 

9. Lessee understands and agrees that the fee simple interest in the property that 

is being leased is exempt from ad valorem taxation but that the leasehold interest that is being 

leased by the lessee may be subject to ad valorem taxation.  Lessee agrees that if a tax is due 

8.d. 
Page 2 of 5



because of the use of the property by lessee, lessee will pay the tax . 

 Witness our hands and seals this  day of    , 2013.  
 
 Signed and sealed and Delivered in the presence of: 
        
        City of Wildwood 
 
 
 
              
Witness signature      By: Mayor Ed Wolf 
 
 
       Attest:     

 
        Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
      
 
        DM7 Cattle Company 
 
 
 
              
Witness Signature      By: Dodd McDowell 
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  
COUNTY OF SUMTER 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this    day of      
2013, by    who is personally known to me or who has produced  
    as identification and who did (did not) take an oath. 
 
             
       Notary Public 
 
       Printed Name:     
 
       Commission No:    
 
       Expiration Date:    
 
 
 
 
 
 

8.d. 
Page 3 of 5



That portion of the North half (N1/2) of Section 29, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, in 
Sumter County, Florida, lying East of the CSX (formerly  S.C.L.) Railroad right of way, more 
particularly described as follows: 
 
Commence at the Northeast corner of said Section 29, thence run North 89°51'03" West along 
the North line of said Section 29 a distance of 2587.34 feet; thence run South 00°00'44” East 
25.00 feet to the Northwest corner of Lot 55, Lake Miona Heights an unrecorded subdivision 
and the Point of Beginning; thence continue South 00°00'44”

 
East along the West line of 

Lots 55, 56, and 65, of aforesaid Lake Miona Heights, a distance of 596.00 feet to the 
Southwest corner of Lot 65 of aforesaid Lake Miona Heights; thence run North 89°51'03” 

West 40.00 feet to the Northwest corner of Lot 102, of said Lake Miona Heights, thence run 
South 00°00'44” East 170.00 feet to the Southwest corner of Lot 102, of said Lake Miona 
Heights, thence run South 89°51'03”

 
East 76.35 feet, thence run South 00°01'48" West 

225.00 feet to the Southwest corner of Lot  107, of Lake Miona Heights, thence run South 
89°51'03” East along the South line of Lots 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 82 and 83, a 
distance of 748.10 feet to the Northwest corner of Lot 112, of said Lake Miona Heights, 
thence run South 00°01'48" West a distance of 175.00 feet to the Southwest corner of said 
Lot 112, thence run South 89°51'03” East 58.10 feet, thence run South 00°01'48" West 
225.00 feet to the Southwest corner of Lot 137, of said Lake Miona Heights, thence  run  
South 89°51'03"  East along the  south  line of  said  Lake  Miona  Heights 1560.00 feet to the 
Southeast corner of Lot 125, of said Lake Miona Heights, thence run South 00°01'48" West 
175.00 feet to the Southwest corner of Lot 101, of said lake Miona Heights, thence run 
South 89°51'03”

 
East along the south line of said Lot 101, a distance of 131.68 feet; thence 

run South 00°06'40" East 225.17 feet; thence run North 89°12'39" West 2558.36 feet; thence 
run South 00°27'27" .West 850.67 feet to a point on the north line of Fox Hollow Phase 2 
according to the plat thereof as recorded in plat book 6 at pages 1 and 1B, public records of 
Sumter County, Florida; thence run North 89°48'39" West along aforementioned north line a 
distance of 670.94 feet to a point on the east line of CSX (formerly S.C.L.) Railroad right of 
way; thence run in a northeast direction along aforementioned east right of way a distance of 
2682 feet more or less to a point on the south right of way of County Road Number 114; 
thence run South 89°51'03" East 89 feet more or less to the point of beginning. 
 
Containing 52.6 acres more or less. 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT "A” 

8.d. 
Page 4 of 5



8.d. 
Page 5 of 5



9.a. 
Page 1 of 1



9.b. 
Page 1 of 1



9.c. 
Page 1 of 11



9.c. 
Page 2 of 11



9.c. 
Page 3 of 11



9.c. 
Page 4 of 11



9.c. 
Page 5 of 11



9.c. 
Page 6 of 11



9.c. 
Page 7 of 11



9.c. 
Page 8 of 11



9.c. 
Page 9 of 11



9.c. 
Page 10 of 11



9.c. 
Page 11 of 11



              
                                   INTERDEPARTMENTAL MEMORANDUM 

   
           DATE:     November 1, 2013 
 
            TO:  Bill Ed Cannon, City Manager 
     
                 CC:     
 
           FROM:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
         RE:     Coleman Federal Penitentiary 
 

On Thursday, October 31, 2013, Lewis Bryant and I participated in a teleconference with 
representatives of the Federal Prison. This teleconference was requested by the Prison and was a 
discussion regarding their continued efforts to reduce operational costs. Items discussed were as 
follows: 

 40 – 45% reduction in water usage 
 40-45% reduction in wastewater sent to the City 
 50% reduction in the surcharge cost paid to the City due to high concentrations of 

Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD) and Total Suspended Solids (TSS). 
 

Reduction in water use: 

 The Prison’s water billings for November 2012 thru October 2013 were $742,122.45, a 
40-45% reduction will reduce this revenue stream to between $408,000 and $445,000. A 
loss of between $297,000 and $334,000 per year. 

 
Reduction in wastewater sent to City: 

 The Prison’s sewer billings for November 2012 thru October 2013 were $1,493,205.00, a 
40-45% reduction will reduce this revenue stream to between $821,000 and $896,000. A 
loss of between $597,000 and $672,000. 

 
Reduction in COD & TSS surcharge: 

 The Prison is charged a surcharge due to COD and TSS concentrations exceeding the 
normal limits of residential wastewater (COD – 450 mg/l; TSS 150 mg/l) 

 At some point in time and for an unknown reason, the maximum limits were raised for 
COD from 450 mg/l to 700 mg/l and for TSS from 150 mg/l to 250 mg/l.  

11.b. 
Page 1 of 15



 Data in the file indicates the concentrations, historically, have been over 800 mg/l COD 
and over 300 mg/l TSS. 

 In a letter dated February 17, 2006, addressed to Mr. Chris Hart, Coleman Federal 
Correction Institute from the City Manager, Jim Stevens, Mr. Stevens noted that the 
monthly surcharges had been near $54,000 per month. In this letter he stated that he was 
going to recommend to the City Commission  the Surcharge be capped at $40,000 
($25,000 for COD and $15,000 for TSS). 

 In a follow-up letter dated March 1, 2006, Mr. Stevens confirmed to Ms. Kathleen Stone, 
Supervisory Contract Specialist, Federal Correctional Complex, that the City 
Commission had approved the cap of $40,000. 

 With a proposed reduction of 50% in the concentration of COD and TSS the revenue 
from the surcharge would drop to $240,000, a $240,000 reduction in revenues. 

 

Total projected reduction in yearly revenues: 

 Water   $297,000 - $334,000 
 Sewer   $597,000 - $697,000 
 Surcharge  $240,000 - $240,000 
 Est. Lost Revenue $1,134,000 - 1,271,000 

   
Although this is, at first glance, a tremendous hit on the Enterprise fund, there are some positive 
sides to this. 

 The reduction of 637,500 GPD (1,416,644 agpd x 45%)  of water from the CR 501 water 
plant will theoretically provide capacity for an additional 2125 ERCs from that plant. 

 The reduction of 531,000 gallons of wastewater being sent to the City’s wastewater 
treatment plant (WWTP) will, theoretically, also provide capacity for an additional 2125 
ERCs in the WWTP.  

 Permitted capacity of the WWTP is:     14,200 ERCs. 
 Capacity analysis is required at 50% capacity:     7,100 ERCs 
 Presently operating at 42% capacity       5,964 ERCs 
 Capacity presently available @ 8%  1,136 ERCs (7,100 – 5,964) 
 Capacity provided by Prison reduction 2,125 ERCs 
 Available capacity    3,261 ERCs 
 The reduction of the concentrations of COD and TSS are questionable in that the pounds 

of COD and TSS will not change but their concentrations should theoretically go up with 
a reduction in potable water usage due to less dilution factor. 

 
Developments that are moving forward with construction are: 

 Oxford Oaks. A residential development with 542 lots or 542 ERCs. 
 The developer has all permits for infrastructure and site work in hand and is starting 

construction of the development by the end of November, 2013. With the developer of 
Oxford Oaks being a sub corporation of The Villages, City staff is being told build out is 
estimated at two years. 

 Trailwinds, a residential, retail and medical development with an estimated 2579 ERCs. 
The developer for this project is finalizing financing and permitting, it is estimated that 
the developer will start construction within the next couple of months. 

 Oxford Oaks and Trailwinds have a combined need of 3,121 ERCs (542 + 2,579). 
 

11.b. 
Page 2 of 15



 As stated above the proposed reduction in water usage at the Prison will free up approximately 3,261 
ERCs. The two major developments (Oxford Oaks and Trailwinds) are estimated to need 3,121 ERCs at 
build-out. The completion of the reduction program by the Prison will take a couple of years and the 
development build-out of Oxford Oaks and Trailwinds will also take several years.  
 
The actual start of the capacity analysis could, possibly, be delayed by as much as a couple of years 
depending on the Prison’s retrofit schedule, the development schedules for Oxford Oaks and Trailwinds 
and any other new ERCs in the near future. 
 
 
C:\Users\mroberts\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\HPNEFU8E\Prison Flow Reduction.doc 
 

 
 

 
 

11.b. 
Page 3 of 15



11.b. 
Page 4 of 15



11.b. 
Page 5 of 15



11.b. 
Page 6 of 15



11.b. 
Page 7 of 15



11.b. 
Page 8 of 15



11.b. 
Page 9 of 15



11.b. 
Page 10 of 15



11.b. 
Page 11 of 15



11.b. 
Page 12 of 15



11.b. 
Page 13 of 15



11.b. 
Page 14 of 15



11.b. 
Page 15 of 15


	2.a. Minutes for approval 9.24.13.pdf
	Present were: Mayor Wolf, Commissioners Clark, Strickland and Green. Also present were: City Manager Cannon, City Clerk Jacobs, Assistant City Clerk Roberts, Police Chief Reeser, City Attorney Hunt, Development Service Director Peavy, Development Serv...
	CONSENT AGENDA/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS – 7:00 PM
	4. Setting Ad valorem Millage Rate for FY 2013-2014 – A Resolution of the City of Wildwood, Florida adopting the final levying of ad valorem taxes for City of Wildwood, Florida; providing for an effective date. Advertised as Public Hearing. With adopt...
	PRESENTATIONS AND/OR PROCLAMATIONS – none
	PUBLIC FORUM
	GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION and OTHER BUSINESS
	APPOINTMENTS – none
	CITY MANAGER’S REPORT




	8.b.KHA IPO #23 Trailwinds Utility Extensions.pdf
	8.b.1. KHA IPO #23 - Trailwinds Agenda
	8.b.2. IPO #23 Trailwinds Utility Extensions

	8.c. Landstone Utility Agreement.pdf
	8.c.1. Landstone Utility Agreement Agenda memo
	8.c.2. Landstone Signed Utility Agreement 10-22-13

	8.d. McDowell-Dodd Lease.pdf
	8.d. McDowell-Dodd Lease
	McDowell-Dodd Property map

	11.b. Prison Flow Reduction.pdf
	11.b. Prison Flow Reduction
	Prison Flow Reduction 2


	Back to Agenda: 
	Back to Agenda 2: 
	Back to Agenda 3: 


